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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILMES AND sERrvices Review BoARDR EC E I\VED
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION JAN 19 2012
&
This Section must be completed for all projects. HEALTH FAC“'EL‘%%
SERVICES REVIE .
Facility/Project ldentification
Facilily Name; Hickorv Point Chrigtian Village
Street Address: . 565 West Marion Avenue
City and Zip Code: Forsyth 62535
County: Macon Health Service Area 004 Health Planning Area. Macorn

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
TProvide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc

Address: 1790 S. Fairview Avenue, Decatur, Illinois 62521
Name of Registered Agent: M. Ouinn Murphy

Name of Chief Executive Officer;  Timothv F. Phillipe

CEO Address: 200 N. Postville Drive, Lincoln, IL 62656

Telephone Number: (217)732-9651

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

K Non-profit Corporation d Partnership
] For-profit Corporation O Governmentat
O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact
{Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Joe Ourth

Title: Atrorney

Company Name: Arnstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 120 S. Riverside Plaza, #1200, Chicago, IL 60606
Telephone Number: {312}1876-7815

E-mail Address: jourth@arnstein.com

Fax Number: (312)876-0288

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name; Laurie Brown
Title: Senior Administrator
Company Name: Falr Havens Christian Village
Address: 565 West Marion Avenue, Forsyth, IL 62535
Telephong Number: {(217)872-1122
E-mail Address: lbrown. fhch@christianhomes . org
Fax Number: {(217)875-0600
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be completed for ail projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name:; Hickory Point Christian Village

Street Address: 565 West Marion Avenue

City and Zip Code:  Forsvyth 62535

County. Macon Health Service Area 004 Health Planning Area:Macon

Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Midwest Chrisrian Villages, Inc,

Address: 200 N. Postville Drive, Lincoln, IL 62656
Name of Registered Agent: M. Cuinn Murphy

Name of Chief Executive Officer:  Timothv ¥ Phillipe

CEO Address: " 200 N. Postville Drive, Lincoln, IL 62656

Telephone Number: (217)732-9651

Type of Ownérship of Applicant/Co-Applicant

& Non-profit Corporation O Parinership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
I Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an iltinois certificate of good
standing.

o Parinerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Joe Qurth

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Arnstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 120 8. Riverside Plaza, #1200, Chicago, IL 60606
Telephone Number: (312)876-7815

E-mail Address: jourth@arnstein.com

Fax Number: (312} 876-0288

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: ‘ Laurie Brown
Title: Senior Administrator
Company Name: Fair Haveng Christian Village
Address: 565 West Marion Avenue, Forgyth, IL 62535
Telephone Number: {217)1872-1122
E-mail Address: 1brown.fhech@chrigtianhomes . org
Fax Number: {217) 875-0D&00
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000002




ILLINO'S HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVIGES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact
{Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: - Laurie Brown

Title: Senior Administratox

Company Name: Fair Havens Christian Village

Address: 565 West Marion Avenue, Forsyth, IL 62535
Telephone Number: (2171872-1122

E-mail Address: 1brown. fhchechrisrianhomes  org

Fax Number: (217)875-0600

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner. rair Havens Christian Homes, Inc. d/b/a Hickory Point Christian

village

Address of Site Owner: 565 West Marion Avenue, Forsyth, IL 62535

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are proparty tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease or a lease.
R S TR S P - TR r
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Qperating ldentity/Licensee
fProvide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc. d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village

Address: 565 West Marion Avenue, Forsyth, IL 62535

X Non-profit Corporation 1 Partnership

O For-profit Corporation O Governmental

Hl Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner. )

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person of entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution. -

P e T
:?‘_ A T:&.QE
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JLLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of llinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lilinois Executive Order #2005-5 {ht

"y oY

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application insiructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
|Check those applicable - refer to Part 111040 and Pant 1120.20(b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]
Substantive [ Part 1120 Not Applicabte

O Category A Project
O Non-substantive X Category B Project

{1 DHS or DVA Project

Page 3
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlen

2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of ihe project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, inciude a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

Hickory Point Christian Village proposes to add 17 skilled nursing beds to its existing 47 bed
facility in Forsyth. The Applicants (coliectively, the “Applicants) are Fair Havens Christian
Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village and Midwest Christian Villages, Inc., d/b/a
Christian Homes. Hickory Point Christian Village operates the facility as licensce.

Christian Homes is a faith-based not-for-profit organization with a mission to provide a broad range
of quality and compassionate care and support services to seniors. Christian Homes began in 1962
by area churches in down-state Riverton, Illinois and today serves over 2,500 residents in 16
cxisting Christian Homes' communities. With 51% of its residents recciving Medicaid, Christian
Homes is the targest faith-based provider of skilled care to the Illinois medically indigent.

The Review Board approved construction of Hickory Point in 2009. The skilled facility was added
to serve the existing retirement community at Hickory Point consisting of independent and assisted
living services. Hickory Point Christian Village opened in the second half of 2011 and was
constructed anticipating that additional need would arise. The existing facility was built upon the
“Small House” concept of resident-focused care and contains 4 Smail House units of approximately
10-15 residents each. The Project will constitute the 5 and final Smatl House unit and will
complement the existing facility. Hickory Point has experienced rapid, early fill up from
individuals in the service area secking skilled nursing care.

Hickory Point's sister facility, Fair Havens Christian Home, located in Decatur, has historically
operatcd at high occupancy and continues to do so at 97.7% utilization. Those residents secking
admission 1o Fair Havens who were unable to be admitted due to high occupancy may now seck
admission to Hickory Point. Finally, the closure by Decatur Memorial Hospital in late 2011 of its
61-bed skilled facility will more than will offset the 17-bed addition and likely keep utilization at
Hickory Point and at other area facilities high.

The Project proposes a 7,502 gross square footage addition. The Project will be funded from
existing cash resources and no debt will be incurred.

The Project is categorized as “substantive” because it proposes the addition of more than 10% of
existing beds. The Macon County Planning Area currently has a calcuiated bed need of 100
additional beds.

Page 4
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ILLING!S HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2040 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs {refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, don

ation, gift, or other means, the

fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of

health care, complete the second column o

f the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.
Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FURDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs £25,000 N/A $25,000
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $27,000 N/A $27,000
Site Preparation £125. 000 N/A $125,000
Off Site Work $35.000 N/A 535,000
New Construction Contracts $1,266,890 /A 51,266,890
Modernization Contracts N/A N/A N/L
Conlingencies 8126.682 N/A $126,682
Architectural/Engineering Fees 102,000 N/A $102,000
Consulting and Other Fees £139 000 N/A £139.00
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction
contracts) $320, 000 N/A $320.000
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) N/A N/A N/D
Net Interest Expense During Construction {project
related) N/A N/A N/A
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment N/A N/A N/A
Cther Costs To Be Capitalized aa0.000 N/R S80.000
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding .
tand) ' N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $2,246,572 N/A 42,246,572

SQURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities £2 246,572 N/A 52,246,572

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value}

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

Page 5
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs :
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project (1Yes No
Purchase Price:  §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

(] Yes X} No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs {including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target

utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
(] None or not applicable Preliminary
[ Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): April 1, 2014

Indicate the following with respect io project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[ Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
(] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

SETNPE
M
CMENT,

State Agency Submittals

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
[ cancer Registry
] APORS
X] Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
All reparls regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area's portion of the surrounding

cireulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet That Is:

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

‘e New .
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized

Asls

Vacated
Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radioiogy

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

OTAL

R PPENDIDG

53 =y rer FpA AT LT

RPEILCAT) £¢
Gl Ly
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lILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Iriventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

Hickory FPoint
FACILITY NAME: Christian Village | CITY: Forsyth

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 7/15/2011 to; 12/31/2011

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

‘ Rehabilitation

Comprehensive Physical

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care 47 54 1,184 +17 64

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other ((identify)

TOTALS: 47 54 1,184 +17 64
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~ ILLINOIS KEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BCOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are;

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist),

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the scle beneficiary when two or more
beneficianies do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application faor Parmit is fited on the behalf of Fair Havens Christian Homes, Tnt.
in accordance with the requirements and precedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned ce rtifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifles that the data and
informatlon provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this applicatiop is t herewith or will be paid upon request.

é‘u@o\\\'\ﬂ QL_‘Q\QSL

Sl 3 SIGNATURE

Susan: McGhee

Timothy F. Phillipe

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Preside;r_m/CEO' Chief Financial Officer
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swomn to before me Subscribed and swom to before me
this _10thay of__January , 2012 this _10 dayof __January, 2012

T

Signatlire of Notary Signature of Notary

Seal ;i;"a-b-?%--'a-‘.u:- Vo taede ool -:.~:-¢--:--:«.:-¢.;‘.;..:..g..:..;.5. Seal fr:n-:»-b-:n:- A el oo e o Gpate i ol it ot e o it
% OFFICIAL SEAL 3 @ OFFICIAL SEAL b4
MARGELLA TESH 3 MARCELLA TESH £

*Insert EXAGT e ] 3 % NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILUNOIS $
Y PIRES Y " _—r - -
et oot e e S st e e o A T LTI e e e .:‘:_;: B O S N A R NS N A N S NUAE AR A S TSP 3
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APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized repraesentative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liabitity company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or mare managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general pariner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Midvwest Christian villages, Inc.

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.

The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for

permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and

information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the hest of his or

her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
- hgrewith or will be paid upon request.

réuao‘\“\( qu

" SIGNATURE
Susan bMcGhee

J
Timothy F. Phillips

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
President /CED Chief Financial Officer
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me Subseribed and sworn to before me
this _10) dayof _January 2012 this 1) dayof
Sign%re of Notary . Signature of Notary
Seal :iz-;n:-::--;..;..;-.;. Vil e el e e ale oo slral sl ale e el Tn et Sesl e e . "
oa 3 ea AT s 2o alnate ofa ale olnadhale sl oo oo el e oo ol it oY 4
mféf:'éfiﬁ ETA‘\ELSH Z OFFICIAL SEA
< < MARCELLA TESH 8

*Insert EXACT leg3

..................

% NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF

, -,
--------------

% NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS

[ P
oo e s ol s

T WY C
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable. -

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken againsl any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authosization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB. '

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this crilerion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and cerify that no changes have occcurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update andfor clarify data.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. {See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.}

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the staled goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemnizalion, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
slatements of age and condition and regulatory citalions if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

FAR iNUMERIC:SEC
APAG B'"étﬁ‘ |

AT P
Y ARG D Y
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ALTERNATIVES
1)°  Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's inlended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes,

Cc) Ulilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen altemative was selected.
'2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to altemative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total cosis, patient access, quality and financia!
benelits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion} and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Page 12
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gioss square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facitity's physical configuration has constrainls or impediments and requires an
architeclural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14. -

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

PROJ ECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSREB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 1. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual uiilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must he

provided.

A lable must be provided in the foliowing format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPTJ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED |  STATE MET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION { UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: Not Applicable
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space,

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shelt space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; ar
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4, Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

!|

TR

ASSURANCES: Not Applicable

Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service

involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

TEAG

A5
5
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

. Criterion 1110.1730 - General Long Term Care

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize General Long Term Care

must submit the following information:

Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: 0
action(s): 17

# Existing
Category of Service Beds

General Long Term
Care

indicate # of beds changed by

# Proposed

Beds

2. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required

documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand

Modernize

Continuum of
Care-
Establish or
Expand

Defined
Population
Establish
or Expand

1110.1730(b}{1} - Planning Area Need - 77 Ili. X
Adm. Code 1100 {formula
calcuiation)

1110.1730(b}(2) - Planning Area Need - X X
Service to Planning Area
Residenls

1110.1730{b)(3) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Demand -
Establishment of
Category of Service

1110.1730(b}{d) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Demand - :
Expansian of Existing
Category of Service

1110.1730(b})(5) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Accessibility

1110.1730(c){(1) - Description of Contintum
of Care

1110.1730(c)(2) - Components

1110.1730(c)(3) - Documentation

1110.1730(d){1} - Description of Defined
Populatian to be Served

T 1110.1730(d){2) - Documentation of Need

1110.1730(d){3) - Documentation Related to
Cited Problems

1110.1730(e){1) - Unnecessary Duplication X
of Services

1110.1730(e)(2) - Maldistribution X

1110.1730(e)(3) - Impact of Project on Other X
Area Providers

1110.1730(f){1) - Deleriorated Facilities

1110.1730(N{2) & (3) - Documentation
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Defined
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand { Modemize | Continuum of | Population
Care- Establish
Establish or or Expand
Expand
1110.1720(f(4)-  Utilization X
1110.1730(g) - Staffing Availability X X X X
1110,1730(h) - Facility Size X X x X X
111017 30(} - Community Related X X X X
Functions )
1110.1730(G)-  Zoning X X X X
1110.1730(k) - Assurances X X X X X

~ACREND DBC mzmsw N
PAGE/ORTHEIAR I‘Céﬂ 'n!

R e

sga ; rACHMEN
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FAGILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

_Tl'ie following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody’s (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
« Sectlon 1120.13¢ Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibllity - Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIII, - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the doliar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities — stalements (e.a., audited financial siatements, letiers from financial
$2,246,572 institutions, board resolutions) as-to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the projed, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest io be earned on depreciation account funds or to be eamed on any
asset from the date of applicant’s submission through project completion;

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and refated fundraising
expenses, and a discusslon of past fundraising experience.

c} Gifts and Beguests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time 1able of receipts;

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period, variable
or permanent interest rates over the debi time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1} For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authorily te issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, Including any discounting
anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibifity of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For morigages, a letter from the prospective fender atlesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditlons associated with ihe mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, efc..

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase oplions, any capital improvements 1o the property and
provision of capilal equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and condilions.

e} Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the govemmental unit. i funds are o be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or ather action of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent;

N Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availabiiity of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

) All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

52,246,572 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND 5ERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition
IX. 4120.130 - Financial Viability

Al the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding {sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A

rated guarantor.

N

NG

NTIRE
e

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteging funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and lhe facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financiat statements, the system's viability ratios shall be pravided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the

applicable hospital standards.
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Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Tota! Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

i Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detalling the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant defaull.

MERT 41
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

) 8 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable 1o all projects subject to Part 1120.

A Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant sha!l document lhe reasonableness of financing arangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

13 That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or {

2) That the total estimated projact costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
horowing because:

A) A portion or afl of the cash and equivalenls must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order o maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is |less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to refire

debt within a 60-day period.
B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests {o the following, as applicabte:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest nel cost
available;
2) That the selecled form of debt financing will nat be at the lowest net cosl available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other faclors;

3) That the project invalves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. lidentify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET 8Y DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A | s c | o | € F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross 5q. FL. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.” (AxC) (B x E} {G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS
“Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

D. Projected Operating Cosis

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in cu rrent dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service} for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
fallowing project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefils and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Efect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target ulilization but no more than two years following project
- completion
FAEREND:DOCUMEN!
@A‘*E‘“ EATIONFORM
dEroon oy

Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPAGT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that i Is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system ta cross-subsidize safety net services, H reasonably
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant. '

Safaty Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

4. For the 3 fiscal years prior 1o ihe application. a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the
liinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, In accordance with an appropriate
methodology specified by the Board.

2, For the 3 fiscal years prior 1o the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicald information in a manner consistent with the information reporied each year to the Hlinois
Department of Public Heatth regarding "Inpalients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source™ and "Inpatient and Quipatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly refevant to safety net services, including information regarding 1eaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43,

Safety Net Information per PA 26-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charlty (¥ of patients) Year Year Yoar
Inpatient
Culpatient
Total
Charity (cost In dollars}
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medlicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Oulpatient
Total
Paga 53
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACGILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edltion

Medicaid (revenue)

Inpatient

Qutpatient

Xil. Charity Care Information

Charity Care Information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost fo net patient revenue,

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in llinois. If
charity care costs are reporied on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as fo the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ralio of charity care cost to net palient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant Is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
¢harity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of ils second year of operation,

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to recelve payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care {charges)
Cast of Charity Care

Page 54
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT

NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant/Coapplicant identification including Certificate of Good

Slanding 24-25

2 | Site Ownership 26

3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be

identified with the % of ownership.

4 | Organizational Relationships {Organizational Chart) Certificate of

Good Standing Etc. 27-28
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 29-30
6 | Historic Preservalion Act Reguiremenls 31
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 32-33
8 | Obligation Document if required
9 | Cost Space Reguirements 34
10 |_Discontinuation
11 | Background of the Applicant 35-54
12 | Purpose of the Project 55-91
13 | Alternatives to the Project 92-94
14 | Size of the Project 95-97
15 | Project Service Utilization 98

16 | Unfinished or Shelt Space

17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project

19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:

20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental lliness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization H
26 | In-Center Hemodialysis ;
27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery
28 | General Long Term Care 99-118
29 | Specialized Long Term Care )
30 | Selected Organ Transpiantation

31 | Kidney Transplantation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center

35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Calegories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

—

Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds 119-218 |
40 | Financial Waiver
41 | Financial Viabilily

42 | Economic Feasibility 21%-221
43 | Safety Net Impacl Statement 222
44 | Charity Care Information 223
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File Number 5042-562-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

FAIR HAVENS CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 09, 1974, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinots, this 22ND
day of DECEMBER A.D. 2011

Authentication #: 1135602234 M

Authenticate at. http:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

000024 ATTACHMENT-1
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File Number 6551-501-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MAY 02, 2007, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 22ND
day of DECEMBER AD. 2011

Authentication # 1135602286 "M/

Authenticate at: http:/twww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

060025
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MACON COUNTY - 2010

2010 REAL ESTATE TAX BILL PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE BACK OF THIS BILL REGARDING

EDWARD D. YODER, TAX COLLF,;_ @{_\OR YOUR TAXES. ‘ ‘ _
MAGON COUNTY OFFICE BUILDl G, The County Collector only collects your taxes and is not raspansible for the amount of
)

LN your assessment or the amount of your tax bill. We wil be happy to assist you o
141 SMAIN ST ROOM 302 *.5

\7}‘:,\ direct you to the prager authority regarding questions about your tax biil,

DECATUR, IL 62523 ! \\\\ FAIR HAVEN CHRISTIAN HOME
- 2 "  BSSESSED TO:
PHONE (217) 424-1426:. % 9, NG 15024
\ AT ) . ..' ";-:. Vs .
FAIR HAVEN CHRISTIAN HOMS ,/ PESWMARON AVE [PERMARERT WOEX NUMBER
%% WEISS MICHAEL ‘\ S HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN 07-07-1 5‘_45 1-006
1790 S FAIRVIEW : VILLAGE ' ' ' ThES TRRABLE v
DECATUR, IL 62521 AN IR LOT 1 i 16.960 565,502
% 96-58-20 CLASS CODfg e [TAXGODE 11
L AT‘IL?E OF PRQf,EFlTV
ectfiot wp  Range Acres TOWNSHIP
RECEIPT PORTION - KEEP FOR YOUR RECORDS | 15 1 2E 16.960 HICKORY POINT
PAY TO: MACON COUNTY COLLECTOR _ Taﬁng Body Prior Rate Prigr Amount Currént Rag Cutrgnl Amaunt
‘ ' COUNTY TAX 0.72791 7,035.26 0.74139 7,165.55
- IMRF o 0.22497 2,174.34 0.21819 2,108.81
TR T SR CO HEALTH & MENTAL 0.24488 2,366.78 0.24449 2,363.01
FancEot™ 2 A CONSERVATN DIST 0.08971 867.05 0.09472 915.48
Farm an T 925,029 - IMR¥ | 0.01048 10129 | 0.00678 65.52
Farm Bng + 0 HICKORY PT TWP 0.29992 | 2,898.73 0.31677 3,061.59
gf OfEi:l. EFqualizc:i = ?66 50% - IMRF - 0.00703 67.95 0.00644 i 62.24 -
ate Eq. Factors X N
State Eg' L X 56502 MAROA-FORS SCH#2 3.83726 37,087.19 3.86235 37,329.69
IMPROVEMENT . - 0 - IMRF 0.14106 1,363.35 0.15485 1,496.63
OWNER QCCEX - 0 HICKORY PTFIRE 0.26027 2,515.51 0.2720% 2,629.66
SENIR R 3 FORSYTH VILLAGE 0.32345 312616 | 032342 3,125.87
SEN FREEZE - 0 - IMRF 0.02509 242.49 0.02607 251.96
DECATUR SANITARY . 0.20087 1,941.41 0.22815 2,205.07
-IMRF _ 0.05923 572.46 0.03282 317.21
. RICHLAND CC 537 0.38944 3,763.94 0.42728 4,129.67
Taxable Value = 966,502 - MEDICARE : 0.00523 50.55 0.00518 50.06
O . . MAHOMET AQUIFER WA | 0.00000 000 | 000000 0.00
Drainage Tax = 80,00 COOPERATIVE ' 0.02317 223.94 0.02382 230.22
'| Totals 6.86997 66,398.40 6.98480 67,508.24
* Not 10 be used for farm land and farm buildings '
‘:wnshi_p Multiplier: 1.00000 : 90 . OO (’;“g:‘
EINTEREST 1 {, PER MONTH . B
ST 1 1Z% G TOTAL TAX DUE $67.508.24 &a ‘é“'
1977 EQUALIZED VALUE 100 FAIR MARKET VALUE,899,506 . : v
FIAST INS 13 y
FIRST INSTALLIENT06/06/201 1 AMOUNT $33,754.12 SECONDNSTAULMENT 09/01/2011 AMOUNT  $33,754.12
000026
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File Number 5042-562-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

FAIR HAVENS CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 09, 1974, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT

OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 22ND
day of DECEMBER A.D. 2011

\ oA r. 2 3 g
s NI 2N e
Authentication #: 1135602234

Authenticate at: hitp:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS

Attached is a FEMA map of the 'proposed Project location showing all identified flood plain
areas.

The Project is not located in a special flood hazard area and the Project complies with the

requirements of Hllinois Executive Order #2005-5.

9923544_1.DOC
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Illinois Historic

=== Preservation Agency
. FAX (217) 782-8161

12! 1 010 State Capitol Plaza + Springfield, lllinois 62701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov

Macon County

Forsyth .
New Addition, Hickory Point Christian Village
565 Marion Ave.
IHPA Log #007120711

December 19, 2011

Tracey Salinski

Arnstein & Lehr LLP

120 S. Riversgide Plaza, Suite 1200
Chicago, IL 60606

Dear Msa. Salinski:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act {20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
! Deputy State Historic
- Preservation Officer

A teletypewriter for the speech/hearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. It is not a voice or fax line.
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Hickory Point #2- 17 Bed
Schedule N (partial) - Project Costs

Pre-Planning Costs

1/15/2012

25,000

Archltectural

Site Survey & Soil Investigations

27,000

Survey
Geotechnical

Site Preparation

125,000

Grading and Fencing
Added Fill
Compaction
Landscaping
Signage

Utility Relocations

Off-Site Work

35,000

Street Connection

New Construction Contracts

1,266,890

Bullding Construction

Contingencies

126,682

Based on Total New Construction Costs

Architectural/Engineering Fees

102,000

Architecture & Engineering

Consulting & Other Fees

139,000

Interior Design

Civil Engineer

Landscape Design

Village Revlew Fees

IDPH Review Fees

Building Permit
Sewer/Water Access Fees
Legal Fees

Accounting Fees

In-House Capitalized Labor

Moveable & Other Equipment (not in construction contract)

320,000

Furniture & Furnishings
Patients Lifts

Therapy Equipment
Dietary Equipment
Therapy Tub

Medical Equipment

80,000

Other Costs to be Capitalized (not In Construction Contract)
Resident Wandering System ’
IT Systems
Satellite System
Marketing
Telephone
Security & Access Control

¢ 0032
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
Explanation as to why equipment costs exceed the State Standard
The Applicants acknowledge that the costs of Movable or Other Equipment (not in
construction contracts) exceed the State standard of $6,491 per LTC bed, adjusted for inflation,
as set forth in Section 1125.Appendix B of the Review Board rules. This is the only item that
exceeds the State standard.

While equipment costs exceed the State standard, certain higher costs are inherent in the
“Small House” model. A significant design element of the Small House model is more common
areas for resident services. The small household units have their own dining rooms and living
rooms, as well as their own warming and rehab kitchens. The rehab kitchen provides residents
the ability to hone their dining services and assist them in reaching their highest practicable level
upon their return home.

The Applicant has also purchased high quality furniture throughout the Project which
requires fewer replacements over time than other lower-cost options. Further, eachl guest room
will have a “project” area, containing a table and two chairs, that provides each resident the
space to dine in their room, work on projects or to sit and talk with other residents. This area is
not required by IDPH but an additional “feature” for guests. Each guest room will also contain a
quality recliner as the “required chair” pursuant IDPH standards. This recliner will last longer

than less costly alternatives and provide each resident with comfort and physical support.

9942721_3.DOCX
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BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT
CRITERION 1110.230(a)(3)(A)

#1: A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including
licensing, certification and accreditation identification numbers, if applicable.

A listing of all health care facilities owned and operated by Fair Havens Christian
Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village, and Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.
is attached. Also attached are copies of all current licenses, pcrmits, certifications and
registrations for each health care facility owned and operated by the Applicant and co-
Applicant.

9923565_1.D0C

000035 ATTACHMENT-11




HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
LISTING OF HEALTHCARE FACILITIES

Bridgeway Christian Village
111 East Washington
Bensenville, lllinois 60106

Chicagoland Christian Village
6685 East 117th Avenue
Crown Point, Indiana 46307

Christian Nursing Home
1507 7th Street
Lincoln, Illinois 62656

Fair Havens Christian Home
1790 South Fairview Avenue
Decatur, Illinois 62521

Heartland Christian Village
101 Trowbridge Road
Neoga, Illinois 62447

Hickory Point Christian Village
565 West Marion Avenue
Forsyth, Illinois 62535

Hoosier Christian Village
621 South Sugar Street
Brownstown, Indiana 47220-0172

Lewis Memorial Christian Village
400 West Washington Street
Springficld, Illinois 62711

Pleasant Meadows Christian Village
400 West Washington Avenue
Chrisman, Illincis 61924

Risen Son Christian Village

3000 Risen Son Boulevard
Council Bluffs, lowa 51503

9942505_1.DOC

000036

Shawnee Christian Nursing Center
1901 North 13th Sireet
Herrin, lllinois 629438

Spring River Christian Village
201 South Northpark Lane
Joplin, Missouri 64801-849%

Wabash Christian Retirement Center
216 College Boulevard
Carmi, Illinois 62821

Washington Christian Village
1201 Newcastle Road
Washington, Illinois 61571

ATTACHMENT-11
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' -q— DISPLAY THIS PARTIN A
CONSPICUOUS PLAGE

. REMOVE THIS CARD TO CARRY AS AN
! IDENTIFICATION

!

05/03/10
' CHRISTIAN NURSING HOME N
, 1507 7TH STREET
: LINCOLN IL 626396

FEE REGEIFT NQ.

£C0039 ATTACHMENT-11
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" g—— DISPLAY THIS PARTIN A
CONSPICUOUS PLACE

AEMOVYE THIS CARD TO CAF
INENTIFICATION

12/91/11

HICKDRYPOINT CHRISTIAI
565 HEST MARION ﬁVkNUI
FORSYTH Il. 6

FEE RECEIPT NO.
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Indiana State Department of Health

Comprehensive Care License
This is to certify that:
HOOSIER CHRISTIAN VILLAGE INC d/b/a
HOOSIER CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
621 SOUTH SUGAR ST
BROWNSTOWN, IN

a 97 bed Comprefiensive Care Facifity, fias fulfilled the requirements for Beensure and is subject to provisions of
IC 16-28 and the rules of the Indiana State Department of Health issued thereunder.

This license shall not be assignable or transferable, and shall be subject to revocation, replacement, or reduction
at any time by the Indiana State Department of Health for faifure to comply with the laws of the State of Indiana
or the rules of the Indiana State Department of Health issued thereunder.

License number 11-000277-1 is effective January 1, 2011 and expires December 31, 2011.

DIVISION DIRECTOR
LONG TERM CARE

SDH 23028
Stimte Form 44976 (RY5-05)
HEA FACIACERT
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POST IN CONSPICUOUS PLACE
STATE OF IOWA
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF INSPECTIONS AND APPEALS

DES MOINES

RISEN SON CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
3000 RISEN SON BLVD
COUNCIL BLUFFS IA 51503
License Number: 780641
Beds/Capacity: 102

This is to certify that a license is hereby granted to the above-named facility to cperate a Nursing Facility in
accordance with lowa Code chapter 135C and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. This license
shall not be transferable or assignable, except with the written approval of the Health Facilities Division of the
lowa Depantment of Inspections and Appeals, and shall be subject to suspension or revocation for failure to
comply with jowa Code chapter 135C or the rules or minimum standards adopted pursuant to chapter 135C.

DATE OF |SSUE: OCTOBER 15,2011

4 Diractor

000046 ATTACHMENT-11
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January 10 ,2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Tllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — No Adverse Action

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no disciplinary action relative to “Adverse Action” as defined under
Section 1110.230(a)(1) of the Review Board Rules has been adjudicated against Fair Havens
Christian Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village, or against any health care facility
owned or operated by it, directly or indirectly, within three (3) years preceding the filing of the
permit application.

Sincerely,

Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc.

s Do

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer
Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 10 day of January, 2012

T r1utl~Teb

Sigfiature of Notary Public

ATl e 4 ale e e e w al ol Th 42 4% B it ot
At e e e B e la

Seal % OFFICIAL SEAL %
z MARCELLA TESH 3

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILUNOIS 7 3
MY CONWIISSION EXPlRES 9252014 -.

5t
.....

--....,,__.__..;.

Certification of No Adverse Action (Hickory Point). DOC
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January 10 , 2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — No Adverse Action

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no disciplinary action relative to “Adverse Action” as defined under
Section 1110.230(a)(1) of the Review Board Rules has been adjudicated against Midwest
Christian Villages, Inc., or against any health care facility owned or operated by it, directly or
indirectly, within three (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application.

Sincerely,

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.

Cﬁwﬁ\ NI e

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this __jp day of January, 2012

SigZﬁture of Notary Public

;5';'3"-"5-'1"?":*4-1-4:--:u>~:--:u:'¢~:-<--c--:--co¢-n-w--:~$
X MARCELLA TESH I:Z
i NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS 3
MY COMMISSION EKP!RES 9-252014 -

..............

Certification of No Adversc Action (Hickory Point). DOC ATTACHMENT-11
000052




January 10 ,2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — Access to Information

Dear Ms. Avery:

I hereby authorize the State Board and State Agency access to information from any
licensing/certification agency in order to verify any and all documentation or information
submitted in relation to this permit application. I further authorize the Hlinois Department of
Public Health to obtain any additional documentation or information that said agency deems
necessary for the review of the application as it pertains to Section 1110.230(a)(3}(C) of the
Review Board Rules.

Sincerely,

Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village
Susan McGhee

Chief Financial Officer

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this_10 day of January, 2012

Iepble ~Tlete

Sighature of Notary Public
Seal OFFICIAL SEAL i
MARCELLA TESH o

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 9252014

----- (el et b i b il

<
-
-:-
L
-
;

Authorizations to Verify CON Application Information {Hickory Point).DOC ATTACHMENT-11
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January 10, 2012

Ms. Courtney R, Avery

Administrator

IHinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, 1llinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — Access to Information

Dear Ms. Avery:

I hereby authorize the State Board and State Agency access to information from any
licensing/certification agency in order to verify any and all documentation or information
submitted in relation to this permit application. 1 further authorize the 1llinois Department of
Public Health to obtain any additional documentation or information that said agency deems
necessary for the review of the application as it pertains to Section 1110.230(a)(3)(C) of the
Review Board Rules.

Sincerely,
Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.

R IAt ™

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer
Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 70 day of January, 2012

W uw,ﬁ'—

Signature of Notary Publlc

i wals ole s afeale e aln v sl le cle o e wle e afeale ot St ale el s .:_5:
Seal % OFFICIAL SEAL 3
& MARCELLA TESH K

;. NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF iLLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 9—25-2014
gt e ol G e o o e Tt o e ek

Authorizations 10 Verify CON Application Informatien (Hickory Point).DOC ATTACHMENT-11
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ﬁICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
§1110.230(b)
PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

1. BACKGROUND

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc., d/b/a Christian Homes, is a faith-based, not-for-profit
organization with a misston to provide a continuum of quality and compassionate care and
support services to older adults. Christian Homes began in 1962 when LeRoy McGeath of
Riverton, Illinois, shared his dream with area churches for a faith-based home for the elderly.
Today, the 16 existing Christian Homes communities serve over 2,500 residents throughout
Illinois, Indiana, Jowa and Missouri. Hickory Point Christian Village, located in Forsyth, is one
of Christian Homes’ existing 16 communitie‘s.

Hickory Point Christian Villagg provides independent living, assisted living and skilled
nursing services to its senior community in Macon County. As of December 31, 2012, Hickory
Point serves approximately 90 residents. The Hickory Point Christian Village campus currently
consists of 48 assisted living apartments, 18 of which are dedicated to memory care, 50
independent living, single level, “Garden Homes” and a 32,519 gross square foot, 47-bed skilled
nursing facility. The existing Hickory Point community provides fully equippeci duplex and
-apartment living designed to meet the needs of the elderly desiring indecpendent and/or requiring
assisted living care. Hickory Point skilled nursing facility opened in 2011 .and provides the

skilled nursing services needed by Hickory Point’s existing independent and assisted living

residents and by individuals residing in the service area.

9930658 3.00C -1- ATTACHMENT-12
000055 -




2. HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE

The Review Board approved the 47-bed skilled nursing facility on the Hickory Point
retirement campus in 2009 (Project No. 08-097). The facility was timely constructed within the
proposed budget in compliance with the Board’s rules. When the current facility was originally
contemplated Christian Homes desired a larger, 64-bed facility. However, at the time the CON
application for Project No. 08-097 was filed, only 47 beds were available in Planning Area for
Macon County. Even though building a 47-bed unit was not as efficient as a larger, 64-bed
facility, Christian Homes respected the Review Board rules and sought only a 47-bed facility_
which met the calculated bed need at the time the CON application was filed.

The current facility was built specifically to accommodate a 17-bed addition in
anticipation that additional need would afise. The facility was built according to the “Small
House” concept (discussed below in detail) and currently contains 4 Small House units in
separate wings, with each unit housing approximately 10-15 residents. The current facility was
constructed with this Projcct (the 5™ Small House unit), in mind. You will see from the attached
architectural drawing that the Project (the wing marked “proposed”) complements the existing
facility, not only visually (it completes the look, symmetry and design of the currently existing
structure, and also utilizes the remaining unused land on the sitc), but more importantly,
programmatically.

With Decatur Memorial Hospital’s recently closed long-term care unit, Christian Homes
believes it an appropriate time to pursuc construction of the final .piecc of its originally-
conternplated skilled nursing facility. Hickory Point’s existing lot size will only accommodate

this one additional Small Housc unit.

9930658 _3.DOC -2- ATTACHMENT-12
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3. SMALL HOUSE CONCEPT

The existing facility utilizes a cutting-edge concept known as the “small house” mode} of
care, or “Small House Concept”. This resident-centered delivery of care model allows for a more
home-like environment in contrast to the traditional, skilled nursing facilities that focus primarily
on efficient delivery of services and less on privacy, personal dignity and choice. The “small
house™ approach to design and care focuses on reducing the size of the nursing facility to a
residential scale to provide residents with a more open and home-like model than the traditional

model. Details of the small house concept are well summarized in the attached article: Rabig, J.

and Rabig, B., Nursing Home-Long Term Care Management, “Characteristics of a Small
House”, March 2008. More importantly, studies of the small house concept have documented

the benefits in clinical outcome studies. In particular, we note, and have attached the study from

the Journal of the American Geriatrics Society (JAGS) in June 2007. Citation: Kane, R.A., Lum.

T. Y., Cutler, L. J., Degenholz, HB., & Yu, Tzy-Chyi (2007). “Resident Qutcomes in Small-

House Nursing Homes: A Longitudinal Evaluation. of the Initial Green Housc Program.” Joumal
of the American Geriatrics Society, 55 (6) :832-839-2007.

The current 47-bed skilled nursing facility is comprised of 4 small household units or
“Small House units”. The Project will allow for the 5" and final Smail House unit at the facility.
A significant design element of the Small House model is more common areas for resident
programs. These Small House units contain their own small social and dining areas and each has
access to a community courtyard. The Small House units offer restaurant-style dining in
separate household kitchen areas. Residents are even able to help prepare small in the household
rehab kitchen. “Nurse’s stations” have been eliminated. Services areas have becn created and

each service area resembles the décor of the household and houses documentation, a resident
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information center and medication storage. Medical equipment is stored in special storage areas
when not in use. Each Small House unit contains private rooms and ADA accessible private
bathrooms. Each Small House unit has homey fumishings. Warm color palettes are used for
wall treatments and flooring. While carpeting has been laid in the hallways to reduce noise, it
also lends to a homey fecl through out t:he facility.

Each household unit has primary assigned staff for consistency on every shift, every day.
Those residents that require more clinically complex care and arc grouped in one household unit,
while those residents who require a longer stay and have less acute medical issues are grouped
into others. A tenant of the Small House concept is that rather than staff directing decisions
based upon schedules and preferences, decisions should be driven by the residents’ wants and
néeds. Residents have the option of attending large or small group activities within their Small
House unit.

Each Small House unit has access to a state-of-the-art rehabilitation center, referred to as
Reclaim Rehabilitation™. Reclaim Rchabilitation™ features a modern approximately 3,400
square foot therapy‘ gym which provides optimal recovery and treatment amenities which in turn
allows for improved resident outcorﬁcs, for both short-term and long-term residents. The
rehabilitation gym resembles the actual home environment, consisting of a transitional
apariment, a kitchen, furnishings and a laundry area, all used for retraining residents before they
return home. Specialized equipment is strategically placed throughout the gym to accommodate
specific diagnoses and clinical needs. There arc also specially designed private treatment areas

which provide for the use of physical and occupational therapy modalities.
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4, NEED IN AREA

Most of Hickory Point’s residents come from within a 30-minute drive time of the
facility, which such primary service area is shown on the Arca Map, attached hereto.! Hickory
Point’s secondary market is sourced from within the larger Planning Area for Macon County,
which has a computed need for 100 additional beds. Because the Project consists of a 17-bed
addition to an existing building, the Project will provide health services to the same service area
population.

The building currently housing Hickory Point’s skilled nursing facility was constructed
with the Project in mind. Hickory Point is currently experiencing rapid fill-up of its skilled
nursing facility from individuals in the service area seeking skilled nursing care. Further,
Hickory Point’s sister facility, Fair Havens Christian Home, located in Decatur, has operated at
functional capacity over the past few years and continues to operate at high levels of occupancy
(97.7%). Those secking admission to Fair Havens Christian Home who are unable to be
admitted due to high occupancy now have the option of seeking admission at Hickory Point.

The proposed Project allows the Applicants to serve those individuals in need of skilled
nursing services who are currently part of Hickory Point’s retirement community as part of a
continuum of care, those who reside in the service area and those who may otherwise seek

admission into Fair Havens but are unable to given the continuing high occupancy at that facility.

! The Nielsen Company Area Map prepared on January 5, 2012.
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nursinghomes

Issue Date: March 2008, Posted On; 4/1/2008

From ‘nursing home’ to ‘home’: The small house movement
From the growing movement toward “small is better.” notes from a conceptual leader

by Judith Rabig and Donald Rabig

Individuals who seek long-term care have three dislinct needs: housing, assistance with activities of daily fiving, and
chronic disease management. The goal of nursing home retorm should be to provide satistactory performance in each of
these areus. While the culture change movement has provided the nursing home industry with many innovative,
humanistic, life-enhancing approaches, it is a piecemeatl tinkering with a delivery system that is lundamentatly flawed.
Culture change teaves largely in place the root cause of nursing home failure: the institution. To achieve the desired
outcomes ot good quality of care and good quality of life, the institution must be removed from the nursing-home
eguation.

“Smalt house” is the generic name lor a deinstitutionalized nursing home. Small house achieves deinstitutionalization by
reframing the philosophical view of Ihe person, changing the architecture, and reengineering the design of the
organization. Small house programs have been implemented, thus far, in a variety of ways. Tightly defined registered
trademarked models, such as the Green House®, 1 inosely defined consultant-led implementations that accommodate
individual organization choices,2 and internally envisioned and sclt-implemented versions all exist. While each
organization has configured its implementation in a unique manner, there are a sel of characteristics that define an
implementation as a small house (fable 1). A small house is an intentional community of 10 to 14 persons and a staff of
highly trained workers who live and work in a well-designed environment organized and operated around the humanistic
guiding principles of autonomy and dignity. When completely implemented, small house reframes the philosophical view
of the person, restores the metaphysical and physical home, provides good chronic disease management, and supplies
sutficient staff and equipment to support personal care.

Characteristics of a “Small House”

Architecture that includes:

s Conscious elimination of the signposts of the medical
model

= Small, self-contained homes or communal
apartments for 10 to 14 people ’
Policies for people who live in the house that include:

w Private room for each person : .
= Participate in their own care planning meetings

m Private bathreoms for each person with showers and
sinks with grooming space tilt-mirror and starage = Participation in household activilies of cheice

s Home configuration: front hall, living raom, dining = Resident selection of alt bathing choices
room, kitchen, and den
= Decisions honored regarding all aspects of care
& Shoit walking distances from bedrooms to living

areas = Opportunity to “make home" by-personalizing their
space, including bringing their own furniture and
m The people who five in he houses have access 1o all belongings

areas of the house

s Opporiunily 10 access outdoors easily, without
s Residential finishes and hardware barriers to navigate or the need lo secure
permission .

= Access lo ouldoor space/conneclions with nature
= Food at will

» Accessible details—windows, faucets, light switches,
doors, floor transitions, power gutlets, switches, & Visilors at will
P ATTACHMENT-12
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thermostlats

= Driveways, sidewalks, and exterior lighling that are

residential in size and configuration .
s Interiors that echo the neighborhood

= Lighting that meets guidelines for the aging eye

Staf structure that includes:

The house as the operating unit

Minimized bureaucracy

Shared leadership and decision making
Collaborative work processes

Self-scheduling

Interdisciplinary participation in quality assurance

Sell-directed learning

Dining that includes:

» A pleasant social dining experience
@ Access o food and drink at will

= Choice of mealtime, food, and quantity of food

u Greater communily access at will

Stafl training that includes:

Change and its effecl on people and organizations
Safe restoration of choice

The holislic view of alf people who live in the
house

Maslow’s hierarchy of needs
Habilitation in ADLs
Communication and collaboration

Caregiving elfectively for persons with cognitive
impairment

Alternate bathing practices
Leading and being led

Convivium, food practices, safe food handling

Clinical care that includes:

= Opportunities to.participate in food prep or cleanup

activities .

Technology that inclues:

m Electronic medical records
w» Wireless call sysiem
s Nuyrse-line staf voice mmmunication'system

a Lifi-free environment

Advanced training in geriatric.nursing for ail
nursing staff

Evidence-based clinical protocols
Management of polypharmacy

Early identification of problems refated to chronic
disease

A rabusl program of advanced directives
discussion

Therapies that are integrated into the househaold

Policies and practices that:

000062

Structure assessment and resourcing individyal
recrealion and diversion

Maximize the use of adaptive devices lo suppor
independence in ADLs

Reduce polypharmacy

Provide holistic management of depression
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= Computer access for people who live in the house = Provide. holistic management of pain

= [ncorporale the use of complementary therapies

Small house rejects the notion that long-term care must eliminate the medical modef and embrace the social model of
service delivery and instead seeks to blend both in an integrated approach to care. It has been the mistake of the current
system to focus on the medical model of service delivery, and also an error in logic to propose, allernatively, a strictly
social model of delivery when recipients have multiple chronic diseases. The small house philosophy moves away lrom
the ageist attitude that people who come 1o nursing homes are “broken,” unable, and in need of fixing, monitoring,
supervising, and protecting. It embraces the individual as someone who has strengths and weaknesses; a person who is
engaged in a personal and unique life journey, who has a rich file history, a future, wisdom, and knowledge; someone
who seeks to be independent, to have a role, lo be productive; someone entitled to autonomy, dignity, and choice,

The architectural and environmental paradigm of the small house is rooted in home, the warm, private, familiar,
comforting, safe, predictable, and convenient living spaces people have created for themselves all their lives.3 The goal
of its design is lo create a space that is a home, not a nursing home that is homelike.4 This requires those who design
nursing homes lo make substantial changes in their prevailing mind-sets; they must design the entire space as a home
and then embed in that home the required staff areas. The small house shouid be a place where the best communal
aspects of a home harmonize with the paris of home that promote privacy and individuality.

The design varies bul key elements include the communal heart of the small house, or hearth; it also includes an apen
kitchen, a dining room with a large table where family-style'meals are served, and a living room with a fireplace. Private
rooms are configured around the hearth within short walking distance to eliminate nosocomial {i.e., facility-induced)
wheelchair use. Roomns are equipped with a ceiling lift and a private bath with a shower. Other areas-that are
incorporaled include a spa-like bathing room, a small office, a utility area, and a den, and access lo outdoor space that is
gated and fenced, with easy access lor elders to move in and out.

Traditional nursing home staif have been organized iri a 19th-century industrial model, with a steep bureaucracy,
departmental structures, and disenfranchised direct-care workers receiving top-down communication. Staff is viewed as
interchangeable, and their satisfaction is secondary to efliciency and completed work quotas and schedutes. Stafl work
is focused on satisfying residents’ physical and safety needs, with'no time or instilutional imperative directed at meeting
their higher-level needs. A worker is valued Tor the ability to meet work quolas and schedufes. The result has been to

create high levels of job dissatislaction and high turnaver, which in turn produce poor quality of care, %7

Small house redesigns the organization as a decentralized model that views each house as a sell-contained, functioning
unit. Each house is staffed by a self-directed work leam of universal workers—cenified-nursing assistants (CNAs) who
have had advanced training that includes CPR, first aid, culinary skills and {ood safely, teamwork, and communication

~ skills. This team is empowered 1o make everyday decisions about workflow and house aperation, and warks
collaboratively with a clinical support team of nurses and therapists to plan and deliver care and services for the people
who five in the house. Directcare staffing-is enriched by shifting resources away from middle managers and into direct
care. CNA stalling is provided at a ratio of four hours per persaon per day and licensed nursing at 1.3 hours per person .
per day. ’

The goal of the smal! house clinical team is defined as maintaining individuals with chronic diseases al their maximum
state of wellness. Most healthcare professionals have been trained and are accuslomned to workingin the acute care
model. Education for the clinical staff is necessary 10 assist them in transilioning lo the chronic care model. The team is
highly engaged in person-centered care planning, and delivers clinical services using evidence-based protocals. Nurses
are given advanced educalion in the nursing process and chronic disease managemeni. Technology is employed to
suppofl the work of the team. Electronic medical records ease the burden of documentation and free nurses to engage in
direct clinical care. Wireless call systems and electronic beepers facilitate resident-lo-staff and stafi-to-stafl
communication.

Implementation

The process of implementing small house is fraught with challenges and obstructions. Implementation is not a grasstoots
process but rather a process led by strong leaders who can passionately afticulate, lead, and role-model, using what
Coliins calls a BHAG—a Big Hairy Audacious Goal—a clear plan and a guiding vision for deinstitutionalization that
leaders are able to communicate precisely to all members of thé organization.8 Leadership must. also be knowledgeable
aboul the consequences of change and know thal they, as leaders, will encounter inertia, fear, protection of self-
interesls, ingrained satistaction with the status quo, and other deep challenges. Those leaders undertaking small hause
implementation might heed Machiavelli, who suggested thal “the stake that the minority have in preserving their cenain
place in the status quo is far stronger than the stake that the majority have in bringing about an uncertain alternative.”9
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tmplementation of the program is an orderly, well-defined series of steps that are necessary to achieve the desired
outcomes. Leadership does involve staff in various aspects of configuring and implementing the plan, bul does nal
surrender the plan to the staff. The process can be divided into four distinct phases: feasibility, conceptualization,
stralegizing, and implementation. Table 2 outlines the components of these phases.

Phases of Smalil House
Implementation

I. Feasibility 3 months - 1 year
= Exploralion of the small house program by principle aclors & decision makers
w Financial feasibility analysis

s Selection of consuitants
l. Conceptualization 3 - 6 months

a [dentify sité! land

= Select architect and designers
= Preliminary design

= Regulatory review

Secure financing

= Map projec! activities & creale timeline
iit. Strategizing 12 — 14 months

= Construction
= Syslems mapping

= Stalf reconliguration

Design policies & procedures

Training

s Quality assurance design & configuration
V. Actualization 1 year:

‘ = Move in
& Survey for licensure and certification

= System refinement & evaluation

Organizations interested in implementing smalk house face many challenges, including regulatory, financial, and change
management. Yel experience has demonstrated that the greatest challenge to full implementation is the long history ot
leaders and stalf with the prevailing paradigm. The decisions needed at each phase of implementation can easily slip
back into the institutional way of doing business. Outside advisers and consultants with experience in implementing and
operating successfut small houses can prevent costly errors or a partially successfut implementation.
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National Alliance of Small Houses (NASH)

To assist others who are contemplating small house adoption, innovators who are currently operating houses have
formed the National Alliance of Small Houses (NASH). NASH is an affiliate of the nonprofit Institute to Transform Senior
Lite (IT'S Life}, and is exclusively for those operating or planning lo operate a small house. NASH will provide access to
in-depth information and a network of support, as well as foster a comprehensive research initiative, collaboratively refine
those systems and processes that support the modei, create opportunities for staff at various sites to easily interact and
exchange informalion, sponsor conferences, Webcasts and other learning opportunities, and provide a database of
suppliers, materials, and products with user comments about their experiences using products.

While early results have been promising, the ability of the smali house model to improve quality of life and quality of care
canisistently and in a sustained manner gver time, and in a variety of leadership, awnership, and case-mix situations, is
untested. There is an obligalion on the part of adopters Yo gather data and 1o report results. NASH intends to establish a
database of information about existing small houses and to toster and support research initiatives to examine the various
Outcames and analyze the various components of the program.

.While solid evidence is needed to promote widespread adoption of a small hause, there is certainly an incenlive to create
sufficient numbers of operaling models in various locations so that adequate research can be undertaken. Only then can
well-grounded assertions be made about the wisdom ol widespread implemeniation of the small house. :

Judith Rabig, RN, PhD, is President of Rabig Consulting in New York Gity, and Executive Director of the National
Alliance of Small House Projects (NASH}. Far more information, please phone (212) 933-0645, e-mail
jrabig@nyc.rr.com, or visit hitpJ/www.smalthousealliance.org. Donald Rabig is Vice-President of Rabig Consutting. He
can be reached at (212) 933-0645 or e-mail drabig@nyc.rr.com, ‘

To send your comments to the authors and editars, e-mail jrabigd308@timagazine.com.
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Note: This manuscript is a typescript of a paper that appears in the Journal of
the American Geriatrics Society (JAGS) in June 2007. The citation is: Kane,
RA. Lum,T. Y., Cutler, L. J., Degenholz, H.B., & Yu, Tzy-Chyi (2007). Resident
Outcomes in Small-House Nursing Homes: A Longitudinal Evaluation of the Initial
Green House Program. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society, 55 {6) :832-839,
2007. The published article, which will have slight editing differences, can also be
found at. http://www blackwell-synergy.com/toc/jgs/55/6 . The copyright belorgs to
JAGS. More information on Green House and smali-house research at University of
Minnesota can be found on the website of the University of Minnesota Long-Teérm Care
Resource Center at http://www.hpm.umn.edu/ltcresourcecenter/
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Abstract

OBJECTIVES: To detenmine the cffécts of a small-house nursing home model, THE
GREEN HOUSE ® (GH), on residents’ reported outcomes and quality of care.
DESIGN: Two-year longitudinal quasi-experimental study comparing GH residents with
residents at two comparison sites using data collected at baseline and three follow-up
intervals. SETTING: .Four 10-person GHs, the sponsoring nursing home for those
GHs, and a traditional nursing home with the same owner. PARTICIPANTS: All
residents in the GHs (40 at any time) at baseline and three 6-month follow-up intervals,
and 40 randomty selected residents in each of the two comparison groups.
INTERVENTION: The GH alters the physical scale environment (small-scale, private
rooms and bathrooms, residentiai icitchcn, dining room, and hearth), the staffing
model for professional and certified nursing assistants, and the philosophy of céirc.
MEASUREMENTS: Scales for 11 domains of resident quality of life, emotional
well-being, satisfaction, self- reported health, and functiona! status were derived from

intervicws at four points in time. Quality of care was measured ustng indicators

 derived from Minimum Data Set asscssments. RESULTS: Controlling for baseline

characteristics (age, sex, activities of daily living, date of admission, and proxy
interview status), statistically significant differences in self-reported dimensions of quality |
of life favored the GHs over one or both comparison groups. The quality of carc in fhc
GHs at least equaled, and for change in functional status exceeded, the comparison
nursing homes. CONCLUSION: The GH is a promising model to improve quality of lifc
for nursing home residents, with implications for staff developmerit and medical director

roles.,
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Resident Qutcomes in Small-House Nursing Homes:

A Longitudinal Evaluation of the Initial Green House Program

Aftera éﬁﬁcal 1986 Institute of Medicine report,' regulatory reform in nursing homes was
launched, aimed at improved quality a;sscssmcnt, menitoring, and enforcement. A 2001 Institute
of Medicine report noted improvements in overal! health care but little reduction of societal
dread of nursing homes? or improvement in quality of life.> The problems of maintaining a sense
of well-being in a nursing home are well documented in decades of anthropological,
ethnographic, and ethics studies. " Efforts to combat residents’ leamed helplessness with
increased choices have resulted in measurable health benefits.'*"

A movement for culture change in nursing homes has gathered force since 1995,
embracing transformed physical environments (e.g., smaller-scale, more-private rooms and baths
and household-type neighborhoods for dining and occasionally co‘nking), transformed staff roles
with more cmpowenmcent of line staff, and a philosophy of individualized care.'™'® The *Eden
Alterpativc,” a set of principlés overlaid on existing nursing homes to flatten hierarchies, invest
decision-making in residents and frontline staff, and normalize nursing home life, addressed
psychosocial problems of residents, such as loneliness, boredom, helplessness, and lack of
meaning '’ Eden training has been widely sought, but the few formal evaluations had
unimpressive resitlts,'*'® suggesting that, without more-systemic changes in nursing homes, this
model will have limited effects. In contrast, THE GREEN HOUSES (GH) envisages a radically
reconfigured nursing home.” The current study determines the effect of the GH on the quality
of care in nursing homes and compares the quality of life of GH residents with that of those in
conventional nursing homes. It was hypothesized that resident quality of life and satisfaction
would be greatcr in the GH than in the comparison settings and that functional status and guality-

of-care indicators would be at least equal to those of the conventional nursing homes.
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METHOD |

. Design

The organization sponsoring the first GH to be implemented considered that randomization of
residents to the GH was unfeasible, partly because money was initially raised to relocate the first
20 residents from a locked dementia care unit, Instead, the intervention was tested in a
longitudinal quasi-experimental design. Two comparison settings were used: the sponsoring
nursing home (Cedars) and another nursing home of the same nonprofit owner on a similar
campus in a Mississippi community approximately 90 miles away (Trinity). Data came from in-
person interviews with residents, family members, and line staff and from abstraction

of the nursing home Minimum Data Set (MDS) for times preceding and most proximate to in-
person data collection. (This first set of results reports dala from and about residents and does
not d;:scribe the methods ar.1d measures for studying family and staff outcomes.) The University
of Minnesota institutional review board approved the study, informed consent u:'as obtained for
all prim.;ary data collection.

The two comparison groups, Cedars and Trinity, each have strengths and limitations, The
Cedars group was susceptible to contamination by having.a shared administmtion with the GH
and was potentially influenced by the GH planning and the ultimate goal of moving all residents
to GHs; this could have led to spin-off improvements in the Cedars group or poorer results at
Cedars because of neglect of the traditional nursing home and concentration on the GH.
Although under the same ownership and cxp.eriencing similar local conditions, Trinity is a
smaller nursing home with a sub-acute ;:apability. The Trinity group represents the *‘natural
history'’ of residents in a traditional nursing home setting in the same region and time period.
Sample
Figure 1 displays the sample for each setting at each time period. Green House The GH sample
comprised the 40 people who were scheduled to move to the GHs at baseline and the

current GH census at each of the three follow-up periodsF6 months, 12 months, and 18
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months. All told, 53 GH residents were eligible over the successive data collection pcriods;,
52 of whom were in the sample. Tcn of the GH sample members died over the |8-month
period, and two were discharged.

(Figure | about here.)
Cedars
During the study period, the maximum census remaining at Cedars was 80. At baseline, a
random sample of 40 residents was sought, excluding residents who were comatose,
vegelative, or in end-stage palliative care; nine of the initial group approached dcclined to
particip-atc. [n subsequent waves, to acquire as much ha_sclinc data as possible from
residents who might later move to GHs, the Cedars sample was enlarged, witH a goal of 70
per time period. The added sample members at all follow-up waves were randomly
se!ectcd.‘ The final Cedars sample sizes were 67, 71, and 64 for the three follow-up waves,’
with refusals from three, zero, and one person, respectively. The only live discharges from
Cedars were to GHs, affecting six sample members; 22 of the Cedars sample died during
the study perniod.
Trinity
Trinity had a capacity of 65 beds, 15 of which were in a Medicare unit. A sample of 40
residents was sought from the non-Medicare portion of Trinity, using the same exclusion
criteria as at Cedars. The Trinity sample at the three follow-up waves was 39, 36, and 37,
respectively. Sixty-six peopie partticipated from Trinity; 18 sa.mplc members died over the 18
months, and four were discharged alive.

Sample for Quality Indicators

The sample in all three settings for quality indicators (QIs) is larger than the sample for
direct data collection. It comprised ali those in the settings during each of three 6-month

time periods, because it used MDS records for each setting.
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Intervention

GHs are self-contained dwellings for seven to 10 residents needing nursing home levels of
care. The physical environment is residential, offering residents opportunities for

privacy (with private rooms and full bathrooms) and for community (with a residential-
style kitchen where méals are prepared on site, communal dining tables, hearth areas, and
accessible outdoor space). The GH avoids nurses’ stations, medication carts, and public
.address systems. The frontline care staff members, who are certified nursing assistants
{CNAs) assigned to -a single GH, have broadened roles, including cooking, housekeeping,
personal laundry, personal care to residents, implementation of care plans, and assisting
residents to spend time a(.:cording to their preferences. Al.l professional personnel
mandated in regulations (e.g., nurses, physicians, socia[.workers, dietitian, pharmacist,
therapy staff, and activity personnel) form visiting clinical support teams that provide
specialized assessments and order and supervise care within their spheres of expertise, The
CNAs report to an administrator {called a **guide’”) rather than to a nurse. Philosophically,
the GH model emphasizes individual growth and development and a good quality of life
under normal rather than therapeutic circumstances.”” A group of GHs on a campus or
scattered in a residential ncighborhood operales under a nursing home license and
within a state’s usual Mcdicaid reimbursement amounts, although a red‘istribution of
expenditures could occur.

Four GHs were built on the campus of a nonprofit retirement complex comprising
independent housing, assisted living, and a nursing home licensed for 140 beds. In June
2003, residents from the sponsoring nursing home occupied these GHs; two GHs were
mnitially earmarked for residents in the lockcd dementia care unit (which was then closed),
and residents from the general nursing home population occupied the others. The latter were
filled from a list of residents voluntarily interested in moving, taken in order of the length of

time that the residents had been on the campus. Residents alrcady in the nursing home
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or on the campus similarly filled vacancies arising in the GHs after the initial move-in,
again in order of length of time on the campus. A fuiler description of the general model,
i’s theoretical rationale, and its first implementation has been published.*

Data Cellection

Data collectors (16 in total) from the local area received a 40-hour training at ¢cach wave.
The resident protocol included administration ofinformed consernt, a component
administered to each resident {requiring about 45 minutes), and a component administered to
staff about each resident’s functioﬁing. Intervicwers physically visited all residents at each
wave of data collection and tumned to a family proxy only if rcsidcqls could not be roused
for an interview or could not respond cohérently to successive ciucstions. {The protocol for
proxy use mirrored the procedures employed when the quality-of-life measures were
developed and found reliable for persons with substantial dementia.?") Eligible proxy
respondents must have visited the resident in the last month, and most were more intensively
involved. Baseline data collection pertaining to the period before move-in to GHs began
in May 2003. The 6-month follow-up began in December 2003, the next wave in May
2064, and the final wave in December 2004. Each data collection phase took approximately

6 weeks to complcte.

Measures

Quality of Life

Eleven domains of quality of life were measured: physicgl comfort, functional competence,
privacy, dignity, meaningful activity, relationship, autonomy, food enjoyment, spirituai
well-being, sccurity, and individuality. These domains scales comprised three to six items;
each is standardized to a theoretical range of 4 to 1, by dividing the total score by the number
of items. Most items used a 4-point ordinal scale (45 often, 3 5 sometimes, 2 5 rarely, 1 5

never); reverse coding was used for items so that a higher score always representcd
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better quality of life. Those unable to respond to a Likert-type scalc after threc attempts
(due to cognitive limitations) were asked the question with a ““mostly yu‘.;s" or “‘mostly no™
choice. After empirical testing, these responses were extrapolatcd into the 4 to 1 scale, with a
score of 3.8 for the affirmative and 1.5 for the negative responscs. These measures have been
tested in a large sample and have reliable scale properties, test-retest reliability, and
concurrent validity, and the domain scales have been shown to compnise separate but

related measures of an underlying quality-of-life construct.’

Health and Functioning

Residents rated their health as exceilent, very good, good, fair, or paor. Ability to perform
éctivitiesof daily living (ADLS) ““in the last few months’™ was measured according to sclf-
report using five items: bathing, dressing, transferring from bed, using the toilet, and
cating. Ability to perform instrumental activities of daily living (IADLs) was measured using
six items: taking medicine, using the telcphone, preparing food, light housekeeping,
managing money, and doing laundry. For all ADL and IADL items, residents were asked
whether they did the function by themselves, got a little help, got a lot of hclp, did not do it
at all, or were not all(‘)wcd to do the task; higher scores represented greater impairment.
Satisfaction

Global satisfaction was measured using three items: satisfaction with your nursing home as
“‘a place to live,”” and as “‘a place to receive care’’ (both on a 4-point scale from very satisfied
to very dissatisfied) and liketihood of recommending the setting to others (on a 4-point scale
from very likely to very unlikely).

Emotional Well-Being

Emotional well-being was measured using an adaptation of a scale previously developed,*
whereby residents were asked to rate how they had been feeling ‘lately’” on 10 positive
or negative cmotional states: lonely, happy, bored, angry, worried, contented, sad, afraid,

interested in things, and looking forward to the future; response choices were often,
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sometimes, rarcly, and never. An additive scale with a range of lO'to 40 was developed by
reverse coding the negative emotions; alpha reliability was 0.74.

Other Variables

Also included in the dala set were scx, age, and time since admission (in months). For
case-mix adjustment, ADLs (bed mobility, cating, transferring, and toileting) and
cognitive functioning were extracted from the MDS and calculated using methods
developed previously.”?* Social activity was measured accordihg to self-reported frequency
of participation in nine activities: leaving the grounds for organized activities, leaving
the grounds for privately orpanized activities, staying away overnight, having an
.overnight guest in the nursing home, having a good conversation with any other resident,
doing solo activitics of personal inlerest, receiving visits from farmily or {riends, and
communicating by phonc with family or friends.” The response set was every day, more
than once a week, about weekly, less than weekly but more than once 2 month, about once a
month, or not at all. -

Quality Indicators

The 24 QIs were construcled from the MDS for residents in the GH, in Cedars, and in Trinity
using assessments for the following time periods: between baseline and 6 months,
between 6 and 12 mbnths, and between 12 and 18 months after the GHs were operating.
(Although Cedars and GHwere a single nursing home for federal MDS reporting, the data
were separated for these analyses.) The QIs were constructed by adapting methods used
previously®® to include indicator-specific clinically derived adjustors as used in evaluations of

quality of several managed care programs for elderly nursing home residents.”’?

Drata Analysis
Stata version 9 was used for all data analyses (StataCorp., College Station, TX). Selection

effects were examined by comparing baseline characteristics (independent and dependent
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vanables) of the sampled residents who went to the GH, remained at Cedars, or were in
Trinity. Qutcomes were analyzed using multivariate panel regression analyses using the
random-effects regression models; these used the data from the three follow-up periods over
18 months; baseline data werc used only for case-mix adjustment. Wave of data collection
was accounted for using dummy variables. The main independent variable was the
resident's status as a GH, Cedars, or Trinity resident at the time of data coliection. Data
from the baseline intcrviews were used only to check for selection effects.

All analyses for self-reported outcomes were controlled for sex, age, time since admission,
baseline ADL from the MDS assessment just before the subject entered the sz.ample, and self-
report versus proxy report. Because MDS cognitive function and pro:'(y status were collinear,
the analyses werc run separately, adjusting for baseline MDS cognitive function, with almost
identical results. The results that control for proxy status are therefore reported as more
reflective of cognitive status at the exact time of the resident interviews. The difference in
residents’ quality of life between the three nursing homes were analyzed using the random-
effects Tobit model, chosen to take into account the nature of repeated measurements in this
data set and floor and ceiling effects. Floor effects were absent in all quality-of-life .
domains except for autonomy (3%) and functional competence (17%). Ceiling effects werc
present in most domain scales, ranging from moderate (e.g., 24% for privacy and 32% for
the food enjoyment subscale) to severe (e.g., 53% for dignity). Differences in sclf-rcported
health, satisfaction, and emotional well-being were studicd using random effects Ordered
Probit regression models, chosen because the measures for these analyses were ordinal.*
Differences in self-reported ADLs and [ADLs were studied using random-cffects
population-averaged linear models. Testing was undertaken for possible interactions
between proxy status and setting (Cedars, Trinity) in all models using a post estimation
Wald test.

The differences in MDS QIs between GH and the other two nursing homes werc
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" examined using random-effects logit regression combining data from the three follow-up

periods and including dummy variables for wave of data collcction.

RESULTS

Samples at Baseline
Only two significant differences at bascline were found across the groups; residents

remaining at Cedars had a sigmificantly longer length of stay than those who went to

the' GHs, and the GH had more African-American residents: 25% at baseline, compared
with_S% at Trinity and Cedars (Table 1). The group who moved from the dementia speciat
care unit accounted almost entirely for the difference in race; eight of those 20 residents
were African American. No significant differences were found in age, sex, self-reported
health, baseline ADLs, cognitive function, length of stay, or proxy status. No baseline
differences were found in any of the 19 baseline outcornes measured (data available from
author)..

(Insert Table 1 here))

Effects on Resident Qutcomes
Quality of Life
Table 2 shows the results of random-cffects Tobit regressions of quality of life. GH
residents reported better quality of life than Cedars residents on seven of the 11 quality of life
subscales (privacy, dignity, mcaningful activity, relationship, autonomy, fo;od enjoyment,
and individuality). GH residents reported higher quality of life than Trinity residents on
four of the 11 measures (privacy, dignity, autonomy, and food enjoyment). GH residents
did not report lower quality of life on any of the || measures than residents in Cedars or
Trinity.

(Insert Table 2 here)

Table 3 shows the results of random-effects Ordered Probit regression on self-reported
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health, satisfaction, emotional well-being, functioning, and mobility. GH residents reported
better eﬁotional heaith than residents in Cedars. There was no statistically signi.ﬁcant
difference in self-reported health, ADLs, or IADLs across the three nursing homes. The
results of the random-effects Ordered Probit regression on satisfaction showed that,
GH residents reported significantly higher satisfaction with the nursing home as a placc to
live than residents of Cedars and Trinity and significantly higher satisfaction as a place
to get care than residents of Cedars. They were also more likely to recommend the facility
to others. GH residents had significantly belter emotional wcll-being scores than Cedars
residents.

(Inscrt Table 3 here))

The test for possible intcractions between outcomes and proxy status revealed only
one significant interaction. The usc of proxy informants was associated with lower
meaningful activity scores for Cedars residents (- 0.381 vs - 0.201, P =.001).

At bascline, no differences were found according to sectting for any of the nine social
activities measured. With the three follow-up samples combined and with the usual
controls, the likelihood of participating in organized activities in the facility (e.g., games,
performances, religious services) was greater at Cedars (coefficicnt 0.56, P 5.002) and
Trinity (coefficient 0.65, P 5.001}) than at the GH, but organized trips away from llhe
setting were less likely at Cedars (coefficient _ 0.61, P 5.001) and ¢ven less likely at Trinity
(coefficient_ 0.80, P<.001). The GH group was just as likely to engage in solo activities,
receive phone calls and visits, take privately arranged trips from the setting, or have an
overnight guest as the comparison groups.

-Effects on Quality of Care

Table 4 sl.wws the effect of GH on MDS QIs relative to Cedars and Trinity. The

GH had a lower prevalence of residents on bed rest, fewer residents with little or no

activity, and lower incidence of decline in late-loss ADLs than Cedars. The GH had a lower
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prevalence of depression and lower incidence of deci'mc in late-loss ADLs but a higher

prevalence of incontinence than Trinity. Three of the 24 QIs could not be calculated because
of sample size; therc were no occurrences of new fractures in the GH or Trinity in the 18
months and four new fractures at Cedars, there was no dehydration in the GH and only
one occurrcnce each at Trinity and Cedars, and there was no fecal impaction in any of the
scttings.

(Insert Table 4 about here.)
- DISCUSSION
Summary
The results strongly favor the GH and suggest that it achieved its stated goals. GH
residents had higher quality of lifc on nine of the 11 domains than did residents at Cedars
and on four domains than did residents at Trinity, were much more satisfied than
residents in either comparison setting, and had better emotional well-being than residents
at Cedars. On the Qls, the GH was superior to Cedars on three indicators and to Trinity on
two. The GIH had a lower incidence of decline in late-loss ADL functioning than either of the
other two settings. The only difference favoring a comparison group for the 20
indicators that could be calculated was the higher rate of incontinence in the GH than at
Trinity. On 16 indicators, GH performance equaled that of the comparison groups.
| The finding that GH residents equaled the comparison groups in seven areas of social
activity allays concerns that the GH model offers insufficient resident stimulation,
because organized activities arc underemphasized, and although GH residents were less
likely to participate in organized activities, they were more likely than either comparison
group to participate in organized social outings off the grounds. Furtherrnore, no reduction
and some improvement was found in quality-of-life appraisals of meaningful activity and

relationships.
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Limitations

The study coul& not be randomized, and although the samples were similar in important ways,
they differed in age and race. They may also have differed in unmeasured ways

related to selection for the GH, given that the init‘ial fill-up of two GHs and all
replacements were done from a list of residents who volunteered. The sample was small
and entailed studying a moving target, because the intervention evolved during the period.
Generalizability to other settings establishing a GH and to a GH implemented across an
entire nursing home can be done only cautiously. Results might also be different if
residents moved to a GH from their own homes rather than from a traditional nursing
home. Given the simultaneous innovations, it was impossible to isolate how various parts
of the intervention—environments, scale, programming, staff arrangements, and
philosophy—contributed to the results.

The sample was too small for an analysis of mortality. As GH replications increase,
further research should examine mortality and hospitalization outcomes, pethaps using
common datasets across GH projects.

Residents who entered the GH between waves werc included in the study. The
analytical models were repeated with dummy variables for the wave of entry to determine
whether variable exposure to the GH was associated with differential outcomes. This
analysis, available upon request, did not reveal any systcrqatic differences in the effect of the
GH on outcomes for residents who lived there for longer or shorter periods of time.

Staff was aware of being observed as part of an experiment. The risk of a Hawthorne
effect here is greater because of the media, scholarly, and community attention lavished on
the GH group and the lack ofén ‘‘attention’” tntcrvention in the comparison settings. To
partilally test for this, the analyses were repeated using only the 30 individuals who had been
in the GHs for the entire project beriod; it was determined that effects did not wanc (analyses

available on requést). Nonetheless, in this real-world experiment, it cannot be
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discounted that a Hawthorne effect persisted through the whole study period, given

that GH guides and even frontline personnel have been recognized as trainers for GH
replications around tHe country. To the extent that a dramatically different work pla}.:c and
living environment results in sustained levels of enthusiasm among staff, residents, and
families, the GH may be considered a

success, but future replications should be studied in detail to dctermine whether
“‘normatization’’ occurs and, if sa, to what level of performance.

Impli-cations

The GH entails sweeping and comprehensive changes, so much so that some proponents

2010 Many of the changes

pérceive it as the deinstitutionalization of a nursing home.
required abandoning orthodoxy residents are in kitchens when meals are cooked despite
hypothetical risks of infections, rcsi&ents may be out of eye range of staff on patios or in their
own rooms, maintenance therapy and activity tasks are largely done by frontline CNA-level
staff rather than by aides in the specialized departments of traditional nursing homes, the
direct supervisory control of charge nurses is reduced.

Overall the positive differences between the GH and Cedars were greater than those
‘between the GH and Trinity. This suggests that there were no positive spin-offs because
of GH implementation on the campus, and reinforces the sponsor's view of the difficulties
in operating 2 GH and a traditional model on the same campus. Indeed, based on its
experience w;ilh the first four GHs, Cedars opened six more 12-person GHs. By November
2006, 112 residents were housed in 10 GHs, and the traditional facility was reduced to 28
beds, many used for a newly certified Medicare unit. In 2005, the Robert Wood Johnson
Found.ation began a replication project aimed at enabling 50 GHs to be opened in 5 years;
projects participating in this initiative carry the trademark, GREEN HOUSE®. As the GH

programs and sumilar small-house nursing homes proliferate, an accompanying rescarch

agenda is imperative. Future work should examine processes of implementation and
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management for sustaining the innovation. Incvitably, roles such as director of nursing or
social work, activities staff, and in-service de‘}eloper will change if nursing homes convert
entirely to GHs, as will policies for admission and room transfer. Attending physicians and
medical directors will be challenged to adapt their procedures so as to provide excellent
chronic disease management in disagpregated nursing homes where CNA-level staff
members, with whom physicians typically have less communication, are more central to the
care and more empowered to monitor according to physician direction. Visits to GH
residents are more likely to resemble a home-care visit than a nursing home visit. The
GH also poscs opportunities and challenges to providing post—hospi_tal recuperation,

rehabilitation, and palliative care within GHs themselves.
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Table 1. Charactenistics of Residents at Bascline

Green House* Cedars Trinity
Sample size 40 40 40
Percent female © B0.O _ 87.5 75.0
Pcrcent White 75.0 95.0% 95.01
Per'cent proxy 62.5 70% 50

Score  (SE) Score (SE)

Score (SE)

Age in years, mean 81.4 10.42 87.0 9.24) |
| Days from admission 682 (55226) 1,193 (15S5)
Cognitive performance || 2.8 (192) 37 (1.39)

Activities of daily living] 697  (5.65)  8.58 (5.76)

886  (7.68)§
1,108 (988.0)
32 (1.75)

8.38 {5.84)

* Bivariate analyses usc the Green House as the reference for tests of significance. One-way
analysis of variance (ANOVA) or Chi-square tests were used depending on the type of

variable. SE in the column heads stands for Standard Ervor.
" Significant difference from Green House (p. =0.006).
I Significant difference from Grecn House (p. = 0.008)
% Significant difference from Greene House (p=0.001)

|| Cognitive performance is measured from the M3S: the possible score range is 0 to 6 with the

higher scores reflecting more severe cognitive impairment,

1 Ability to perform activitics of daily living 15 measured on a scale of 0 to 16, with higher scores

reflecting greater ADL impairment.
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Table 2. Effects of Green House on Quality of Life Scales

Cedars* Trinity*

Quality of Lifc Scale  Coef.? (S.E) p-value Coef. (S.E) p-value
Comfort -0.022 (0.07) 0.74 0.06 {0.08) 0.44
Functional competence -0.122  (0.18) 0.48 -0.09 (0.19) 0.62
Privacy 0818 (0.12) 0.000 -0.27 (0.14) 0.05
Dignity -0.690 (0.13) 0.000 -0.56 0.15) 0.000
Meaningful activity -0.261 (0_08)- 0.003 —0.67 (0.10) . 0.79
-Relationship -0.353  0.11) 0.002 -0.08 (0.13) 0.51
Autonomy -0.439  (0.12) 0.000 -0.27 (0.14) 0.05
Food enjoyment -0.772  (0.16) 0.000 -0.65 0.18) 0.000
Spiritual well-being -0.266  (0.13) 0.033 0.22 (0.14) .0. 12
Security | -0.108  {0.05) 0.038 0.06 (0.06) 0.34
Individuality -0.475  (0.10) 0.000 -0.16 (0.12) 0.17

" Random effects Tobit regression analyses with the Green House as reference group, controlled
for gender, age, length of stay, proxy respondent in resident interview, baseline ability to
{Jcrform activities of daily living (from the Minimum Data Set) and wave of data collection.

Coef. stands for coefficient.

T Each quality of life scalc is standardized from

quality of life.
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Table 3. Effects of Green House on Self-reported Health, Satisfaction and Functioning

Cedars* Trinity*

Coef.* (S.E)* p-value Coef (S.E) p-valuc

Self-reported health + -0.03  (0.16) 0.86 -0.17 (0.18) 0.37
Emotional well-being -1.82 (0.7 0.01 -1.68 (0.89) 0.06
Satisfaction with: §

--nursing home as a place to -£75 0 (0.29) 0.000 -1.11 03D 0.000
live

--nursing home as a place for  -1.32  (0.29) 0.000 -0.64 (0.32) 0.04

carc

Would recommend to othersf  -1.45  (0.27) 0.000 -0.67 (0.29) 0.02

Activities of daily living 042  (044) 034 0.48 (0.50) 034
(ADL) ¢
Instrumental activities of daily 0.23  (0.48)  0.63 025  (0.54)  0.64

living (IADL) #

* Random effects-tegression analyses with the Green House as reference group, controlled for gender,
age, length of stay, proxy respondent in resident interview, baseline ADL from Minimum Data Set, and
wave of data collection. Abbreviations in the column headings are Coef, for eocfficicnt and S.E. for
standard error, . ‘

T A single item measured on a scale of 5 10 1, with 5 reflecting the best self-perceived health.

1 Composite measure of 10 emotions, each measured on a scale of 1 to 4. The summed scalc has a
theoretical range of 10 to 40, with a higher score reflecting higher reported emotional well-being.

§ Each of the 2 items was measurcd scparately on a scale of 4 to 1, with 4 reflecting the greatest
satisfaction.

|| Mecasured on a scale of 4 to 1 with 4 being the greatest likelihood of recommending,.

Y Five ADL items each measured with a 0-3 score were summed for a theoretical range of 010 15, with a
higher score reflecting greater ADL impairment.

# Six [ADL itcms, each measured on a scale of 0 to 3 were summed for a theoretical range of 0-18, with a
higher score reflecting greater [ADL impainment. ‘
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Table 4. Effects of Green House on Quality Indictors

Quality Indicator* Cedars Trinity

Qdds Odds

Ratio (S.D.)* p-value Ratic (S.) p-value

Incidence of new fractures F NA* NA NA NA NA NA
Prevalence of falls 2.10 (1.00) 0.12 2,04 (1.11) 0.18
Prevalence of behavioral symptoms 0510 (0.25) 0.17 1.56 (0.85) 041
Prevalence of depression { 0.967 (0.39) 0.94 2.47 (1.05)  0.03
Prevalence depression without 0.764 (0.44) 0.64 1.72 (1.02) 035

antidcpressants.

Usc of 9 or more medications 1.492 (0.73) 041 0.88 (0.47) 0.80
Incidence of cognitive impa‘irmcnt 1416 {(L.47} 0.74 212 (2.39) 0.50
Prevalence of incontinence. =|[ 1304 (0.85) 068 . 021 (0.16) 0.3
-Prevalence of incontinence without toilet  NA NA NA NA NA NA
plan . §
Prevalence of indwelling catheters - 1.049 (0.83) 0.95- 248 - (2.09) 0.27
Prevalence of fecal impaction | NA NA NA NA NA NA
| Prevalence of urinary tract infections 1.595 (0.7;1) 031 2.44 (1.17) 0.06
Prevalence of weight loss 0.840 (0.27) 0.59 0.92 (0.32) 0.80
Prevalence of tube feeding 1151 (0.75) 0.83 0.32 (0.25) 0.14
Prevalence of dehydration § NA NA NA - NA NA Na
Prevatence of bedfast residents || 3696 (2100 002 042 (029) 021
Incidence of decline of late loss activities 3.012 (1.52) 0.03 388 (2.05) 001

of daily living (ADL) §
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Incidence of decline of range of motion  1.798 (1.01) 0.29 1.15 (0.7%) 0.82
Provalence of antipsychotic usc —high ~ 1.867  (1.02) 025 0.41 027) 0.8
risk

Prevalence of antianxiety / hypnotic 1413 (0.34) 0.56 242 (1.52} 0.16
medications

Prevalence of hypnatic use > 2 times 1.645 (1.25) 0.51 0.65 (0.55}) .61
Prevalence of daily physical restraints ~ 1.120  (0.58) 0.8 0.75 (0.43) 0.6
Prevalence of litlle or no activity ** 5.013 (2.68) 0.003 0.88 (0.54) (.81
Prevalence of stage 1-4 pressure ulcer L.i81 (0.66) 0.76 2.01 (1.18) 0.24

* Differences in Qs are analyzed with random-effects logit regression models with the Green House as

the reference group. Abbreviations in the table are S.D. for standard deviation, and NA for not

applicable. Each QI is created with speeific exclusions and adjustments, as applicabte ™%

Specifications for all Qls are available from the author, those with statistical significance are further in
these notes.

! Unable to calculate the becausc of small sample size and low incidence of new fractures and prevalence
of dehydration or fecal QI in the scttings. None of these adverse outcomes occurred at alf in the GH and
rarcly in the other settings for thc samples during entire 18 month period.

1 Adjusted for gender, age, cognitive performance score, CVA, and Alzheimer’s disease.

§ Unable to calculate because of skewness; 100% of the cligible population with incontincnce for this QI

in all 3 settings had no recorded toilct plans.

Il Adjusted for'comatoscfvcgctative state and end state di;case

4 Those iotally dependent in ADL, comatose/vegetative, or without a prior ADL assessment are
excluded. Adjustments were made for Cognitive Performance Score and Alzheimer’s disease.

«+ Comatose/vegetative excluded. No adjustments

000089 ATTACHMENT-12




CGroagn Houso Codars Xrin
Basaline [ 40 | [ 40 | [ 40 |
4 Admissions 2 Dlad l 30 Addod 3 Diod l 8 Added 6 Diad |
! —' 1 Ralocated” —l | r J
b
B-nordfy . a0
Foliow-Up +% 2 Rofusals
1 In Hospital
{ 2 Agroissions | 2 Died 15 Agdad | §| 17 Dled 8 Added s Dlod
1 Rolooatod? 4 Rafocated
12-—M0ﬂm 10 36
Foliow-Up 3 In Hospit 3 Roiuszals
[ 7 Admissions _l [ 70k | [ 7Adgea | & Diod [ 10 addea | 7 Dlack
1| 1 Rafoocatad
4 ) g
1g4dtonth 20 64 a7
Follaw-Ligr 1 Ralusal & Rafusals 2 Rofusals

Figure 1. Sample sizes and disposition at each time point of data collection.

Note. Each box shows the number of completed interviews at each time point at each site. Additions to
the sarmple at THE GREEN HOUSESs (GH) are duc to new admissions; at any time, the total Green House
capacity was 40. At Cedars and Trinity, subjects who died or relocated were replaced using random
sampling within the respective facility to kecp sample sizes stable. The sample-at Trinity dropped below
40 at subsequent waves because, after cxclusion of residents who were on Medicare and those who were
comalosé or vegctative, residents younger than 65 and those who refuscd, the eligible population was less
than 40,

* One resident who had relocated returned to Cedars at own and family request.

+ One resident was interviewed and died, and her replaccment was also intervicwed, accounting for the 41
subjects.

t After baseline, Cedars was oversampled in an attempt to acquire baselinc data from residents likely to
enter GH at subscquent periods, resulting in larger numbers of subjects.

§ At 6 months, onc¢ GH resident was asked to leave and went to another nursing home
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UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA

Twin Citées Campus - Natiooal LTC Resource Center MMC 197 Mayo
Dyivizion of Health Policy and Managemeat
410 Dcloveare Street SE
Schoo! of Public Health Minneapolis, MY 35433

QOfMce Location:

£-527 Mayo Mcmorial Buitding
Gr2/624-517}

Fax: 612/624-5434

Study of the Green Houses in Tupelo, MS
Summary as of November 2006 '

Sponsor: The Commonwealth Fund, New York City

2 Phases:
Phase | Study: Quasi-experimental evaluation of 4 Green [louses compared to 2 comparison
sites.
Phase 2 Study: [-year follow-up of the complete implementation of Green Houses in Tupelo.

Research Orpganization:  School of Public Health, University of Minncsota
Investigators: Rosalie A. Kane kanex002(@uran.cdu

Lois J Cutler cutle001{@umn.edu
Terry Lum (University of Minnesota School of Social Work)

Phase 1 Study

Data Collection

_[nterviews with all GH residents, ali GH linc stafl members, and family members for all Green
Housc residents at baseline and 3 more times at & months intcrvais.

—-Interviews with residents, linc staff members and resident family members at comparison sites.
--Observation at the Green Houses, post-occupancy evaluation studies

—~Qualitative interviews on implementation 1ssucs at baseline and’ fBllow -up intervals

~-MDS data

Hypothesis-testing

--compared o comparison groups:

{. GH residents will report better quality of life, be morc socially engaged, and will report better
_satisfaction.

7. GH family members will be more.engaged with their elder in NH, more satisfied with the elder’s
care, and more satisficd with their own relationship with the NH as a family member.

3. Line staff (Shahbazim for GH and CNA’s for comparison scttings) will know the residents under
their care better, wiil be more.likely to believe they can influcnce outcomes of the residents, will be
more satisficd with their jobs, and have a greatcr intent to stay in them. :

4. Al these results wnll be achieved with no dirainution in Quality Indicators (MDS}) at GH.

Findings:

All hypotheses strongly confimmed. Reparding the Qls, there were no significant differences
between GH pecformance and comparison settings in afl but | QI, and GH was statistically
significantly better than one or both comparison settings in s was as good as bolh comparison
sertings in 5 Qls.

For copies of measures and tables, and published papers, email Rosalic Kanc at kanex002(@umn.edu
or visit her website: hup:/Awww hpm.umn.edw/licresourcecentery
The website will be poputated with Green House material by Thanksgiviag 2006-
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
§1110.230(c) ALTERNATIVES

The Applicants considered the following alternatives to the proposed project:
1. Build a 30-bed addition to the existing structure;

2. Build a 5-bed addition to the existing structure;

3. Proceed with proposed Project to add a 17-bed addition.

Overview Of Needs To Be Addressed

There is a demand for admission into Hickory Point Christian Village, based upon early
fill-up rates at the facility since it opened in the second half of 2011. As of December 31, 2011,
68 residents were admitted to Hickory Point. Hickory Point’s sister facility, Fair Havens in
nearby Decatur, has historically experienced high occupancy levels and is currently operating at
an occupancy of 97.7%.

At approximately the same time in 2011 that Hickory Point was opening, Decatur
Memorial Hospital announced its intent to close its long term care unit. The Review Board
approved that discontinuation on August 16, 2011. The Macon County Planning Area now has a
computed need for 100 additional beds and most Macon County facilities are operating at or near
90% occupancy.

Alternative 1: Build a 30-bed addition to the existing structure

One alternative considered by the Applicant was to build a 30-bed addition to the existing
structure. Building a 30-bed addition would better allow Hickory Point to address the high
demand for admission as well as the calculated bed need in the Planning Area. Further, a larger
30-bed addition would have a lower construction cost per bed than a 17-bed addition.

A 30-bed addition, however, is not possible because the current lot size is too small to

accommodate a 30-bed addition. Therefore, the Applicant rejected this alternative.

9924037_2.DOC -1-
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Alternative 2: Build a 5-bed addition to the existing structure

| The Applicant also considered building a 5-bed addition. This alternative has lower
% overall construction costs than the proposed Project and this alternative would not require a
CON.

Even though this 5-bed alternative has benefits, it was rejected for three reasons: (i} it
fails to accommodate the anticipated demand of those individuals seeking admission to the
facility; (ii) this alternative would result in a higher construction cost per bed than the proposed
Project; and (iii) a 5-bed addition would not be consistent with the Small House concept that has
found more optimal social interaction with a 10-17 bed household unit.

Alternative 3: Proceed with the proposed Project

The alternative chosen contemplates a 17-bed expansion of the currently-existing 47-bed
skilled nursing facility. This alternative best addresses demand for admission into the facility as
well as the high utilization at Hickory Point’s nearby sister facility, Fair Havens Christian
Village. Additionally, this alternative best suits the size of the existing lot and the current zoning
permit allows for the construction of a 17-bed addition. A 64-bed facility also creates
operational. efficiencies and lower costs by allowing overhead costs to be spread more broadly
across the facility. This alternative is also the most cost-effective solution given the constraints

of the lot size and completes the “Small House™ concept as originally contemplated by the

Applicant.

For these reasons, the Applicant decided to proceed with this alternative.

9924037_2.00C 2
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Hickory Point Christian Village

Alternatives to the Proposed Project
Cost/Benefit Analysis

-

ALTERNATIVE | COSTS "~ | BENEFITS/LIMITATIONS

5

1. Build 30-Bed Addition Project cost estimated  at | 1. Benefits:

$3,700,000. --Would better allow Hickory
Point to address high demand
based upon early fill-up ratios
and Fair Havens high
occupancy,
--Addresses bed need in
Planning Area.

2. Limitation:
-- Lot size to small to build a
30-bed addition,

1. Benefits:
2. Build 5-Bed Addition to | Project cost  estimated at --Total construction cost would
Existing Structure $1,200,000. be less

--No requirement for CON,
--5 bed addition inconsistent
with Small House Concept.

2. Limitations:
--Fails to accommodate those
seeking admission to facility.
--Higher construction cost per

bed.
1. Benefits
3. Proceed with Proposed | Project cost estimated at --Addresses  demand  for
Plan $1,462,890. admission.

--Size of lot and zoning permit
allow 17-bed addition.

--Most cost effective solution
given the building constraints.

--Completion of Small House.

9924037 _2.D0C 3
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
SIZE OF PROJECT
CRITERION 1110.234(a)

Hickory Point Christian Village proposes to establish a 17-bed addition to its existing
skilled nursing facility which will include support, dietary and therapy areas. The proposed
Project totals approximately 7,502 gross square feet. As shown below, the Project complies with
the size of Project review criterion.

The 17-bed skilled addition has been designed in accordance with the “Small House”
concept, matching the “Small House” concept of the current facility, and the addition will
constitute the 5™ and final small houschold unit of the existing facility. As per IDPH
requirements, a nurse’s station with support spaces and a communal bath and shower are
included in the addition. Seven of the 12 rooms are private, all of the rooms will have private
baths, the 17-bed addition will contain a small therapy kitchen and dining room, which will be
served by a small warming kitchen. A floor plan of the 17-bed addition is attached, as well as an
architectural drawing of where the addition will be “attached” to the existing structure.

The size of the rooms in the 17-bed addition match the size of the rooms in the existing
facility. Because the Project will utilize functions of the existing building, the support spaces are
minimal in size, and the therapy and dietary kitchens are small but functional.

The proposed square footage by Departmental Area is included in this Application at
Attachment 9.

Size Comparison with State Standard

The Review Board rules set forth a range of 435-713 building gross square feet per bed.
The existing building of 31,820 bgsf together with the 7,502 square feet addition creates 64 beds.

The resulting 614.4 bgsf per bed falls well within the State standard.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD
General Long-term care 614.4 BGSF 435-713 BGSF N/A Yes

9936825_2.00C
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION §1110.234
PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

The following chart documents that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization

of the Applicant shall meet or exceed the State Standard.

UTILIZATION
FISCAL DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
YEAR SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
2011 General long N/A N/A 00%
term care
2012 General long N/A 68% 90%
term care
2013 General long N/A 95% 90%
term carc
2014 General long N/A 72% 90% N/A
term care
2015 General long N/A 95% 90% Yes
term care

The rationale which supports the projected utilization in both the first and second years of
operation is as follows:

Hickory Point Christian Village opened in the second half of 2011 and demand for
admjssion into the facility is high based upon early, rapid fill-up from individuals in the service
area seeking skilied nursing care. Based upon this, Hickory Point projects that it will reach 95%
utilization of its existing 47-bed facility in fiscal year 2013, during which time the I7-bed
addition Project will be in progress. In addition, Hickory Point’s sister facility, Fair Havens
Christian Home, in nearby Decatur, has operated at functional capacity over the past several
years and is currently experiencing high levels of occupancy (97.7%). Similarly, a majority of
facilities in the Planning Area are operating above or near 90% occupancy. Since receiving
Medicare certification in October, 2011 over 50 residents (with some discharges) have been
admitted to Hickory Point in that short period of time.

Further, Decatur Memorial Hospital closed its 61-bed long term care unit in late 2011.
This closure more than offsets the proposed 17-bed addition and will likely keep utilization high
at Hickory Point and other facilities.

9937540_2.DOC

000098

' ATTACHMENT-15




w

HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1110.1730(b)(2)
PLANNING AREA NEED-SERVICE TO PLANNING AREA RESIDENTS

In compliance with Section 1110.1730(b}(2) of the Review Board Rules, the Applicants
confirm that as to service area, the primary purpose of the Project is to serve residents within
Macon County and within a 30-minute drive time of the facility. This primary service area is
shown on the attached Area Map.! The Applicant’s secondary market is sourced from within the
larger Macon Planning Area, which has a computed need for 100 additional beds. Because the
Project consists of a 17-bed addition to an existing building, the Project will provide heaith

services to the same service area population presently served by Hickory Point.

The attached report provides patient origin information by zip code, based upon the
resident’s legal residence, for all admissions to Hickory Point Christian Village for the 12-month
period ending December 31, 2011. At least 50% of the admissions were residents of the

Applicant’s service area.

"The Nielsen Company Area Map prepared on January 5, 2012.

9930659 _1.DOC
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Hickory Point Christian Village
Admission Information by Zip Code
(Inpatient through 12/31/2012)

J.B. 111 61929
L.B. 11/22 62521
K.B. 12/23 62521
J.B. 12/19 62535
J.B. 12/9 62526
N.B. 11117

D.B. 8/24 62526
V.C. 12113 62522
J.C. 12/5 62550
B.C. 11/30 73159
F.D. 11/12 62526
R.F. 11/30 62522
M.G. 12/12 62526
M.G. 12/9 62526
N.H. 12/14 62521
L.H. 12/17 62526
C.H. 12122 62526
W.H. 12/9 62526
J.H.L. 12/24 62535
B.H. 12/2 62522
P.J. 12/13 62526
V.J. 12/29

G.K. 11/19

LK. 11/6

M K. 12/19 62521
AK. 12/16 62526
D.L. 7/18 62535
P.M. 11/1 61727
E.M. 12/16 62526
M.M. 9/12 62521
D.O. 11/22 62521
W.P. 1217 62535
B.P. 1217 62521
FR. 12128

D.R. 12/16 62521
G.R. 11725 62526
G.R. 12/7 61818
R.S. 1217 62526
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Hickory Point Christian Village
Admission Information by Zip Code
(Inpatient through 12/31/2012)

D.S.
C.S.
M.S.
D.S.
S.S.
B.T.
R.V.

R.W.

JW.
JW
C.Y.
M.Y.

11/18 62526
12/20 62543
12/8 62522
11/22 62549
9/21 62521
12/9 61937
1113 62550
12/16 62526
12/8 62522
12/13 61727
11/21 62526
12/21 62521
9924076_2.XL5X ATTACHMENT-28
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1110.1730(b)(4)
PLANNING AREA NEED
SERVICE DEMAND-EXPANSION OF BED CATEGORY OF SERVICE

The Review Board approved a permit at its April 2009 meeting authorizing Hickory
Point Christian Village to construct a 47-bed skilled facility (Project No. 08-097). That project
was completed in 2011 and Hickory Point began accepting residents in the second half of 2011.
The 47-bed skilled unit now complements the previous existing 50 independent living units and
48 assisted living units as part of the retirement community.

In its original planning, Christian Homes had always desired to construct a larger skilled
facility on the site. At the time of submitting its CON application, however, there was only a
calcullated bed nced of 47 beds. Christian Homes proceeded with the 47-bed facility, but
specifically developed the building to allow for a one-time expansion when the need arose. In
the fall of 2011 Decatur Memorial Hospital, located within 5 miles of Hickory Point, received
Review Board approval to discontinue its 61-bed long term care unit. This closure created both a
real need in the area and a corresponding increase in the bed need inventory.

Because the existing Hickory Point skilled nursing facility opened in later 2011 there is
not historical data to document the facility’s average annual occupancy rate for the preceding
two years pursuant to Section 1110.1730(b)(4)(A)(i) of the Review Board rules. Hickory Point,
however, is experiencing rapid fill-up of its skilled nursing facility from individuals in the
service area seeking skilled nursing care. Further, Hickory Point’s sister facility, Fair Havens
Christian Home in nearby Decatur, has operated at functional capacity over the past few ycars

and continues to operate at high levels of occupancy (97.7%). Those sceking admission to Fair

9937465_2.DOC ATTACHMENT-28 -
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Havens Christian Home who are unable to be admitted there due to high occupancy will be
referred to, and will have the option of seeking admission at, Hickory Point.

The 17-bed addition is necessary to meet the projected demand for service by those
individuals who are currently part of Hickory Point’s retirement community, those who reside in
the service area and those who may otherwise be referred to the Hickory Point by its nearby
sister facility, Fair Havens Christian Home.

The Review Board’s revised bed inventory shows a calculated bed need of 100 beds in
Macon County. This bed need calculation is supported by the high occupancy of the facilities
with the Planning Area. In addition to Hickory Point there are 10 other long term care facilities
in Macon County, plus a 14-bed unit at St.. Mary’s Hospital. Of those facilities, 6 operate at or
above the 90% occupancy rate and another at 87.0%. Two facilities 6perate at 80.2% and
67.3%. The {final fac_ility, Eastern Star at Macon, is a restricted access facility (Women of the
Eastern Star of good repute) operating at 43.2%. St. Mary’s Hospital operates its 14-bed unit at
71.4% occupancy but frequently refers residents to Hickory Point and Fair Havens. St. Mary’s
has provided a letter of support for the facility. The following chart shows the facility utilization

and supports the need for the Project.

9937465_2.DCC
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@ahickory point christian village

565 W, Marion Ave, » Forsyth, [L 62535
Phone: (217)872-1122 » Fax: (217)875-0600- .

Janvary 16, 2012

Ms, Courtney Avery

Administrator

Illincis Health Facilities and Semces Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Hickory Point — Staffing Review Criteria §1110.1730

Dear. Ms. Avery:

As the Administrator for Hickory Point, I have analyzed our staffing needs that would be
associated with our proposal to add an additional 17 beds to our existing facility. I have also
reviewed stafﬁng requirements and provide Drive letter and chart in compliance of your Section
1110.1730 review criterion, ~

In our planning for a proposed 17-bed addition we have prepared our intended additional
staffing projections. The attached chart shows both our current staffing levels and the additienal
staffing that we anticipate with the addition.

Both our Hickory Point facility and our sister facility, Fair Havens in Decatur, are considered
desirable places to work. We currently have over 640 applications on file for employment for all
positions at Hickory Point Christian Village alone. I further certify that the number of
applications on file exceed the projectcd number for each position listed on the attached chart.

Sincerely,

Administrator
9926732.1 chrlstmmgrges, inc.
- www.hickorypointchristianvillage.org
000107
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Current Staffing For Hickory Point Christian Village —

*Administrator Director of Nursing
*Community Liaison Activity Director

2 Social Service Directors *Food Service Director
Ward Clerk Medical Records

2 Resident Assessment Coordinators  *Evening and Weekend Reception
*Business Office Manager " Day Reception

Activity Aides, Dining Service Staff, Housekeepers and Laundry
*Represents being shared with Assisted Living~

Hands On:

We staff one Registered Nurse, one Licensed Practical Nurse, and 4 certified nursing assistants to ¢ach

household which represents 24 guest on one household and 23 on the other.

For this addition to our community we would need to hire the following:

Registered Nurse for each shift, Licensed Practical nurse for days and evenings, 3 aides for days and

evenings and 2 for nights. We would also hire another housckeeper.

We received 640 applications for various positions throughout our community when we opened our 47

skilled bed addition, We have.the following number of applications for those positions:

Registered Nurses: 42
Liccnsed Practical Nurses: 52
Certified Nursing Assistants: 149
Housekeepers: 134

400108

ATTACHMENT-2¢.




HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1110.1730(h)
PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS-FACILITY SIZE

The maximum size of the facility after completion of the proposed Project will be 64 beds, which
is below the maximum sizc of 250 beds specified in Section 1110.1730(h).

9930596_1.DOC -
) ATTACHMENT 28 - - .
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1110.1730(i)
COMMUNITY RELATED FUNCTIONS

Attached hereto are various community support letters in connection with the Project from St.
Mary’s Hospital, Decatur Memorial Hospital Home Health Services, individual physicians and

residents of the facility.

9942825_1.DOC ATTACHIENT-28
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St. Mary’s
HOSPITAL
DECATUR, ILLINOIS

January 3, 2012

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attention: Laurie Brown
Exccutive Direcior

565 W. Marion

Forsyth, lllinois 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown,

We ai St. Mary’s Hospital, Decatur, IL, would like to ¢xpress our support for the proposed 17 bed
addition that Christian Homes, Inc. is hoping to add to its new 47 Skilled Rehab/Nursing facility on the
Hickoty Point Christian Village campus, located in Forsyth, llinois.

We recognize that it hag been the mission of Christian Homes lo care for the physical, emotional, and
spiritual well-being of each senior they servc, fostering their hopes and drecams and promoting their
independcnee, while preserving their dignity.

Christian Homes, Inc. has been providing high quality skilled nursing services at their Fair Havens
Christian Home campus for many years. We are confident that same qualily of service, with a planned
emphasis on short lerm rehab, is now occurring on the Hickory Point Christian Village eampus, since
Medicare licensure occurred a few short weeks ago.  Adding 17 beds will enhance the Christian Homes®
mission to nicet the growing needs of arca seniors, thus we support Christian Homes, Inc. in their desire
to expand the Hickory Point Christian Village campus once again. We wish you well and continucd
SUCCCSS.

Sincerels

. a0l

J, President / CEO

Kcvin F. Kas

1BO0 Cast Lake Shore Drive
Decatur, (llinois 62521

P 17-464-2966
www.simarysdecatur.com

An Affiliate of
Hospital Sisters
Health System
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December 29, 2011

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attention: Mrs, Laurie Brown
Bxecutive Director

5365 W. Marion

Forsyth, IL 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

We at Decatur Memorial Hospital Home Health Services would like 1o express our support for
the proposed skilled addition that Christian Momes is hoping to add to their Hickory Point
Christian Village campus located in Forsyth, TL.

Having worked with Christian Homes, Inc. for several years, 1 have found its quality of care to
be of the highest standard. T would not hesitate to choosc any one of its facilities to cave for iny
family as the need arises.

Caring for today’s seniors is ofien a thankless job, Christian Homes, however has made it their
mission 10 not only care for these valued individuals, but to do so in a dignified way that fosters
their hopes and dreams while preserving their dignity. Not only is the residents’ physical well-

being closcly monitored, but options are available to safeguard their spiritual health as well.

Not only should Christian Homes be conimended for offering such a high quality service, they
should be allowed to expand that service. The current 47 beds have helped our community and

-another addition would only enhance. Such an addition would indeed be welcome.

Sincercly,

| | %M&J/m, NS

Dk fhvipees.

000112 ATTACH.MEN"I‘-ZS




M. STEPHEN HUSS, M.D,, S.C.

Orthopegic Surgery
304 W, Hay St., Suite 213
Deeatur, Hlinols 62526-6341

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attn: Mrs, Lautie Brown
Executive Director

565 W. Marion

Forsyth, IL. 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

As a practicing Orthopedic Surgeon in Decatur, JL, I am writing to express my support for the
skilled care addition that Christian Homes is proposing to add to their Hickory Point Christian
Village campus located in Forsyth, IL.

With the shortage of skilled nursing beds in the area and the ever-growing population of senior
citizens in need of this type of service, the proposed bed addition would help meet the intense

-need for quality senior housing options that we are currently expcriencing.

I certainly feel this project would be another excellent addition to the Decatur community, as
well as the Forsyth commupity.

Sincc/r;y

M. Step!

MSH:bmo
ce
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December 29, 2011

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attention: Mrs. Laurie Brown
Executive Director

565 W, Marion

TForsyth, IL 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

As a practicing Medical Doctor in Decatur, IL, and as the Medical Director of Fair Havens
Christian Home Village and Hickory Point Christian Village, I am writing to express my support
of the proposed skilted addition that Christian Homes is hoping to add to their IHickory Point
Christian Village campus located in Forsyth, IL.

Having worked with Christian Homes, Inc. for.several years, I have found its quality of care to
be of the highest standard. T would not hesitate to choose any one of its facilities to care for my
family as the need arises. '

Caring for loday's seniors is often a thankless job. Christian Homes, however has made it their
mission to not only care for these valued individuals, but to do so in a dignified way that fosters
their hopes and dreams while preserving their dignily. Not only is the residents’ physical well-
being closely monitored, but options arc available to safeguard their spiritual health as well.

Not only should Christian Homes be commended for offering such a high quality service, they
should be allowed to expand that service, The current 47 beds have helped our comsnity and
another addition would only enhance. Such an addition would indeed be welcome.

Dr, Maharmnad Khan, M, D,

000114 - . ATTACHMENT-28




@’hickory point christian village

565 W, Manion Ave, * Forsyth, 11. 62535
Phone: (217)872-1122 » Fax: (217)875-0600

January 10, 2012

Hickory Point Christian Village

Attention; Laurie Brown
Executive Director

565 West Marion
Forsyth, IL 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

1 am currently a resident at Hickory Point Christian Village. 1love the nelghborhood set-up of the
building. i feel like | am at home. The staff is 100%; they take care of all my needs. The buiiding is very
clean and pleasant. ) enjoy visiting with the other residents at mealtime in the dining room.

I recommend anyone coming here to do their rehabilitation.

Sincerely,

Dorothy Rice ﬁ

PR

christian homes,inc.

asishlished 16682

" www.hickorypointchristianvillage.org.
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ﬁbhickory point christian village

563 W. Marion Ave. * Forsyth, IL 62535
Phone: (217)872-1122 « Fax: (217)875-0600

January 10, 2012

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attention: Laurie Brown
Executive Director

565 Waest Marion

Forsyth, Il. 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

I am currently a resident at Hickory Point Christian Village. |love the set-up of the neighborhoods. |
enjoy having my meals in the beautifu! dining reom with the other nelghbors. It is by far the nicest place
! have been. The facility is very clean and well maintained.

I wauld highly recommend Hickory Point Christian Village to anyone needing rehabilitation services.
Sincerely,

@M\@W |

Dorothy Orr

christian homes,inc.
esleb¥shad 1962

g ‘www.hickoryp'oiﬁtch}i_'s;ianvi'ilagé.brg i

000116
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ﬁbhickory point christian village

565 W, Marion Ave, » Torsyth, IL 62533
Phone: (217)872-1122 + Fax: (217)875-0600

January 10, 2012

Hickory Point Christian Village
Attention: Laurie Brown
Executive Director

565 West Marfon

Forsyth, Il 62535

Dear Mrs. Brown:

I am currently a resident at Hickory Point Christian Village. This Community has benefited me by being
able to do rehabilitation in such a beautiful environment. It is a very pleasant, comfortable place to
come and address my health issues. The staff is very aware of the resident’s Individual needs. |enfoy
coming together at meals with the other nelghborhood, it is a special time for us.

t hope you are allowed to add more beds to the current community. | would recommend this to the
state.

Sincerely, 3 WV

Pat Johnson

christian homes,inc.
elablshod 1862

“yiww.hickorypointchristianvillage.org:.
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January 10 ,2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilitics and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — Assurances
Dear Ms. Avery:

In compliance with Section 1110.1730(k) of the Review Board Rules, Fair Havens Christian
Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village, as operator of the Project, hereby provides
assurances that we reasonably anticipate that by the second year of operation after the Project
completion Hickory Point Christian Village will achieve and maintain the occupancy standards
specified in 77 I1l. Adm. Code 1100 for the general long term care category of service.

Sincerely,
Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer
Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this _jp day of January, 2012

L77/( M/M/A 3 W

Signatire of Notary Public
‘f-‘ e D L 2T ROV SO ) Sratete
Seal ) _ OFFICIAL SEAL
MARCELLA TESH

% NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS -
¥ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 9‘5523'48 &
T e e e et ettt

......

Assurances as to Qccupancy (Hickory Point).DOC
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January 10,2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — Availability of Funds

Dear Ms. Avery:

In compliance with Section 1120.120 of the Review Board Rules, we provide documentation that
sufficient financial resources are available to pay the total estimated Project costs and related
costs from cash and cash equivalents.

I draw your attention to our balance sheet in the attached audited consolidated financial
statements as of June 30, 2011. This consolidated balance sheet shows funds are available
within the Cash and Cash Equivalents line. These financial statements show our Cash and Cash
Equivalents of approximately $20,937,312,

Sincerely,
Fair Havens Christian Homes, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village
o A
(&

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer

Statement as to Availability of Funds (Mickery Point).DOC - == :
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
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LarsenAllen

CPAs, Consultants 8 Advisors
www.lorsonallen.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Midwest Christian Villages, inc,

dba: Christian Homes, inc. and Affiliates
St. Louis, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Midwest Christian Villages, inc.
dba: Christian Homas, [nc. and Affiliales as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated
slalements of unrestricted activilies, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years lhen ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financiat statlements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United Slales
of America. Those slandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statemenis are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts ang disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit atso includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial stalements referred to above present fairly, in all materia!
respects, the financial position of Midwest Christian Villages, inc. dba: Chrisiian Homes, Inc. and
Affjliates as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Nole 4 to the financlal statemenls, the Organization has adopted the standard on
accounting for noncontrolling interests in these consolidated financial statements. The Organization has

. retrospeclively applied the standard lo their unrestricted net assets as of July 1, 2008.

| LaraenAblon LLP
LarsonAllen LLP

Si. Louis, Missouri
October 6, 2011

| ]
F 2 [
N — "I Anindependont member of Noxa Internaltonal

INTERNATIONAL

0600122 ATTACHMENT-39




MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 20711 AND 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Current Assels
Current Porlion of Assets Limited as to Use
Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Resident Funds and Other Deposits
Trustae Held Funds

Tolal
Less: Current Portion Shown Above

Total Assets Limited as lo Use (Net of Currant Porlion

Shown Above}

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT {at Cost)
Land and Land Improvemenis
Building end improvemenis
Equipment
Conslruction in Progress
Tolal ]
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
-Total Propeity and Equipment {at Depreciated Cost}

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred Financing Cosis
Investments .
Cash Surrender Value of Life [nsurance and Other Assels
Total Other Assets

Total Assels

Sae accompanying Notes {o Consolidated Financlal Statements,
2

000123

2011 2010
$ 20937312 3 22,423.669
12,643,392 14,061,569
1,450,806 1,374,520
2,557,086 2,926,183
37,568,596 40,785,041
396,968 386,247
17,473,643 10,424,611
17,870,611 10,810,858
(2,557,086} (2,926,183)
15,313,525 7,884,675
11,492,516 11,492,516
170,752,835 167,199,676
23,626,432 21,486,861
12,013,384 2,579,958
217,885,167 202,759,011
83,089,474 77,737,729
134,795,693 125,021,282
3,958,111 2,944,861
33,071,038 26,758,968
318,081 443,911
37,347,230 30,147,740
$ 203,839,636

$ 225,045,044

ATTACHMENT-39
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Malurities of Long-Term Deb!
Accounts Payable;
Trade
Construetion
Other Accrued Liabilities
Resident Trust Fund Payable
Current Portion of Refundable Entrance Fees
Tolat Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT. (Net of Current Maturities Shown Above)
Bonds and Notes Payable
Interest Rate Swap
Tolal Long-Term Debt {Net of Current Malurities Shown Above)

OTHER LIABILITIES
Refundable Enfrance Fees
Deferred Revenue from Enfrance Fees
Other Liabilities
Total Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unrestncted:
Conirolling Interest
Nonconirolling Interest
Totat Unrestricted Net Assets
Temporarily Restricted
Permanenily Restricted
Tolal Net Assels

Total Liabilities and Net Assels

3)

000124

$ 18,580,701 $ 14347216
3,872,543 3,370,946
2,203,251 1,005,371

13,853,871 11,747,241
322,944 287,097
1,404,400 1,536,300
40,237,710 32,294,171
122,591,092 116,133,127
- 1,004,212
122,591,092 117,137,339
7,040,208 7,180,544
12,271,918 14,502,555
1,238,971 1,141,119
20,551,085 22,824 218
183,379,897 172,255,728
39,577,080 29,774,283
1,697,540 1,289,785
41,274,620 31,074,078
176,807 296,112
213,720 213,720
41,665,147 31,583,210

$ 225,045,044

$ 203,839,638
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA; CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF UNRESTRICTED ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
Percent of Percent of
Amouni Revenug Amount Revenue
OPERATING REVEMNLIE
Reskden! Servico S 148,724,583 962 % $ 141,769,888 96.5 %
Amortizalion of Admlssion Fees 1,974,134 13 4,620,028 1.1
Other 3,057,279 2.5 3,585,872 2.4
Tolat Operating Revenue 154,655,976 1000 146,976,788 100.0
OPERATING EXPENSE
Nursing 41,852,753 2714 40,945,039 27.9
Anchiary 22,742,168 14.7 22,239,201 15.1
Dletary ’ 10,679,645 6.9 10,513,162 7.2
Housekeeping 4,077,511 28 4,074,037 2.8
Activitles and Soclal Senvices 3,940,938 2.5 3,803,405 2.8
Piant Operations and Maintenance 8,279,552 5.4 7,828,309 53
Administrathre 30,606,619 10.8 26,204,238 17.9
Marketing 583,506 04 622,164 0.4
Payroll Texes 4,545,836 2.9 4,444,673 30
Employee Benefils 4,780,082 A1 5,004,945 34
Pioperly Taxes ‘ 364,923 0.2 244,509 0.z
interest 7,892,443 5.1 8,065,339 5.5
Depreclation and Amartizalion 8,439,472 5.5 7,701,262 5.2
Total Operating Expense 148,786,168 96.2 141,790,313 96.5
OPERATING INCOME 5,869,808 28 6,185,475 3.5
OTHER INGCOME (EXPENSE} )
Investment Income 1,784,182 1.2 1,051,134 0.7
Unrealized Gatn on {nvesiments 801,462 0.6 601,451 0.4
Contributions 1,282 583 0.8 937,706 0.6
Net Assels Released from Reskiction 217,513 0.2 210,024 0.1
Piaceeds from Mine Subsidence Fund - - 908,158 0.6
Loss on Disposat of Property end Equipment (207,955) {0.1) (74,616} (0.1)
Tota! Other Income (Expense) 4,032,075 27 3,634,154 23
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSE 9,901,883 6.5 % 8,819,629 5.8 %
Change in Valuation of inleres! Rate Swap 42,380 {121,853}
Capilal Conlsibistions 256,259 -
INGREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS H 10,200,542 5 8,697,776

Ses accampanying Notes to Consalidated Financial Staterents.
C)]
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.

DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2002

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Excess of Revenue over Expense
Contributions
Net Assets Released from Restriclion.
Change in Value of Charitable Remainder Trust
Change in Valuation of Interest Rate Swap
Total Change in Net Assels

MET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2010

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Excess of Revenua over Expense
Conlributions .
Nel Assels Released from Restriction
Change in Value of Charitable Remainder Trust
Change in Valuation of Interest Rale Swap
Capital Contributions

Total Change in Net Assets

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2011

Temporarily  Permanenlly
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$22,376,302 $ 380980 & 213,720 $22971,002
8,819,629 - - 8,819,628

- 124,665 - 124,665
- (210,024} - (210,024)

- 491 - 491
{121,853} - - (121,853)
8,697,776 {84,868) - 8,612,908
31,074,078 266,112 213,720 31,583,910
9,801,883 - - 9,901,883

- 150,033 - 150,033
- (277.512) - (277,512}

- 8,174 - 8,174

42,390 . - 42,390
256,269 - - 256,269
10,200,542 (119,305) - 10,081,237
$41,274620 $ 176807 $ 213720 §$41,665,147

Seo occompanying Notes to Consolidaled Financial Statements.

(5)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In Nel Assets _ $ 10,081,237 $ 8612908
Adjustments lo Reconcile Change in Net Assets lo Net Cash
Provided by Cperating Actlivities:
Depreciation and Amoriization 8,439,472 7,701,262
Amorlization of Deferred Income (1,974,134) {1,620,028)
Unrealized Gain on Invastments (891,462} (601,451)
Loss on Disposal of Properly and Equipment 217,703 74616
Change in Valuation of Interest Rate Swap (42,390) 121,853
{Increases) Decreases in Curient Assels:
Accounts Receivable 1,350,677 82,156
Other Current Asseis (76,286) (213,283)
Increases {Dacreases) in Current Liabllities:
Accounts Payable 1,699,477 841,095
Accrued Expenses 1,783,028 (244,155)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 20,587,322 14,754,973
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from invesiments 72,786,871 16,539,100
Purchase and Reinvested Interest of Inveslments {77.,357,316) (18,322,202)
Purchase of Properly and Equipment (11,105,314} {10,291,240)
Change in Other Assels 125,830 (26,095)
Nat Cash Used by Investing Aclivities {15,549,929) (12,100,437}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IProceeds from Entrance Fee Contracts 2521,824 2,850,323
Refunds Paid on Entrance Fee Coniracls (2,983,065) (1,536,749}
Change in Other Liabilities 133,699 {5,096}
Payments of Financing Costs (385,524) -
Payments on Long-Term Debt (6,810,684) (6,094,988)
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (6,523,750} (4,786,510)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,486,357} (2,131,974)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning 22,423,669 24,655,643
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING $ 20,037,312 $ 22,423,669

Soe accompanying Noles [o Consolidaled Financial Slaterments.
{6)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

2011
NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
tssuance of 2010 Bonds $ 25,000,000
Origlnal Issue Discount (385,050)
Refund Series 2007C Bonds (8,112,8186)
Swap Termination Payment (979,421}
lssuance Cosls (833,500}
Accrued Finaneing Costs 341,201
Deposit to Project and Deb! Service Reserve Funds {15,030,414)
Total $ -
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest 3 7,696,024

Soa accompanying Notes lo Consolitated Finanelal Slatements.
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Midwest Chrislian Villages, Inc. was incorporated on July 1, 2008 as the parent and
management company for Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates (“CHI" or "Organization®).
CHI entities are nonprofil crganizations organized primarily o own, operate and support
senior living and health care communities. Housing and services for seniors are provided at
CHI communities through a continuum of care including various levels of independent
living, assisted living and skilled nursing. CHI operales in the states of linois, Indiana, fowa
and Missouri. The Organizalion's stated mission is that it exists to honor God by providing a
continuum of excellent care and support services, primarily for the aged.

CHI operates through a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries, Limited Liability Companies
(LLCs) and Limited Partnerships (LPs). Cerain of these entitles are also members of an
obligated group for credit purposes. Following is an organizational chart that illustrates the
struclure:
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Principles of Consclidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include all accounts of Midwest
Christian Villages, Inc., Christian Homes Inc., Fair Havens Christian Home Inc., Lewis
Memorial Christian Village, Hoosier Chrislian Village Inc., Spring River Christlan Village
Inc., Chicagoland Christian Village Inc., Risen Son Chnstian Village, Midwest Senior
Ministries Inc., Wabash Christian Apartments Inc., Wabash Chrislian Apartments LP,
Wabash Estates LLC, Wabash Estates LP, Washington Village Estates LLC, Washington
Village Estates LP Shawnee Christian Nursing Center LLC and Hearlland Christian Village
LLC. All significant intercompany transaclions and bafances have been eliminated in the
consolidalion.

During the year ended June 30, 2011 the Organization adopted a new accounling standard
on noncontrolling interests in these consolidated financial statements. The standard
requires noncontrolling interests to be presented separately on the consolidated balance
sheet and included in unrestricted net assets (see Note 4).

Tax Status

The Organizations, except for the limited partnerships, qualify as tax-exempt corporations
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the
Qrganizations, excep! for the limited parinerships, are not subject to federal income taxes
under Section 501(a) of the Code. The Organizations are classified as publicly-supported
charitable organizations under the Code and contributions to the Organizalions qualify as a
charitable tax deduction for the contribufor.

The Organizations follow the income tax standard for uncertain tax positions. This standard
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an organizalion’s
financial statemenis. It also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurementl principles
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected
lo be taken on a tax return that are not certain fo be realized. This standard has no impact
on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Qrganizations' income tax returns are subject lo review and examination by federal,
state, and local authorities, The Organizations are not aware of any activilies that would
jeopardize iheir tax-exempl status. The Organizations are not aware of any aclivilies that
are subject lo tax on unrelated business income or excise or other taxes other than what is
already being reporled. The tax relumns for the years 2008 to 2010 are open to examination
by federal, local, and state authorities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financlal slatements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumplions
that affect the reported amounis of assets and jiabilities and disclosure of conlingent assets
and liabilities al the date of lhe consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates,

)]
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis_of Presentation
Contributions received are recorded as an increase in unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
permanently restricled support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:
Unrestricted — Those resources over which the board of directors has discretionary
control. Designated amounts represent those revenues thal the board has set aside for a
particutar purpose.

Termporarily Restricted ~ Those resources subject to donor imposed restrictions that will
be satisfied by aclions of the Organization or passage of fime.

Permanently Restricted ~ Those resources subject to a donor imposed restriction that
they be maintained permanently by the Crganization.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimated fair market
value al the date each promise is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarity or
permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction is satisfied, net assels are released and
reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets. Donor-restricted contributions whose
restriclions are met within the same reporting period as received are recorded as
unresiricted contributions.

Permanently and temporarily restricted net assets consist of amounts restricted for capital
expenditures, beneficial interest in trusts and miscellaneous operational purposes.

Resldent Services Revenue

Resident services revenue includes room charges and ancillary services to residents and is
recorded at eslablished rates, net of contractual adjusiments, resulting from agreements

with third-party payors. ~

The Qrganizalion provides care to residents covered by various third-party payors such as
Medicare, Medicaid and private insurance companies. Medicare and Medicaid agreements
provide for rate payments which are updated annually by the federai and applicable stale
governmenis, respeciively. Many of the residents served by the Organization are elderly
and many have limited resources {o pay for care without assistance from the Medicare and

Medicaid programs.

Provisions for estimated third-party payor settlements are provided in the period the related
services are rendered. Differences between the amounts accrued and subsequent
settlements are recorded in revenue in the year of settlement.

Third Party Reimbursement Agreements

Nursing facilities licensed for pariicipation in the Medicare and Medicaid Assistance
programs are subject to annual licensure renewal. If it is determined that a nursing facility is
not in subslantial compliance with the requirements of participation, CMS may impose
sanctions and penalties during the period of noncompliance. Such a payment ban would
have a negative impact on the revenuss of the nursing facility.

(10)
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NOTE1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

Third Party Reimbursement Agreements {Continued)

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A licensed nursing facility that participated in the Medicare program for the years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010 was reimbursed based on a Prospective Payment System (PPS).
This program is administered by lhe United States Department of Heaith and Human
Services, The PPS is a per diem price based system. Annual cost reports are submitted to
the designated intermediary; however, they do nol contain a cost settiement.

Qccupancy Percentages
During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, occupancy percentages and the
percentage of resident days covered under the Medicaid and Medicare program for all of
CHi skilled nursing facilities were as follows:

June 30, 2041

Licensed
Faclfity Location Beds Qecupancy Medicald Medlcare
The Christian Village Lincotn, IL 192 92,056 % 44.15 % 10.64 %
Fair Havens Decealur, L 154 95.79 46,46 19.01
Ploasant Meadows Chilsman, IL 409 84.54 50.15 1.3
Lewis Memorial Springfeld, IL 155 94.26 37.22 201
Hoosler Brownstown, IN 97 o727 73.64 8,76
Wabash Carml, IL 158 82.56 55.04 16,28
Shawnee Herdn, IL 169 79.17 68.25 25.27
Washingion Washington, IL 122 77.06 42.08 2242
Spring River Joplln, MO 120 88.13 52.28 27.60
Ghicagoland Crowm Point, IN 146 89.73 63.39 20.53
Rlsen Son Councll Bluffs, 1A 102 94,85 34.35 23.72
Heartland Meogs, IL 71 9545 39.21 1G.88
Bridgewray Bensenvllle, 1L 222 73.45 53.82 22.81
Total 1,727
June 20, 2010
Licensed B

Facllily Location Beds Oceupancy Medicaid Medicare
The Christian Viltago Lingoln, IL 112 93.20 % 42.21 % 13.23 %
Falr Havens Decatur, IL 154 95.86 43.70 21.97
Pieasant Meadows Chrsman, tL 109 83,14 60.66 13.17
Lewis Memorial Springficid, 1L 155 82.16 35.30 31.72 |
Hoosier Brovmslown, N 97 92.92 70.72 1023
Wabash Carrnl, I\ 158 B1.57 53.34 17.24
Shavmes Heriin, IL 159 736 5717 2249
washington ‘washinglon, IL 122 79.95 45.50 18.92
Spring River Joplin, MO 120 87.51 52.23 30.22
Chlcagoland Crown Polnt, IN 148 91.25 59,04 23,11
Risen Sen Coundi! Blufis, 1A 102 95.01 3523 22.91
Heariland Neoga, L T 90.22 36.4% 17.22
Bridgavay Bensenville, IL 222 72,26 52.67 25.90

Tolal

1,727
[——=

(n
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
Occupancy Percentages {Continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, occupancy percentages for the senior living
unifs were as follows:

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Facility Locatlon Linits Oecupancy Units Qccupancy
Ascsisled Living
Hickery Polnt Decatur, IL 48 91.20 % 48 B85.45 %
Spring River Japlin, MO 73 89,74 13 80.54
Risen Son Council Bluffs, IA 62 79.94 62 78.41
Total 183 183
Independent Living
The Chiistlan Viltage Lincoln, iL 65 9332 % 65 00.64 %
Fair Havens Decalur, IL 10 86.30 - 10 84.66
Hickary Point Decalur, 1L 50 B87.93 50 02.22
Pleasanl Meadows Chrisman, IL 135 69.90 15 86.06
Lewis Memorial Springfietd, L 46 72.52 46 84.95
Hoosler Brownstown, IN 13 92.84 13 91.68
Wabash Carmi, H. ki 97.14 11 95.64
Washington ‘Washington, iL 14 52.80 30 68.77
Spiing Rlver Joplin, MO 70 82.11 70 8G.58
Chicagolant Crown Polnt, IN " 74 74.78 74 8341
Risen Son Counell Blufls, tA 95 90.67 a5 91.01
Hearlland Neoga, IL 8 83.39 8 88.36
Bridgeway Bensenvifle, iL 173 75.29 173 72.02
Total G644 660

Cash and Cash Equlvalents

The Organization considers all money market accounts and certificates of deposil with
maturity dates of three months of less to be cash equivalents except for those included in
investments. Cerlilicates of deposit are staied at cost, which approximates market value.
The Organization deposits its temporary cash investments in financial instilutions. At times,
such investments may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization provides an allowance for uncollectible accounts using management's
judgment. Residents are not required to provide collateral for services rendered. Payment
for services is required upon receipt of invoice or as the claim is submilled for third-party
payors. Accounts past due more than 30 days are individually analyzed for collectibllity. In
addition, an allowance is eslimated for other accounts based on historical experience, At
June 30, 2014 and 2010, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately
3910,000 and $630,000, respectively.

(12)
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all invesiments in
debt securilies are measured at fair value on the balance sheet. Investment income or loss
(including realized gains and losses on Investments, interest and dividends) is included in
nel revenue over expense unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include resident funds and deposits held in trust, assets held by
trustees under bond and mortgage indenture agreements, and assets set aside by the
board of directors for future capital improvements and other purposes, over which the board
retains control and may, at its discrelion, subsequently use for other purposes. Assets
limited as to use that are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are reported
as current assets,

Assels limited as to use are primarily invested In cash and cash equivalents, government
bond obligations and guaranteed investment contracts, which are measured at fair value on
the balance sheet.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased assets or fair market value at
the date of receipt for donated assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the asset.

Construction in Progress

Construction in progress costs have been defersed until the projects have been completed.
When the planned projects are completed, the construction in progress costs are
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated fife of the project including interest costs

from borrowed funds.

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are capitalized and
amorlized using the effective interest method over the term of the relaled indebtedness.
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Organizalion incurred additional financing costs
totaling $1,219,024 in conjunction with the issuance of Series 2010 Bonds. Delerred
financing costs are reported on the balance sheet, net of accumulated amorfization of
$662,772 and $456,998 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amortization expense for
ihe years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $205,774 and $140,654, respeclively.

(13)
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Charltable Gift Annuities Payable

The Crganization has established a gifl annuity program whereby donors may confribute
assels 1o the Organization in exchange for the right to receive a fixed dollar annual return
during their lifetime. A portion of the transfer is considered to be a charitable contribution.
The difference belween lhe amount provided for the gift annuily and the present value of
the iiabitity for future payments is recognized as unrestricted contributions af the dale of the
gift as specified by the donor on the coniribution component. The Organization uses
published montality rate tables adopted by the United States Internal Revenue Service. The
annuity liability is revalued annually based upon computed present values. Total charitable
gift annuities payable as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $782,989 and $720,854,
respectively, and are included in other liabilities on the balance sheet.

Asset Retirement Obligation .

Asset retirement obligalions represent future obligations to dispose of assets that are
legally required to be removed at a future date. They are recorded al the net present value
using a risk-free interest rate and inflationary rate and are included in other liabiliiies on the
balance sheet.

Refundable Entrance Fees and Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees

Residenis of the independent senior living apariments and garden homes have the opticn
to enter into a rental contract or an entrance fee coniracl. Under the rental contract a
resident simply pays a fee each month to live In a unit. Prior to August 2009, under the
entrance fee residency agreement the resident generally had three options to choose from
for all facillties except for Bridgeway Christian Village. Residents of Bridgeway Christian
Village generally had four entrance fee coniracis to choose from. In August 2009 CHI
started offering three contract types, only, at all campuses. The old contracts will continue
to be honored for those residents who moved in prior to August 2009. The new contract
types are described below.

The current entrance fee contracts offered at all CHI campuses provide for a refundable
porfion of 80%, 50% or no refund. The non-refundable portion of the entrance fee is
recorded as deferred revenue and amortized inlo income using the straight-fine method
over the estimated remaining iife expectancy of the resident. The refundable portion is not
amortized and is recorded as a liability and reporied as refundable entrance fees. When the
resident vacates the unit he or she receives a refund, due immediately, equal fo the
refundable portion as outlined in the entrance fee contracl. The rasident has the option, if
transferring to a CHI nursing facility, to transfer the remalining non-refundable balance and
draw upon it unlil amortized to zero. Residenls also agree to pay a monthly fee that is
subject {o periodic adjustment to reftect the cost of occupancy.

(14)
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Refundable Entrance Fees and Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees {Continued}

Management has estimated a current portion of the amount of the remaining refundable
balances as of June 30, 2014 and 2010 to be $1,404,400 and $1,536,200, respectively,
based on historical refund activity.

On the Bridgeway Christian Village campus prlor to August 2009, residents were required

_ to pay an initial entrance fee and a recurring monthly service fee per the residency

agreemenls. These fees entitie the resident 1o the use of the residential unit and various
services and amenities including up to 730 days of health care in a semi-private room on
the campus or at another skilled nursing facility. The contracts entitle the resident or their
estate to a refund of a portion of the entrance fee, minimum of 70%, 50%, or 20% of the
contract amount depending on the contract type, upon termination of the agreement due to
death or move-oult.

Obligation to Provide Future Services

The Organization annually analyzes the present vaiue of the nel cost of future services and
use of facilities to be provided to current residents and compares that amount with the
balance of deferred revenue from life occupancy fees. If the present value of the net cost of
future services and use of facilities exceeds the deferred revenue from life occupancy fees,
a liability is recorded (obligation to provide future services and use of facililies) with a
corresponding charge to income.

As described above, conlracts that provide for free or discounted fulure care are generally
limited to Bridgeway Christian Village. No fiabilily was required to be recorded at
June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Resident Deposits

Guaranty deposits of amounts ranging from $30 - $2,500 are required for each resident
entering an independent or assisted living facility within the Organization. The deposits in
the case of non-rental units are credited to the residents' accounts upon execulion of the
occupancy agreement. In the case of rental units, the deposits are ireated as security
deposils and refunded at the time the premises are vacated.

Other Operating Revenue

Other operating revenue consists primarily of non-resident rental income, change in value
of insurance policies, vending sales, activily income, and other miscellaneous revenue.

Contributed Services

The Organization receives a substantial amount of services donated by volunteers. No
amounts have been reflected in the consolidated financial statements for these services.

(15)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 1 ‘SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Community Benefit

The Organization provides care to residents who meet the criteria to be covered under the
Medicaid program in the various states in which they operate. Typically, the
reimbursement rates under this program are significantly less than the cost of providing the
care resulting in a significant reduction in revenue. Management has eslimated the amount
of care provided in excess of reimbursement under these programs based upon average
Medicaid reimbursement rates and average dally costs to provide care. The eslimated cost
of communily benefits provided under this program for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010 was approximately $12,489,000 and $10,175,000, respectively.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Organization owns invesiments in a variety of Investment holdings. In general,
investments are exposed 1o various risks, such as interest rate, credil and overall market
volalility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of the Investments will occur in the near term and that
such changes could materially affect account balances reported on the balance shest of
the Organization.

Excess of Revenue over Expense

Statemenls of unrestricted activities include a measurement of excess ol revenue over
expense. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess of ravenue
over expense, consistent with industry praclice, include, change in valuation of effective
inferest rate swaps and capital contributions from noncontrolling interests.

Advertising
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. Advertising expense was
$583,596 and $622,004 for the years ended Juhe 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

ae)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value measurement applies to reported balances that are required or permitied to be
measured at fair value under an existing accounling standard. The Organization
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an enlity specific
measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assel or liability and
establishes a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels of inputs
that may be used to measure fair value as follows:

Level 1 — inputs that utilize guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and iiabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or fiabiity, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financlal instrument. Fair values for
these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities
with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.
Level 3 - Inpuls that are unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability, which are
typically based on an entity's own assumplions, as there is litlle, if any, related
market activity. :
In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the towest level Input that is significant
to the fair value measurement In its enlirety.

Additionally, from time io time, the Organization may be required to record at fair value
other assets on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. These adjustments to fair value usually result from the application of the lower-
of-cost-or-markel accounting or write down of individual assels. MNonfinancial assets
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis would include nonfinanical assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the second step of goodwill impairment test, other real
estate owned, and other intangible assels measured at fair value for impairment
assessment.

The Organization has elected the fair value option for invesiments to simplify record
keeping. This election effectively moves the classification of invesiments from avaitable for
sale to trading which has no impact on the balance sheet presentation. The impact on the
staterent! of unrestricted activities fo this election is that unrealized gains and losses on
investments are shown within the performance Indicator.

a7
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NOTE1

NOTE 2

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value
measurement is based upoen quoted prices, If avallable. If quoted prices are not available,
fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other mode!-based valuation
techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security's credit
rating, prepayment assumplions, and other faclors such as credit loss assumptions.
Securities valued using Level 1 inputs include those traded on an active exchange, such as
the New York Stock Exchange, as well as U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government and
agency morigage-backed securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in aclive over-the-
counter markets. Securities valued using Level 2 inputs include private collateralized
morlgage obligations, municipal bonds, mutual fumds, and corporale debt securities. The
Organization does not have any securilies that are valued using Level 3 inputs.

Derjvatives

Quoted market prices were available and used for exchange-tradsd derivatives, such as
certain interest rate futures and oplion contracts; such derivatives were classified as using
Leve! 1 inputs,

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has avaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disciosure through October 6, 2011, the date the
financial statemenis were issued.

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

The Organization is required to hold funds in various accounts based upon terms in the
indenture of trust of the various bond Issuances. Assets limited as to use that are required
for obligations classified as current fiabilities are reported in current assets. The assets in
the trustee held funds consist of cash and cash equivalents ang fixed income bonds. The
Qrganizatlion was required to maintain the following accounts:

2011 2010
Resident Funds . 3 396,968 $ 386,247
Trustee Held Funds:
General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund 2,105,707 2,368,847
Debt Service Reserve Fund 8,260,188 5,555,437
Project Fund 5,898,973 -
Building Fund 59,168 59,168
SLF apd HUD Escrows 1,149,607 1,441,159
Tolal Trustee Held Funds 17,473,643 10,424,611
Tolal $ 17,870,611 $ 10,810,858

(18)
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NOTE 2

NOTE 3

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE (CONTINUED)

Resldent Funds

Resident funds are agency funds held locally at the facilities for individual residents’
personal use, resident security deposits, and other miscellaneous deposits.

General Obligation Bond_Retlrement Fund
The Bond Retirement Fund was established lo deposit amounts necessary to pay interest
on the general obligation bonds of the Crganization.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Debl Service Reserve Fund was estahlished to provide a reserve for payment of
principal and inlerest on the bonds in lhe event the Organization's principal and interest
paymenis are insufficient to meet debt service requirements.

Project Fund
The Project Fund consists of monies to be used for approved development projects at
various campus locations over approximately the next two to three years.

Building Fund
The Building Fund has been established to temporarily hold bond proceeds for capital

projecl expenditures.

SLF and HUD Escrows

These escrows have been established by the supportive living fatiliies and HUD financed
facililies to hold funds to be used for the repair or replacement of capilal items and
operating purposes as needed. Approval is needed {o withdraw funds.

INVESTMENTS

The fair value of investments is estimated based upon quoted market prices for those or
similar investments. Investment portfolics consisted of the following al June 30, 2011 and

2010: .

2011 2010
Cost Market Cost Market
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6076948 & 6076949 3 7740231  $ 7,740,231
Fixed Income 16,311,686 16,433,183 13,867,443 14,021,665
Equily Securities 8,970,146 9,741,798 4,873,151 4,501,072
Mutuat Funds 289,190 323,108 - .
Certificata of Deposit 485,000 496,000 496,000 496,000
§  32162,971 $ 33,071,038 3 26,076,825 $ 26758968

The Organization had unrealized gains of $891,462 and $601,451 al June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. Unrealized gains losses are excluded from operating income.

(19)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHI maintains control over Wabash Christian Apartments, Inc., Wabash Esfates, LLC and
Washington Village Estates, LLC (collectively, the "General Pariners”). Each of the General
PPartners is a wholly owned subsidiary of CHI and owns between .01% and 1% in ths
respeclive limiled partnerships. '

Under the partnership agreements, the General Partners shall have the option after the
completion of the “compliance audit termination date," upon writlen notice to the limited
pariners, to purchase the limited pariner's entire interest in the parlnership. The compliance
audit termination date is defined as the period specified under Section 42(1() of the IRS
Code, which requires the jimited parnershlips to operate as tax credit projects for 15 years.
Wabash Christian Apartments, LP began operations as a lax credit project in 1885 and
Wabash Estates, LP and Washington Village Estales, LP began operations during the latter
half of 2007. The partnership agreements define the terms of the purchase option. CHI's
management plans to exercise the purchase options of the General Paitners in the future
and obtain full ownership of the projects.

Prior consolidated financial statements accounted for these noncontrolling interasts
separately and were not included in consolidated net assets. Applicable for fiscal year
2011, generally accepled accounting principles require the noncontrolling interests of these
limited parinerships to be included within the consofidated unrestricted net assets of CHL.

‘The application of this standard has been applied retrospectively as of July 1, 2009. The
changes in consolidated net assets attrivuted ko CHI and the noncontrolling interests within
unrestricted net assets are as follows:

Totat Controlling Noncontrolling
Consaolidated Inlerest interests

Unresiricled Net Assets - July 1, 2009 5 22376302 % 21,037,017 & 1,339,285
Deficit of Revenue over Expense 6,819.629 5,859,119 (39,490}
Change in Valuation of Interest Rate Swap (121,853) {121,853) -
Change in Unrestricled Net Assals 8,687,776 8,737,268 (39,490)
Unrestricted Net Assets - June 30, 2010 31,074,078 29,774,283 1,299,795
Deficil of Revenue over Expense 9,801,883 ) 9,952 417 {50,534}
Chenge in Valuation of Interast Rate Swap 42,390 42,390 -
Capitat Contributlons 266,269 - 256,269
Special Allocations - (192,010} 192,010
Change in Unrestricted Net Assels 10,200,542 9,802,797 397,745
Unrestricted Net Assets - June 30, 20114 $ 41274620 $ 30,577,080 § 1,697,540

(20)
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NOTE 6

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organization’s long-term debf at June 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows:

Dascription
CHI General Obligation Bonds, various series outstanding

itinois Finance Authority, Revenue Refunding Bonds, Seres 2007A

Hinois Finance Authority, Taxable Variable Rale Demand Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 20078

llinois Financa Authorily, Taxabla Converlible Veriable Rate
Demand Revenus Refunding Bonds, Series 2007C

City of Crown Point, Indiana, Revenue Refunding Bonds Series,
2007D

County of Pollawattamie, lowa, Revenue Refunding Bonds Serjes,
2007

Industrial Davelopment Authority of the City of Joplin, Missouri,
Rovanue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007F

lllinois Financa Authority, Revenue Bonds, Series 2040

Southeastern lHinols Economic Davelopment Authority Supportive
Living Facility Mulii-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A

City of Washington, Winois, Supporiive Living Facility Muiti-Family
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A

Various Mortgages Payable

Two Section 232 HUD Insured Morigage Notes Payable 1o Ziegler
Finaneing Corporalion

Total Long-Term Debt
Less: Current Maturities
Long-Term Porlion

M

2

{2)

{2

2

2

2

@

3

4
(5)

{8)

2011 2010
$ 33,388,984 % 36,704,984
36,385,000 37,365,000
- 905,000
- 8,090,000
$.980,000 7,155,000
8,100,000 8,306,00G
12,040,000 12,340,000
25,000,000
3,853,376 3,909,840
4,720,385 4,789,553
521,130 531,417
10,182,018 10,389,549
141,171,793 130,480,343
18,580,701 14,347,216

3 122,581,092

$ 116,133,127

The Obligaled Group for the Series 2010 and Series 2007 Revenue Bonds consists of
Christian Homes, Inc., Risen Son Chrislian Village, Spring River Christian Village, Inc.,
Hoosier Christian Village, Inc., Chicagoland Christian Village, inc., Fair Havens Christian
Home, Inc., Lewis Memorial Christian Village, and Midwest Senlor Ministries, Inc.

Bonds Payable

(1) CHi General Obligation Bonds are issued onsite at the corporate office in Lincoln,
llinois. Maturity dates range from April 2017 o July 2032. Cerlain of the Bonds
have optional redemption dates beginning in fiscal year 2012. Bondholders have the
right to demand repayment on those option dates. Inlerest is paid quarerly with
rates ranging from 4.00% {o 6.75% and is funded through mandatory monthly
deposils to a sinking fund, General Obligation Bonds are secured by the revenue of

the Qrganization,
{21)
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NOTE 5

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable (Continued}

(2) On June 28, 2007, the CHt obligaled group through the llinois Finance Authority,

the County of Pottawattamle, lowa, and the Industrial Development Authority of the
City of Joplin, Missouri issued $72,920,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2007 under a newly formed master trust indenture.

On July 16, 2007, the CHI obligated group issued the Series 20070 bonds at a total
value of $7,155,000 under the newly formed masier trust indenture. The proceeds
from these bands were used to refinance the Series 1993 bonds issuted by the City
of Crown Foint, Indiana, to fund the debt service reserve and the project fund, and
to pay the underwriter's discount.

The proceeds of the 2007A, 2007B and 2007C bonds were used to refund the
$4,775,000 Series 1989A bonds of Bensenville Home Sociely, refund the
$17,100,000 Series 1995A bonds of Lifelink Corporation Obligated Group, refund
the $18,410,000 Serles 1298 honds of Lifelink Corporalion Chiigated Group, refund
the $1,920,000 Series 2002 bonds of Lewis Memorial Christian Village, and refund
the $6,800,000 Series 2004 bonds of Fair Havens Christian Home.

The proceeds of the 2007E bonds were used to refund the $9,250,000 Series 1992
bonds of Risen Son Christian Village.

The proceeds of the 2007F bonds were used la refund the $10,000,000 Series
2002A bonds of Spring River Christian Village and refund the $1,695,000 Series
2002B bonds of Spring River Christian Village.

Other proceeds from the Series 2007 issuance were used for funding portions of the
debt service reserve funds for these bonds, related expenses of the refinancing and
refunding of prior bonds, and costs of capital projecls at some of the Organization's
facitities. i

The 2007A, 20070, 2007E and 2007F bonds consist of term bonds with maturity
dates ranging from May 2011 to May 2031 and interest rates ranging from 5.00% fo
5.75%.

The 20078 and 2007C bonds were fully refunded during the year ended
June 30, 2011. All outstanding principal and interest on the 2007B bonds was paid
on May 15, 2011 in accordance with the oplional redemption schedule. The 2607C
bonds were refunded as pan of the Series 2010 bond issuance {(see Series 2010
Bonds).

(22)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTES5 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable {(Continued}
(2) {Continued)

The 20078 and 2007C bonds were variable rate demand bonds. By definilion, a
variable rate demand bond is a long-term tax-exempt bond, the interest rate of
which is indexed to a current shorf-term market rate, The interesl rates at June 30,
2010 were 0.40% and 0.38%, respectively. A demand feature allowed the bonds to
‘be remarketed upon 7 days nolice at par value plus accrued inlerest. The
Organization held irrevocable letters of credit with the bond trustee for the face
amount of the bonds. In the event remarketing was not successful, the letter of
credit would be drawn upon to pay the bond trustee. Upon refunding of the 2007B
qnd 2007C bonds, the leiters of credit were terminated.

In relation fo the 20078 and 2007C vanable rate demand bonds, the Organization
entered into interest rale swap agreemenis with a financial institution on
July 12, 2007. The swap agreements had the effect of limiting the variability of the
interest rate on the bonds. The swap agreemenl relating to the 2007B bonds
expired on May 15, 2011. The swap agreement relating to the 2007C bonds was
lerminaled early, effective July 29, 2010 in conjunclion with the issuance of Series
2010 Bonds {see Series 2010 Bonds). At.June 30, 2011 and 2010, the falr value of
the interest rate swap agreements was $0 and $1,004,212, respeclively and
recorded as a long-term liability on the balance sheet. The change of $42,390 and
($121,853) Is reported as part of change in unrestricted net assets for the years
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Organization recorded all desivative instruments, which consisted of interest
rate swap agfeements, on the balance sheet at their respective fair values and all
changes in fair value in the consofidated statements of unrestricted activities as gain
(loss) on derivative financiat insfruments.

Series 2010 Bonds

On July 20, 2010, the CH! Obligated Group, through the lllinois Finance Authorily,
issued $25,000,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 under the existing Master Trust
Indenture as amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Master
Indenture. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the following, (i) to fund
construction and remodeling of certain facililies of the Obligated Group, (i} refund
all of the existing Series 2007C Bonds described above, (jif) pay certain termination
costs owed on lhe interest rate swap agreements relating to the Series 2007C
Bonds, (iv) fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Bonds, and (v) to fund
cerlain issuance cosis. The Saries 2010 Bonds consist of term bonds with
maturities ranging from May 2012 to May 2027 and interest rates ranging from
3.40% to 6.125%.

The Series 2010 and Series 2007 bonds are secured by the underlying morigages
and gross receipts of the obligated group.
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTES LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

(3) The Southeastern lllinois Economic Development Authority Supportive Living
Facility Muiti-Family Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A and 2006B were issued on
bshalf of Wabash Estates, LP. The bonds bear interest ranging from 6.71%-7.25%
and are secured by the indenture and mortgage. The 2006A bonds malure in
December 2023, and the 20068 bonds matured in October 2008.

{(4) The City of Washington, lllinois Supportive Living Facility Multi-Family Revenue
Bonds, Series 2006A and 2006B were issued on behalf of Washinglon Village
Estates, LP. The bonds bear interest ranging from 6.71%-7.25% and are secured
by the indenture and mortgage. The 2008A bonds mature in December 2023, and
the 2006B bonds matured in October 2008.

Mortgages Payable
(5) Morlgages payable consist of mortgages held at Wabash Chrislian Apariments,
Limited Parinership. The first morlgage bears interest at 7%, and the second
morigage bears no interest. Both morlgages are secured by properly and
improvements and mature in December 2025,

HUD Mortgages

(6) On July 19, 2007, Shawnee Christian Nursing Center, L.LC refinanced the existing
facility with a morigage note payable to Ziegler Financing Corporation in the original
amount of $6,634,900. The morlgage is insured by lhe Department of Fousing and
Urban Development under Section 232 of the National Housing Act and
collateralized by all assets, receipts, and profits of the Project. The morlgage bears
interest at 5.88% and matures in August 2032. Proceeds from the mortgage were
used to pay off the City of Herrin, Hlinois Healthcare Facililies First Morlgage
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993.

On July 19, 2007, Hearlland Christian Village, LLC refinanced the existing facility
with a morigage note payable to Ziegler Financing Corporation in the original
amount of $4,292,500. The morlgage is insured by the Department of Housing and
Urban Development under Section 232 of the National Housing Act and
collaleralized by all assets, receipts, and profits of the Projeci. The morigage bears
interest at 5.88% and matures in August 2037. Proceeds from the mortgage were
used to pay off the City of Neoga, lllincis First Morigage Revenue Bonds, Series
1991.

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $7,892,443 and
$8,065,339, respectively. The Organization capitalized interest totaling $593,584 and $0
during ihe years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(24)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE5 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

HUD Mortgages {Continued)

Aggregate future malurities of fong-term debt include all bonds presumed redeemed at their
next option date, since individual bondholders have a right to demand repayment on those
option dates. Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt are as follows at
June 30, 2011;

Year Ending Juna 30, Amount
2012 $ 18,580,701
2013 4,937,549
2014 7,981,880
2015 8,802,691
2016 7.342,336
Later Years 93,526,636
Total $ 141,171,793

The following scheduled principal payments at June 30, 2011 are based upon the
assumption no bond is redeemed on any future oplion date and more closely reflects
management's expectations, based on historical experiance.

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2012 $ 4,334,701
2013 4,481,549
2014 4,774,880
2015 5,028,691
2016 5,331,336 -

Laler Years 117,220,636
Total $ 141,171,793

Loan Pavable

On June 28, 2007, the Organization entered into a revolving loan payabie with a financial
institution for $18,100,000. The loan’s purpose was lo provide liquidily for redeeming .
general obligation bonds as they are presented at the end of inlerest periods and not

refunded by issuance of new debt. The loan was secured by the master indenture and

related mortgages. The loan’s interest rate fioated consistent with the current prime rate.

No amounis had been drawn at June 30, 2010 and the loan matured on June 28, 2011,

without renewal.

Restrictive Covenants

The provisions of the debt agreements described above contain various restriclive
covenants that limit the occurrence of additional debl, require Organization to apply for a
credil rating from a rating agency periodically, and require certain measures of financial
performance be satisfied as long as the debt is outstanding.

(25)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSQOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010 '

NOTE6 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value hlerarchy for the balances of the assets and
liabilities of the Organization measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
June 30, 20114;

2011
Description Tolal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Trading Secusities; ,
Equitly Securilles $ 9741798 $ 6741,798 & -5 -
Mulual Funds 323,108 323,108 - -
Fixed Income 16,433,183 - 16,433,183 -
Total $ 26,498,089 $ 10,064,906 $ 16,433,183 & -
2010
Description Tolat Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Trading Securilles;
Equity Securilies 5 4501072 § 4,501,072 8 - % -
Fixed Income 14,021,665 - 14,021,665 -
Total $ 18,522,737 [ 4,501,072 $ 14021665 & -
Liabilities;
Interest Rate Swap .
Agreementis $ 1004212 § 1004212 § -8 -
Tolal 3 1,004,212 % 1,004,212 $ - 3 -

The following is a summary of financial instruments for which the Organization did not elect
the fair value option. The fair values of such instrumenls have been derived, in part, by
management's assumptions, the estimated amount and timing of future cash flows, and
estimated discount rates. Different assumptions could significantly affect these eslimated
fair values. Accordingly, the nel realizable value could be materially different from the
eslimales presented below. in addition, the estimates are only indicative of the value of
individuat financial instruments and should not be considered an indication of the fair value
of the Organization. The provisions of the disclosure do nol require the disctosure of non
financial assels including intangible assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short malurily of those
Instruments.

Accounts Receivable
The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those
inslruments.

Long-Term Debt
The fair value of long-term debt is estimated for each individual issue based upon current

reasonable interes! rates taking type of debt and maturities into account.

(26}
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NOTE 8

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC, AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {CONTINUED}

All Other
The carrying value is a reasonable estimate of the fair value for ali other financial
instruments due to the short-term nature of those financial instruments.

The following disclosures represent financial instruments in which the ending balances at
June 30, 2011 and 2010 are not carried at fair value in their entirety on the consolidated
balance sheet:

2011 2010
Carrylng Fair Carrylng Fair
Amouni Value Amount Value
Long-Term Dabt - Flxed $ 141,171,793  § 138,027,089 § 121485343 3 116,224,782
Long-Tern Deb! - Variable $ - 3 - % 8995000 $ 8,995,000

BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUST

The Organization receives contributions of property in which the donor may retain a life
interest. The assels are invested and administered by an unrelated trustee and distributions
are made to the beneficiaries during the term of the agreement.

Those funds held by the unrelated {ruslee are invesied in debt and equity securities and the
Organization records ils interest in these trusts at fair value based on estimated future cash
receipts. Initial recognition and subsequent! adjustments to the assets’ carrying values are

. recognized as contribution revenue and changes in value of split interest agreements,

respectively, and are classilied as permanently restricted, lemporarily restiicted, or
unrestricted depending on donor-stipulated purpose and time resirictions, if any.

The value of these trusis was $0 and $1486,230 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The trusts are temporarily restricted and are included in other assets on the balance sheet.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress consisied of the following significant projecis:

Corporate Office

At June 30, 2011 and 2010 the corporate office had approximately $1,037,000 and
$820,000 of costs incurred for construction projects, respectively. The June 2010 costs
relaled to HR and payroll software updales. The project was completed and placed in
service during fiscal year end 2011, The costs Incurred as of June 30, 2011 refate to clinical
software updates, is estimaled to cost $1,300,000 in total, and is being financed by the
Series 2010 Bonds.

7
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NOTE 8

NOTE 9

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONTINUED)

Hickory Point Christian Village

At June 30, 2011 and 2010 Hickory Point Christian Village had incurred totai cosis of
approximately $7,400,000 and $800,000, respectively, related to the construction of a 47-
bed skilled nursing facility, which was funded by the Series 2010 Bonds. Costs to complele
the project totaled approximately $7,500,000, which was placed into service subsequent to
yéar end in July 2011,

Lewis Memorlai Christlan Village

At June 30, 2011 Lewis Memorial Christian Vilage incurred costs of approximately
$1,100,000 refated to various projects, the largest of which are mine subsidence
improvements, a 10-unit shared housing villa and a new maintenance bullding. Total costs
to complete the mine subsidence improvements are currently unknown and are being
financed with funds received from the Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund (see Commitments
and Contingencies disclosure). Tolal costs to complete the villa and maintenance building
projects are expected to be $750,000 and $115,000, respectively, and are being financed
by the Series 2010 Bonds

The Christian Village

At June 30, 2011 The Christian Village incurred costs of approximately $1,300,000 related
lo various campus renovations. Total costs to complete the project are expecied to be
approximately $1,900,000 and are being financed by the Series 2010 Bonds.

Other
CHI had muitiple other smalier projects in progress on its various campuses. Upon
complelion, cost related to these projects will begin to be depreciated.

RETIREMENT PLANS

Qualified Retirement Plans

CHI has a Section 403(b) retirement plan. Employees who elect to participate in the plan
may defer up to the maximum amount allowable under the Inlernal Revenue Code. CHI
does not make matching contributions upder the plan.

Non-Qualiffed Retirement Plans

CHI has a non-gualified Section 457 relirement plan covering certain executive and
management personnel. These key employees are eligible for the plan upon obtaining one
year of employment with the Organization. CHI makes quarterly contributions ranging from
$1,000 to $1,500 for each employee depending on level of leadership. Contributions made
to the plan were $216,750 and $200,875 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively,
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 10 FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES

NOTE 1

Functional classification of expenses for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Program $ 125,253,892 $ 121,332,882
Management and General Suppori 23,632,278 20,457 431
Total Operating Expenses ' $ 148,786,168 $ 141,790,313

Fundraising expenses incurred during the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were
immaterial and are included with management and general supporl. Salaries and related
expenses are allocated based on job descriptions and the best estimates of management.
Expenses, olher than salaries and related expenses, which are nol directly fdentifiable by
program or supporling service are allocated based on the best estimales of management.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Workers' Compensation Insurance

The Organization is self-insured for workers' compensation insurance through the Christian
Homes Workers' Compensation Trust. The Trust was organized and operates under the
provisions of the llfinols Religious and Charitable Risk Pooling Trust Act (the Act). The
trustees of the Trust are appoinied by CHI's Board of Directors. The Trust retains the first
$250,000 of the costs for any individual claim. CHI remains responsible for claims paid and
as such has estimated a reserve for claims incurred but not reported of approximately
$2,203,000 and $1,612,000 at June30, 2011 and 2010, respactively.

CHPs provision for claims incurred but nol reported, although supported by actuarial
projections and other data, is ullimately based on management's expectations of future
events. It is possible that these estimates could change as more detailed information
concerning the losses is received and the effect of such changes could be material lo the
consolidaled financial statements.

Self-Insured Medical Benefits

The Organization provides health and death benefits through a self insured heaith plan.
Administrative supporl of the plan is provided by employees of CHt. The Organizaticn
insures for excessive and unexpected claims and is liable for claims with limits determined
through actuarial reports, Claims in excess of the insurance limit are funded by the
Organization. The Organization has stop-loss insurance to cover excessive claims over
$425,000 per individual. CHI is responsible for claims paid and as such has estimated a
reserve for claims incurred but not reported of approximately $350,000 at June 30, 2011
and 2010.

CHI's provision for claims incurred but not reporied, although supported by actuarial
projections and other data, is ultimalely based on management's expectations of future
events. 1 is possible that these estimates could change as more detailed information
concerning the losses is received and the effect of such changes could be material to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 11

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Lewls Memorial Mine Contingency

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Qrganization discovered that damage was
occurring to their senior apartment building on the Lewis Memorial Christian Village
campus in Springfield, Hiinois, which included cracking and issues with windows and door
frames. Through a process of professional inspections, it was determined that the damage
was being caused by coal mine subsidence. During the year ended June 30, 2008, CH!
decided thal it was not prudent to continue repairs on this building, and it was vacated and
demolished during the year ended June 30, 2009. The operating impact of ¢losing the
senior apartment building was not deemed material to the overall campus. Duting the year
ended June 30, 2009 the Organization received $1,119,628 from the Mine Subsidence
Insurance Fund to cover repair and replacement expenses incurred or accrued at year end
for structures other than the senior apartment building affected by ihe mine
subsidence. During the year ended June 30, 2010 the Organization received $908,158
from the Mine Subsidence insurance Fund, however, no repair or replacement coslts have
been identified due to continued movement.

To date, the Organization has taken ail recommended safety precautions and has not been
materially hindered in their operation of the remainder of the campus. Management is
currenlly in the process of working with the Department of Natural Resources and other
consultants to determine the cost of correcting other problems. Certain of these costs will
be the responsibility of the Organization, while other costs may be covered by the lilinois
Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund. Presently an estimale of the lotal cost and related timing
of the work cannot be determined, therefore, no liability has been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements. '

Litigation

The Qrganization is subject lo asserled and unasserted claims encountered in the normat
course of business. The Organization's management and legal counsel assess such
contingent liabilities and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In
assessing Joss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the
Organization or unasserled claims thal may resuit in such proceedings, the Organization's
legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims
as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be soughl
therein. In the opinion of management, disposition of these matiers will not have a malersial
effect on the Organization's financial condition or results of operations.

Health Care

The health care indusiry is subject to numerous laws and regulations by federal, state, and
local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited lo,
mallers such as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participalion
requirements, reimbursement for resident services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and
abuse. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by
health care providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion
from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed.

(30}
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| MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 12 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The QOrganization maintains ils cash and cash equivalents, investments, and assets limited
as to use, at financial institetions which management believes has strong credit ratings and
that the credit risk related to these deposile is minimal. Accounts are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At times, deposits may exceed FDIC
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses In such accounts and believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk.

The Organizalion granis credit without collateral to its various facility residents or their
families, most of whom are local individuals and are insured under third-party payor
agreements. The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors was as follows at
June 30, 2011 and 2010:;

2011 2010
Parcent Percent
Medicaid 148 % 297 %
Medicare 35.8 34.2
Private and Insurance 49.6 361
Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

(31
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LarsenAllen

CPAs, Consuitants & Advisors
www.larsonatlon.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON
COMBINING AND CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.

dba: Christian Homes, In¢. and Affiilates
Lincoln, lilinois

Our report on our audits of the basic consolidated financial statements of Midwest Christian Villages,
Inc. dba; Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 appears on
page 1. Those audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidaled
financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on pages 33 through 48 is
presented for additional analysis of the basic consolidated financial slatements and is not a required
parl of the basic consolidated financial slatements. The supplementary information has not been
subjected o the audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic consciidated financial statemenls
and, therefore, we express no opinion on it. '

LLP

tarsonAllen LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
October 6, 2011

NEXIA o
N A I Anindepandanl member of Nexda Intetnational

INTERNATIONAL

000153 . ATTACHMENT-39




()

¥90 1995k § GSOFOPPL 8 O0CZIvWE § GIOGFBLE § BZLGS0S §  ZLCQEP'E § LGOELD0 §  LCUROOIC §  996'CAP'S S 88E'vEKEL §  6LMPEETL §  BCICUNSL ¥
B0 IELOT BLE LRz TICEAL $92626 L ZE0 J6T SOFS0C € VI'ELE BEEvR 157 126} 00v'892 S0 00C 2 ILZ7. 8462
=0 - - - - . - - - - 0 -
860'S6T°E - - 861278°2 - 008'25%74 - . - - - -
STL'ICV9L 3814 ers'rit 990°ER STO'ISL 905°70e'L ITELE SO5'0AL L 157 126°L or9'ie £H0'E6TT LTS
286'086 IrTLE 82v'as2 - LEE'SOT - - v g ] - OLL'LET - .
SrrLor'aL LIV'BEOT [ri:r4:18: 0 aL1ErE 999'C1ZT CES'EDY'T SETORS'L Brieiohl 856°6v8'L LYEEP0'EL LE8'LE0E 6E0'628'S
ICT'9L'es N T ERCL I6LHSO'E [T ESO'POET 68 TGl T [TXT AR [FiI%] L0256y el
£89°/60°6%L SLE'Ze0'Ce ZZLLOTSL SO5'E0S'S 560°490'C RYOTLTY 12Z'SBLY 006" Zor L TSERER'S 2LLBHLEE PEREEE'L CREZvSTL
HIEEBL04 oro'h [T 0L6'9CH osg'e osL'y - LTTYE ) - [N 155'0% LI0'80E]
OLE'PELP) 08T LIET 757°686 669'BLL TOP'BLE LLIN- 2985807, PlB'E2S') 854’502 296166 O5E'L29't 50V erLt
BIO'RZYLOL 08" ¥A45'0Z £80'P1E'EL CrE'SSY Y TLO08LY wTTR0'S 5T L10°29T°51 105'e85' 862'20L k1 ZLOHOT'S 12'sLL'8
PER'LZE'L BLY'502 £06° 1862 es9'0Lt 1L6'18 0LE'SH 5€8°L7 20:'00¢ ¥E9'0P BLS'TILE §L8101 oLEvLE
TL9'50T°E 5] 569'CR0" [T g4 . - SL059T - 124200} .
(L0688} (Le0'sEL) a7l (Lewoz) [y t2Lere) {Zsi'rl) Tale'ssh) (zal ot} 2ry'geL} Toneer) Li00°4t)
¥ES'9ET Y E0RSL Zre'SLE'L 168902 200'80y oie'et 26t pL InTaling Z5L 08 £98'202's zis'ce LOE'LE
£6°200'y gIL0LL THYET L 1V9'9 LEL'15E ¥RLLE - 958 LoF B 0r0651°1 veE'O2 BIXD
VZLEST viz'et 005'20 DLO'TL s98'rr pLOET 57l L50ez s8r's2 £25'C :Trgv &L2'8L
ETEILLS L6 L £58BIL'S PGB LL0'S 6065542 LLE'BO¥' Y Ze0'69L'y PERELOEL {55 P12 L {080'828't) 9L8'555 8 £RESELL
LL0'88E LB0'FCE Ly@'2Es 18802 [YI37) e IR [T 28L'0¢ 2rLEEL e L06'LE
G9¥' 0L 85’29 FLINT cri'pst cioee 625'20T £30'92 96199 92E'r ool £05°05 61L°67
SEC'ET) - - SZT4H - 86T'ET} . - - Qze pze} sz
520°L¥T6 WEELOL e8CE0°L 106'PLL'L BES"HLO'L TINEEL Lag'ots SEE'RLLL zZL'528 (882'8) Ly EOE 114124
BLCEL0Cy § ZOVESE 6§ TSEERLC §  PbLA0ST §  L29°066 § 996'ISTE $ GUE'SS0' § LU0 5 ATES % (96TFTOL 05 SHSESL § EHORLY S

magng ehea UTIA ELTT Y JEtEh] i) [FECRTN abe||ia oﬂ._u___b U QWoH QECLA,

wepsuuD 1t UBREIND Bunginn Wouwsamey LERSHYD VERSD uefsua URASKND eSS UUREHY D L
puRieBeoyD 1oaps Supss UOUIETAA UENSHID ueRsU4D #0[500H JrueALLa ENOPBRI Juiog AowiH sucALH 123
Jalvoug SCQBAA ] IJESB|d

(NOILYWHOZNI AHVINIWT 1ddNS ANV ONILVArOSNOI NO LH043N SHOLIANY LNAANIJIONI 33S)

LLOZ ‘0€ 3NN

133HS ONVIVE SNILVAIMOSNOD ANV DNINIFIWOD

SILVITIASV ANV "ONI ‘S3WOH NVILSINHD :vad
*ONI ‘STOVTTIA NVILS[HHO LS3IMAIN

LEETL T

£A85Y LR 1101
SIRSEY Y0 PUR IcuzIntY|
a7 Jo BNBA SPUILRG USED
BIIBADOY $I10N
AISUNSOA|
5507 Bupueurd pawdjag
SL3SSY WIMLO

(5o prepadag e}
sudinbg pue Apacoid 1ee L
UABDACHA PRACIINNIOY BEIT
LT
Sl W uogangsuey
uawdinby
SwIuasdw) pue AujpIing
siuswaanduwy pue pud pue
tELLED)
ANSINGINDA ANY ALH 2408

(RrOQy LmoyS
LOIO IUBLND 46 YaN) B8N
o1 $T poILY 05Ty (o)
BACQY WMOUG UORICH WALND [$EAY
&0,
Spun plaK sy,
Spunj JuapiseyY
26N QL SV QLW SLATSY

056V IUALNY [E0L
350 € 58 pAN
o5y J8 Uoiag NN
DESEY W) JIND
£RIqEARDaY Auedwooiv
N DGRAIRDAY FNTSYY
SRHRAINDT YSED pUE YTRD
SL3SSY INAXUND

$1385Y

ATTACHMENT-3%

000154




(e}

POSYOSIZ & (BRWEZS) £ CIELEOLUE §  OLVIELH S EBEWL §  GELBLVE §  GOANS6S §  SIGRLBI § L2EGOZY § TSSvA0S 5 v2Ewasvh S reOlessrl 8
DEZ Ve T Teeopeaon . ey W G5 b2 aov's EOUI0E Zerzat 875416 - P TiEESE 0L 22 02
180°81E - 160'BLE BBL0LE - - E - - . TEEL
- (650°55T £} EEQ'56TE - - - - - . - - E50'GETE
£T0'LL0T {000'682'9) 2E00LE'SE ESTIZEEZ - - - - - cee'gd 67904 SELLPaL
LLBSEE - LhLBSEE [T )18 gsp'2 £04°202 3% o)) 875'218 . £59'84 Z3TERL WE'G36
E65'S8. PEL (oo0'2e8'L) £69'20'8EL BLE'LIS'Y E0'623 OvLE0L OLLY2E'S SLH'BESPE £99'252 ePLERS'E PES'PERCL Lar s
vir'es0 - [ 057102 vl 030°6FLY 673'FEY ) BTG I O 9L 2501 LTI
ABLGRRYLLZ {000’ s05°t} 1BL2SHELZ bgaclo] Ergor _OOE'04LE BES'gSE'S ZESLM LY bagies BE'SEL'S oz £BS5'1606L
vBTCLOTL H L0t LT L0 - - - 168758 - - - LLE'IBLOL
TPEROTT - TErOTER HErzot 1088 IZST6 S04'LLZ NS'VE'h £00's5Y 686" 158 165'p0y'L 01675 LvL
SE9TELOLL {000'£95'4) STFEILTLL BE'SSOTL 082’} 226'590'L HT00'8 639°2B400 wealz LUEOR'Y vOE'161'51 229'928'L0L
9w LL - 18-y £16°800 0e'Le 000'68 000°LL 0000089 - w508 5C4'9%7 wE'L2s't
STETICS: - RECIETH Lip'een's 6L SEr"2BL [P 118 LS Q005 BEL'SLL £48'300'
(980°28672) - (300°L55'T) gy T Tzigol) losre Tsszee) S W05z (110803
149'026°41 - LLE'0ZR'ZL S00'TTH'Y BEsL 1p2e02 020's7L S0P it 3] BL'E58 TEYSEE'Y
LY - gLl SOLZED BIEDY SE¥'L51 0LT Lk 25872587 §10728 3] 36200
295'96¢ - 89506 . 08L's ZLg'ol 0825 25968 BeP'L £58'0L L\ZLEBE
99580321 (e '5v0" Lo} BAEe0'eL DEG'SCL'ST 800°%C LSL TG £26'00% (vt 2’269} ESE'ZLE'S ave'ivd'l LZLLOSE [ 4> T ]
9B0'/SST - S8Y'I5%'T LR (53 ela'oL 0528 [EEFTS . PPLET [ +H0'8E
9080554 (org 22} ReBrL) 919662 £91' BOESL S5’y 28219 £59°EES oiz'es th'vr LR
- waraly'or; YOZOLYOr IBTEEZOr BT - {e5p) e - - - R
TEULPOTL [T PLLLEBTL TEUT6E o) LL0'erE e 206'252't TH2EL lev'izy L't SW0'928
zice0e &8 - s ngumw s (06T $§ SHME 0§ 09s'TR $  fre'skt & {SYETEESY) 3 #90'%GSY 8 LIFORZL S TWOEYT §  WUEOW $

[N AL reoigng ) SREdY =] [ECH abE|IL [ C:ET oA leRuns |
palgpORR]) wesodion vegsiD afeya YSEREm uepsin fagueyy RSy wenELy

Useqem uSBUL A heaatpuR FURD IDRAS puEnraal RS UISNY

SOUISHIN J01UDS SEMOHA

(NOILYWHOZN] AMVLININTNddNS GNY DINULVYAMOSNOD NO LHGdIY (SHOUCNY LNIANIJIAN] a3s)
L16Z ‘0f INAC
(QINNILNOD) L33HS IONVIVE ONILYOINOSNOD ONY DNINIGWOD

SILVYITIAAY GNY "ONL ‘SIWOH NYILSIHHD vaa

*ONI “‘S29VTTIA NVILSIMHO 1SaMAtN

Ra5FY RO

FIIEY D0 KoL
L1360 D PUR FoURINSL|
DI 40 ON{BA JOPUBLING 40D
R0y 1SION
)
aso7 Bunuen: pliad
SLASSY WEHLO

{1se) pawpaidag 1¢)
WRHUCNDT pue Aol 03]
USRI PIWINLTYY (TR
=30
SO0 L] U0 IRUISIOD
MRwENDY
SuawIresdw) pue Bupmg
SURUIA0IOW) PURT PUE PuE)
(1saD )
JKIN<INDI QNY A1¥AS0Ed

(enoqy Lwsus
UORIO 1WALNY 10 10N) 85N
oL 5. PREU(T SIASTY KIOL
SATY UM UORO g JUILETD 459
1moL
SPUNY (IH SIEVL
SRR LIPS
3$N QL Sv QLLWIN SLISSY

FIETY L)) (0L
051 0 5T pANIN
§A5TY J0 UORI0 WD)
GISFY RRLND A0
SEgeAERa Y Auedsoual
L3N DISTARDIY SNQooY
swoAnb3 yse pue yIeD
SIISSY LNRIND

SIASSY

ATTACHMENT-39

000155




ATTACHMENT-39

(g€}
Po'LeE'SYL §  GSEWOMPL §  OOZZWPbt §  CABPEES I B2V G0T § ZICO0Y6 S LBO'BLS'D & LOUEORZC S WUS'CEP'S §  BobVEYBL T GLLVEREL £ BRZTOIGL £ 558y 10N FUR FLIIGEN 110
DLzl o [BLZweT 7l (IR SU0Z! LELerEE 5080927 A 0Z9ars’s r35E0CB) _B0EgY EZRE0E SIIGEG L. _BR9rEbE ROREY JaN 110
0TL'08 - - - - . - - - - - 02L'8%t PRSIy Ausueunzg
BER' LS 5808 - rily [T g2 LA i5e'TE gt a0 ELF'L E{EOr pappisay Apssodum
95" LiL'se (BOE'0SZ'2L) {181'c0a'2) £E9WVE'E pLzvgre) 2E6°409'L Sep'ivE's 19186 Qriven'e B07'ESZ ST PETLL 2T5'694°6 SIRERY 13 PR{NIASAAN [BI0L
- - . - P E———— Iy - = -~ - = 1SeURW By ucouD
EYS'LLISY (got'ogzy)  (iel'soe’'d £ e BT TEE' L L EU LeE'S 151eLT'8 [0 807852 06Z'H8S"s | 225's9L'B g Suanog
ﬁuU—bﬂu»ﬁD
SL1355TAIN
155'905'66 ISR [3: PR -18 -TA%: 0N i3 10 STLSIEL LErOEL [2-101- 1 48 862'ave SoelEL'RL L ord Clog0a's BB [BIOL
ZE LB CORAZZ Y, LL1EES'L SHE'DS 151721 ATy i) v L'} 58800 SELEEY L 861822 FIYE T SUMREN 100 [0
LB S GITEL LIE'E LU 16V W5 LZ1 6LS'HL 9:9'r 985'0L - sl E+0'01 S80S0 %
GRI'950'E aLp'L5L SrEE BEE'CL - BOZ'LL 'L BLLSYS - §21 Lo 852'E0L £rELbL $297 FURING W ITUAREY PRUBI] —
901'CaL's ograsEL 152’08 oaz'st - > Siv's L189165 - H9'Leg's LEZ'PTL fcd: 9328 $924 ToURLLY QRPN -
SALTIEY ¥IHLO (=)
(=]
PETS9R'LL TsUWB'T FEItErEL LS'LRLS TES'695' ¥ o] SE'0at 2ELIBEOL 27410 FrL LT 9rLGETL SISTELE (oAoay WeAS SonimTy
uawny o 1eN) LA30 WHELENOT
EZP'0Ea'LL SE0'BYL ArGVTL AT vaR BSLBZEY 00005 996405 89L 4851 156669 _GORJZEN pegezm  _L9T'9I6 SAIERT RO 0L
[ 005" L5 003B0% 005s - aoi'tl Toael 03K 15T - Ot 208 [ 600'68 533 4 DR/ DITBPUMTY JO VDO RHILNT
GAG'ErE aee'o amr'es 402} SoE'wy iy >4 'L e 651’57 EZE'T T RTE 341 aReded png Brul uspissy
Lar'CEL'S 896'CEL SHYSTS Byl 145 -7 STVLLE 941'65C 9IT'5ES SIE'SEY L7T95T vI0'L2C 918 Ly E2IMEE] panITY SAID
aulig 28 odp'L 08t £28°2 {F 2] BEP'L PEC'E wBLS zo8 095'L L $aede Aueduioosdu)
SEB'RLE'L 105'4L 95’5 BAR'ESE £BI'E0L pOLSS =217 4} E58'21Y BT £05'2Lp 092'051 £85'veT OIS
995'99Z'E L8’ r2 8T0'15T 98B [¢12:u k4 po6'arT g ¥ 48 [ 1= o CESERL 19550 IP0'ELT £0C'091 &pEIf
DQeied SuneYdy
0T 0§ 000BRL § DOD'SIE § 006Gk 5 TLTSSL $£ eSSl % - g psg'oEl 5 WL § 595'SEZ § R §  GE6IE $ 1990 wra-Butr Jo s3uLnE WD
SIUMAYT LNSHEND
S1955Y 13N ANv SILRIEVT
[HEEE obea EECTTS 25T ORI JBRIR0 5 E5T EEETY LTI [T EL:ET
[t ] uESIMD VERSALD Bupuny ey UBGSAY Ve s umiisiuD VRlISUUD . LensIA AL
poefieodn  sewy Buawas ussBuigseps wousIyD UREIALD TE00H RUBWEN SM0pTaR oy Aonay BUaARH eg
Busods [0 fma WoEesld
(NOLLYIWYOINI AYVYLININDIddNS ANY SNILYOINOSNOD NO LYO4IY S3OLIANY INIaNIJ2aNt 338)
[ .
LLOZ "0€ 3INNM )
(Q3ANNILNOD) 133HS ONYIVE ONILVAOSNOD ANV ONINISWNOD
- [1 .
SALVITEIVY ANV "DNI "S3INOH NVYILSIHHD vEa
n ]
ONI "STOVTIA NVILSIHHD LSIMAIN




{NOILYIWHO AN] AMYINIWIddNS CNY SNILYOITOSNOD NO LYOdIH .SHOLIANY LNIANI430NI 338)

TORIRRIN 101093 FeMOlX

LLOZ ‘0¢ ANNC

(9g)

THOSAIGZZ § (BTOrICS) 5 CMILEDLEZ §  0LLLZrEd S eeCllr & SEHEILH § GIETOST §  GIUERS6Z S LZOBOZD § Z00eeds § RETRETL § POO'LESSHL
2L SES LY {oo0'295') Y- Ta SEEAL'E [ B9'GLE Y a7’ 12 (L 29691 LST'088'S DEZ BRS {70'902E) 0L G
[ - [74] 373 - E . - - - - azigel
202'9LL - fla:3-718 . - 0% - 255 - 805 6I5T gcE'LIL
ey JEAT) 00'£95°L) 0Z8'Lea'Ty LLeTes {rZre) BN erLZy lezg'ams's) 068’ ZZLGYS iez0'0L2'6) BhE'LLLG?
=D - L7 B - BE0'ILEL [yt - - . - -
090" LIS'6E (000'295'L} o' LY SECTPL'S bz o 4 {€20'588'9) £SE'088E'S TGS (200226} BrSILLSP
B9BIEEDE (Bga'aL0’15) A52'85'PEE $8I056'95 19500 15°2089 eSS 9L 95520 22G'GESY WLE06L YT 56'8ES'65
SEQ'LGS' 0T - SE0°LES 07 6L0°'988 TiLEE ZLE 0L B5L5 950EnL'D - 741'01 089°520'C [T
NEE= E LB BEZ'L 6EB'ELS [ - . [F523 - 7E0'8 [IZ3 Lgie
91812 - ALLLTZL ri'et - - - ST H05Y - . 058°816°L BPLS6E'E
BOT'0VO'L - 02'ora’L BSFER orst e 052'6 005y - 5L (i1 4218 S01'8ALS
2607165 T2 Br51pT Lp} WOTEE'ESL 05TTIEE Z50'0LS LPOBED TS PG LBY'IT - TLVES T SLBETPEL RTGIRLL
L IET D DZTeeR'e} DEC'RLC'bY 8IE551EE £64°89L VSO zer'ale 580'Pr5°E B97'6ZE Srenes DLE'SRLL 5ZRees'Ll
Q00" wIp's B o0 s (RT3 - - - - - B 00E98L YN
¥e6'IZE - 6 2ZE . - - - 859'99 - BEV'L 5601 BRE'EYZ
LL8'e58'CH loz9'e62) 1671511 20L108's £68'0L DL5'5E PI9'CvE [ 1249 USLL -4 714 180'85Q'L [ 37
- (L0281 LOLEBE [eera'v) orIEzL 14 vEL'Z =) 248 -7 LN SLLLE
152'e02'2 - \SZTE0ZT BLOEDZ - - . TELEL - £50°L8 si8'%1 556'818'
A (ove 200 sroZe 0es'eon lL'e ¥21'0L BIE'S WEETs Qg 20086 826452 936'9577
lalessel  § (Bs0's00's) 8 PSLSREIT § OSTTLESE) t OG0 % EWNL % SE00F 8 Q5SS 5 - § WBUS 0§ OSIE 5 ez §

=T SuofeUTaE oG GE) TRuLiedy LT3 ) WSEIA g ELITY wioA RIS
RIEPHOSUDD R0 URASND oSena USEQ2AN, LRSI frrasiyg VepsiND UEISIAD)

YEDGBAA VOB Aewabous WY JORDS PR VoG UISHY

{QANNILNOD) LIAHS FONYIVE ONILYAINOSNOD ANV ONINIGINOD
S3.LVI(NId4dY ANV "ONI ‘'SINOH NYILSIMHD vEa
"ONI ‘SZOVTUA NVILSINHO 1Samaln

R29%w [N pUR SARLNET] [ERL

DTV BN 0L
papissY Apsaurunad
BIRIRSaY Apmiodune
TSITY 12N PESMSOAI 1232 L
jsauow| Bujie Lucouon
unt) Buyjanuo?y
PRSI
S138SV LaN

S3nqeN 1KLL

221821 SANQ IB0L
ST IRRD
3337 IRV WK HeiBAY POU]
§334 3URAUT BRI
SANMUEYTI ¥BHLO

{enoqy Umoyg Sepumey
Jueuny 1o 0N} 1EE0 Wa AL-0KOT

SHIWHRN WD Eio),

$D33 QOUSNVY DRERUN Y 10 LOLO WRLND
s|qedad pund 1STUL WEPIERY
SaRIARA pANDY A0
RKeiRg {uedwouan|

[Hehi =il g ]

apel)
SiqRind suncay
1900 wa-£ucT jo sapume paurD

SULIMIAYT] LNTdUnD

SLISEY LIN AR SALNIEYN

ATTACHMENT-39

000157




{2e}
e rrr——— e e e r—
1802524 5 (eB'092) § 0910 S GSELT §  (PEDOL9) T fBiv183 % BIPER® § OFIENZT $ LeZer 8§ (Gurwel) 0§ @o/'5aSL § BE6608 % S1ASSY 19N JALOMELSEHNN
NI {3$vay030a} aSvaUONI
. - - - - - - - - - . SUOLnQUIED IRERD
{ogr'eeos) - - - (oEt'gen’L) - - - - - - - SIRYGY Leeiag siejsued), Abs
- - - . - - - - - - - - Mg SEY 15a:a1U] JO UDierTEA U Jbuyd
31014 (2peronz) aBl'0eg 9SH'LIE'} 95v'492 eLrLE gzr'ses 0316t {26y (8ep'ran) eL'9s BEE'508 ASNILNE WINO ENNAATY
40 Wsi43a) s839%3
6£6'260'C OZ'LL LP5SEL 641 G56'58 S/L'BRE LOTSL Bmw_mlm SrL'osT [846'EL) gLLLEE 0Z0'6p% {95U0d) JWTN L0 (30,
[ETY) ._w.m;r.mv USLEZ) (257 (5261) (aLe's Uog 1) 199’5 - los2'e) (G55 [0 Wawdinbg puB Apadold 10 [Bsods10 U £307
L05'LL L] g s+l LhLL gL' 82T TR wPT'E - ZP's v/8'2 UOIPDUISOY WAy PYETRY Aty WN
LEB'9ZLL IvLEE [an:yx:] PIT'EET 020'Z% 956'TEL 06ty G7E'yL 64506 S5E v HLILE Lt ]
LIG°EGL S BOLSE BT b= 965y 3940 S7L'ISE §25'62 SEE'Z 109'108 TEg i FHFUIEIN LS UED PITETNN
vEEBaLL 858'ee 90L'EE 2 =a:T:T8 L8 r T ) 28671 £60'88E IvLee (9spgL) e60"L 4L oz W MBS
. (ISNIE D) AIWOINI HIHLO
TLEV'S (80)120%) €9'0e2 £o0'0Ts' L arsLLe ooe'eze \TTYS LIGOFE'L (1602 (@I5'051] ooreiet BL6'098 {$S07) INOIN] DNLTHIAO
Zrr§655 _SBPTLLLEL B5E PG L SO0'8FL 4 ZLSEOLE LOP'E80'S SEEOSE'S 09L'93E'EL SISEL5 081’5862 SR IE0l TZBELL Y efuat Sunerad jmoy,
LLLETE'Y 205708 BIE'sow 15052 BRE'ZO7 YT RIE €076l LP'E5L Iy 5L LT 157 BIGDLE Lri'sEE ORI pue VoIRInEe]
ZeatLe LES'ISE'S we'ole LLECT BSG'T6T iSTEY £esE 600182 ¥98'L Tl 09814 Log'ss 8@33u)
- - - - - - - - - - - - Soe) Auadong
2LI5'TpLY [A8%:73 688°0L8 152995 reeTrS OE5 154 Si5TLLS ZE0'ETE 626'097 S6E'EZL €ve'oaL 004665 510U 33A0)3urg
5L Er0'e [:a: YSr'PEL o50'sPT BrT6T ok 1 [23:3:1+4 0280 51T BRS'YS 980'ipe £15'857 S ) lluded
€B6"1ST CBY'SE TLLS9 BEL'ZL fonvyord ST \SB'9 TSLER 995E jEy=od vt 5081 Buneyen
IEC'BPYEY PO LOTE WrERT PTG 626" 185" OSYETZL 10’618 BSLLLE') TZHES A T15'L5'L V5180 BAJINEINWPY
S2H'00LY 897599 algBYe LT f.cicpol-3 LOO'R Y S5LLLT 8E1'eZ9 T Lt 05TETT LPE BT el FURUSRIRIN G BUOIROAS) Lttt
B5L'586Z LZL46E 60C'PEZ 5501 VLRI MEBEIE 274113 [N~ BSE'EST BIE%S LI9'T8Z 8:5°60C SIS BV PUO SIUAIRY
LOL'95ET RS aEE [:¥74: 9p'654 SELBOL A7 B0 TBLLEZ BET'ESC L9522 (AL PES'LYE EEY'GTE Burdaayasnoy
E54B50'L LS9’ LS5 59908 1EP'TrS 59'509 LETRIS BLEFSE vOL'ts8 BrLEIS 55'8rL 0STESL £28'€ty Agiaiq
[EFig o3 23 265°585'L L6V L' EE'PeT" L -TA%:1: 4 195°025'1 [¥i ] RIS £29'9T5 a2y 4 BILLGEE TOP'EEE A
85ETLL'0E SSRGS SZP'OB'E PR d 0LL'RET 8LC'FLLT 2I0'09TT L0052’y 0105087 P Fao] Z/OSLYE 90T Suiny
ASNILE HRLLYHAAD
PR ZSL 0L ABE'SBLTL LES'GOLTL EO0EIER 250°519°6 L0£'a18'8 146'vLE'S Lig'0E'vL PO TLE'S aoy'etey 598'959'LL ZrR'eeg omondy Bureladn wiaL
0BV L5282 G86'rL 288 04" PLLTT 953 608 TR LoT'EL 818’5 BES'E e
[:+1-34 ¥} 160'POL are'le 0T - CHO'EL oLy 5212} - z61'gel TN T 118 $094 UDISSIIIY 13 UTIEDUGRTY
ZOL'008°00L §  GEO'CES'ZY §  PRE'TZOTL § POYORE'E 5 OSEOI9% §  wHE'ELEE §  SZL'O0ST § LOOBCI'Pl & 0BL'ZSE® £ 9EVIiZEZ 0§ MBESSLL S8 LZ5eIEL S OARG LIRS
ANNIATH ONLLYHELD
\R0NG wenn Bl A Biles GUpnN popr= CHanA, TCUA THA LI SWIH EECT
RS VRSO LS ueREAD uSRINAY Lt ] VEED umsing RSO UESRY LONISIAD By
pueoBEONY  JoARd BuRdS  LOIBUUSEA famyS Vs JopsocH BB EMOSEAY Wiod AOXIH EUIARH 418
UsECRA, Faean wescalg
(NOLLYIHOAN] ANVINIWINHANS ANV ONILVANOSNOD NO 180433 ,SHOLIAGNY LINIANSJ3AN] 338)
102 "0€ INNC Q3ANI UV3A
SALLIAILDY QIL2IHLSTENN 40 INSWILVY1S ONILVAITOSNOD NV DNINISWOD
v t .
SALV[l44V ANV "INl S3AWOH NVILSIYHD vEad
- 3
ONI 'STOVTTIA NVYILSIHHD LS3MAIN

ATTACHMENT-39

000158




SRATMIN SORRDS 1SN

" 1LOZ O£ INNM G3ANT ¥VY3A
(QINNILNOD) STILIAILOY QLM LISIHNN 20 INFWILVYLS ONILYAIIOSNOD ANV ONINIGWOD

S3LVII44V ANV "ONI ‘SIIWOH NVILSIHHD vaqQ

SOND'STDVYTIIA NVELSIHHD 1SIMalin

{gg)

E0eZoL 8§ § 200201 & LTZSL6 $ (8004 § e0¥IBC & [KZEL S5 (STUTES) S 699'0¢bE § GECOOE §  BOLSIE S S0EEL S
T - BIRIBE - - - 65255 - - - - -
. - - 0TLBE5'L . - - - - (oas5"aws} - loct'aEs's)
05gTy - 062'Zp 052 - - . - - - -
B9106'6 £88'L06'6 {caaeLs) (s20'00 s ¥ ) (sca‘eas) £S5'GLL"Y - gt 681'55E" 1eL'06T8
SI0ZEC'Y Togmiie) . GELOPLL _TIOSLEE LE 2185% [ 196'65E 926's SCB'EY 5280 SCEZH0T
(SO5'E02) - %60 V55 - - - [y 00FE . (rorzes) [=3]
5197z - EM'LZ POPYSH . . - 755°¢ - - =4 Q£
[>:a:ra ) {occ'»0z ELe'ea’l [£v.2.%4 oz =1 - rrie - 19582 55010 B0 |
Z'LEE - 20168 joxind 7} . - - 0515 - rit'e 195°S L25'ESL
TEY'RL {ecco16' S1e'veey PIESEZE 5 x5e oa5p STEESL -4 S26°04 el vSR'EaLL
BOT'ASE'S ESS'PLLE SPLSSLT (558'52r'Y) (550°02) 'L 1zhe Zossey zEULLLL a8'tLl SPE'PLEL WIS
_gol'esrert rer o9 el 265 POrOLL SOVRIZZE Z4ZERL _BIgeEt £raLoYL B5L'LPE X i63Z09E__ BLES0EY LIDSIP L Zvp°G85'86
ZiF'EET'E - WYEEPE | 0P eis HRLS 180618 VIETLL §31'0L9 4 7LV ER [SHETH ULGL LZVEZaY
bl egeole2 9LLzTOROL >34 0T £80°06y gi0'00% LBP'TEE . ' [T ZEMLT
£26'vie 026938 - - 8%0'821L =90 SITHLT - - . -
me'oaLy {roaese’s) He'6E8'6 [AT4~:)] - (V174 ] i B5E'Lr6 S2p'PLL J2:V3:r.] 151769 2S'TrL9
wo's¥se . KY5¥5'? B934T - {2351 gLo'se Facog 1Y SPTPL SRS V26 2418r2'0
965CRG - B55'CES - LTS v \EL'E SLL's LLLEOs BEY = n A o2 lrsd 56 L9E
61990508 foteeree) EraBvE'oy ESSTRL'SL BIL6L BLL'252 05288} 6L TIRE SLH 0L ayees HEELL LECERPSL
58470 - wEalze -1k 12 vBL'ly oLL'¥9} P £09'0¥E"L S8L6T 1626 130} S29'50L'Y
RGOS - PEEOYT . 005 5 089" Fang Y - 620'65) 1B5T 651'688'T
WELL0'y - WELEY . - TUES 028’6k PO o el $55'SE 01856
£¥5'849°04 - $v5'629'D1 - . W12 uETesL ooe'ez0e - sT2E TPO'PER 956502
wWLR Ls8's50'y) SI0'BELSE - . z (3 SPTSEY'T BLE'TET L ZITGLY THE'EY 5L CER'PL
P54 250ty - 522561 - [ 724: 114 BESHEL PP 064008 LY $9LBH'E STILL0T
QLEECHVS) (GOrEss'e) JBNell DLS'884 48 218'2TL 970'696's v38's6Y'L LEBELE'0E 6254201 88865 ZOOSETL B9ZEL' 0L
BLTIS6E roR 267 ¥ 1) CPh 55V 81 SSheLlit 67C8 353 TELST BLE0GE oS £ 1 0L wCBY
oL TiEL - voLRie') 15413 - . K6 - 269018 WIS
L% prBrL 5§ BRSSO} S 0rBLESL § - S BSP'PL} S SRITEM § ZLHLOML §  ZBLORYEL § ETORRLOL § LLBIYS § STVLZSTL S IOL00600L §

oL SUORELILYS S =) T . T I 1T T TS I5EUA E=ITTN RS
paepioRey apod o vensyn o5emA YsegRm uessPID Fomusmyd RIS e

EEGEM wenbupsepy Aewalpuy ST Jonss PURLRSH uog Lasy

(NOILYWHONE AHVININT 14415 ANV ONILYAITOSNOD NG 180433 .S40LUANY ANIANIJIAN] 335)

SLASSY LAN QALYMLFIURA
R (35vaH530Q) ISYIRON!

oD [ended
SHTIEY UFMRE tRjURL Arba
domg BIEY LERANLY 10 UIENRA U 98uesD

3SNIDA BAN0 ANHZATA
30 (L) 55203

{9madaa]) e a0 pOL

TuHIANDS pue Austld 16 [Rodng ue sio

VOLANIERY Wy DIEOIDN WaSEY 19N
suopngaues
BuduRsAL] US LICE AN
QWO MSULSIAY]

{35N34X3} INOINT HIMLO

(1SS0 BNCON DNUVERL0

asvadey Bugrixi(y @101
UORSILINLY DUR LOeD2idag
By
3wy Apadalg
Speusg aakoiduzy
908, poAeS
Bupanmn
SaqeFuLEy
SAUTIIUIRA PUR SUCARIRID WR|A
SIS |BROS PR SRR
Bupaanpends
Aima
Aeiouy
Bupsmy
SN INLLYERL0

TUDABY n...ﬁ».BQO ey
=00
£33 UOSS|LATY 0 LOfRZRouny
WenIag WpIsIY
SONIATH SHUVHIAO

ATTACHMENT-39

060159




=)
NS
>
=
(8e) m
=
et
>
[T T 5§ - g - s - s - 3 - s - s - t - § - € oILgRL S 1402 "0F Funf - BITTY I
- - . - - - . - - - . - SuCHAGUUa
SIS fap o aluey]
oreegt  §8 -~ £ - s - 5 - s - $ - [ $ - e § - 5 o' ¢ 0102 "0F unf - 965 13N
. SLIESY LAN
QALHYASTE ALLNINTIWEL
[T 5 - t  rily T &PT [ YT A § RruPL s SwTEr & Giwl R 5 1307 "OE U « BRSTY 13N =]
TSt T3y (s2) {ez’y) [AYHY] =1l [F1144] (502"78; rrz's) - {ezv's) [T UoIpSay Woy pARESISY RATSY 1IN =]
B - . N R - - - . - - . S| RPURWY JGEWEND |6 0L abuay) m
S20'B0 506°¢ - e®'e 600 £28's 1743 JEE ' S5y £24' 9856 SUORRGUTICD =
51695V Ja up abkueu? =
LA FYSEE S NN 5 82 5§ SWT L BRIV § o0z & ' S wsE § STH S - & f2r'g §  l95RT H Q40Z “0E T « TRSSY 19N
) SLBSSY LAN
QILOALSIE AT TIOLNRL
TS TLio 5 BAEOSZEN 5 (1B.L5000) § TAUVRET § JBILFHCZ) § Co64094 § Grrives & _Lgvasgel £ OpLEar S BOvese S SeabESLL § JTEGHLE § L10Z 'GE eunf - 5iassy PN
- - - - - - - - - - " . suepquuay jede)
fosr'eto' L) - - - (os1'8s0's - - - - - - - RUnLY WoAoN L A3
. - - - - . - - . - - - damg 9P Fa10U) JO LORENIRA U] afuryy
18L0ET Y ZrB'052) 0BLOAE BEULLETL 98Y'L9E 8Lr'LE9 ] 0518027 Lol (Ber'vi) geLeRs't 2LE'BO8 2uaX3 (BA0 SNIRATY Jo (RYEY) FI
{108 16N ) F5URUD
ser'ale'st ¢ (lowBEsl) §  (OUSICD ¢ WL § (SESYN) § WSG9 § LI0ZDE'S & LIOUROUL § 0G'CLSY §  SBETZy § 0SCUUEET & BAESEEW 8 ' 0LOZ "0 DUNF - Blatsy 1N
$1955Y L3N QLORLSINKA
FHeng ELETY QURYILA addtn ] [T 2T BBE{A BOEIA LT BWOH 25mA
yeRsULD ueaHD uess Busaniy [TREY ] uensLD uensueD uepsuD UBRSIND) wEnsuuD URESIUD A
pusieleand Zeay B umBuyses UBRENYD uensiyn 13IF00H BpOWOw SMOpeIN wied SUBATH JEd
VIS LSRR, sva weteald | A0joIH
(NOLLYWHOSNT AYVINIWIAANS ANV ONILYANOSNOD NO LHOd3d SUOLANY INZANIJTAN| 328}
[
L1402 ‘O£ NN A3ANT EV3A
£]1358Y L3N NI S39NVYHD 40 LNIWILVLS ONILVJINOSNOD ONY ONINISWNOD
S3LVIMLEIY ANV "IN ‘'STWOH NVILSIZHO vad
. [
ANl ‘SADVTIA NVILSHHD 183Mali




(o)
oZLCIz _§ - S OZLTIZ__ & 00O'SE [ § - § - § - H H s DErEEL S
oxelZ 8 - t ozltlr ¢ odes? 5 - t 3 - s - s 5 - s - 144 TR ]
/DE'RLL % - %  JoARL§ - 5§ - P s - =T s - § 8058 3 BISE BeoLgL S
Tz Lz - Gleud {cor'rsL) - - - 1737 - - [T WS LI
(215 ] - riv'e viig - - - - - - - .
EE0OS: - £E0'0S1 . - 005 - 85 - Fres- 66°C SZ0'E0L
F43% -~ I $ ZLEZ 0§ R § - § - s - $ 58T § - § (sgoirt & oset ekl §
P T E—

WREPIZIv_S W00L95H S _O020tvATy & SELivis § wIZw & eeleet v Gevior ¢ STReesE § C5e0EAS S Z2eRvs § (SIOOITE] S GSuior §
BOZ'GEL - 682'85Z - - [ - . - T - .
- - . G2LaEsTL . - - {065ers) - forecet)
05820 - [ o4 pesze . - - - - - - -
£89°305'5 - EBY'LOE'S j{=:1: 3 %3} (8200 LS Lt (ste'vegl TN ST LM )8 --1gY 131'062'8
820'vI0'E § {000'USSS) S RIOTIVETE § BSLITZY §  SSESE  § SeLVI'L § sy & (REEled’d) & sEet0ly S oeeZ 8 (G6L'WSTON B GEVELSEC §

18] [OE T EE] nojang SWWD Sudugudy [CrTE] S3RIsa S0TINA SRATS CITUA LS =2I3S
[z a0 Sioding WREsuyD LT UreQeas GBS foguueuy UERSIAN) RIS

SRaRA uglepmem ) WED IS PReTaM uog Uty
2GS JOUBS KEOMOIN

VLOZ '0€ N 'MITY 19N,
SUOINQIALET
51075y 1N U) sfucyd)
0102 ‘D OUNy - EATRY 10N
21385V L3N
JALORILSTH AL NI NYITEad

LLOZ '0F s ROrey 1oy
WSS WY PESCHRY BIBSY 1N
151U S2pUIR LY SIqELAYT Jo oA U BEURYD
gD

TELISEY 10N U] ey

QLOZ "0 2T » HATTY TIN

SLASSY LaN
QILIULSIY ATRVHO4MAL

4102 "0F aunt « 555y 1IN
SUORLRUOT MRED
Bl WhkK ) Jojsus: | Ansg
GRMG DITH 5IIN| Jo unhiangen Uy pbueud
Siuddng 1340 3nuBadY J0 fimyaq) s
WERY Jon W 3B
0402 '0E 3"~ ISV 10N
$13SSY LAXK QAL ORISTUNA

(NOLLYWHOINI AMYLNIWI144NS ANY DNLLYAITOSNOD NO 18043 SUCLIANY LNIANISIAN] 33S)
LLOZ ‘02 NN ASANI ¥V3A .
{Q3NNILNOD} S1ISSY 13N NI SHONVHD 40 INTFWILVYLS ONILYAINOSNOD ANV DNINIGWOD

S3LVITIdAV ANV "ONI ‘STWOH NYILSIYHD vad

"ONI ‘STOVTIA NVILSIHHD LSaMain

ATTACHMENT-3%

000161




(5]

LOBRL VML §  GLE@YETE § CLEDCYB §$  MSOBLED §  LECU0RZC $  93ESOYS § BEGYEMEL § UL PEEELS  6LZTO9SL §
L8LELLBE 59Z'SE5' L 90P'S55°T ¥18'6LE e e L 1SV LTE L DOF'69T 906'00T'T L85
£88°L - - - . - - €68 -
GE0'G5T'T 631'ZFR'L QOBZSH' L - - . - - -
Z05'01 19 SA0ER S05TOLL PLEGIE S06'08L L ISP IZE e8Ik EI0'esT'T Pk vl-y
BL'KE - - - £2P'TR QLLLET - -
£0'1s0'ey BLLISHE S55'B9'T SET 0641 orL' LY LL SSEEVE'Z 275'570'61 Legen'e GEO'SIR'S
RLE'055'5E TELES0'S £50'908'C 567G LT PRSI L [ oLTCTL Y L1298y [EIPE]
5P 56 TS £05'605°5 BrOTITY ATT'SALY QIAE'ZFE'EL rSEBERS LLVBOL'ET POR'GEE L EIL'TYS T
[FIITETS 0L6'%0} asL'P - LPTTRS'Y - QPE'ISLL 455'65 LID'BOT'E
FIE'RLPOE 6G56'9LL #a8L'a51 LE8°SET b PLEELS 651'$0T" 1 LEC 166 036226+ Ar'vrLl
[l ] L= 206'Er0°8 SIHE LI0TIE'EL a5 e68'y BEZ'Z0L P} ZLO'P0T9 ITH'SLL'E
186" PEL BEFOLL QLE'59 SOLLT T54'808 55'0F BISTIE SIELOL OLE'PIE
BICLT - - - SLE'G9T - 124001 . -
ELSTHS) {1m9'0%) (218'+E) [ZTSAY] NCEEY {zar’ot) @vi'564) Ziger? {205° L€}
SOU'GLE'L L89'0Z BLE'PT 26L°pL £5L°0EY zarot EFB'ZOZ’L ZLEEr 2058
gar' (99l 1168 bl - 9BE LAY LY [EED £ 02 8Z9'8)
2p1'grl 0£0°Z5 9T HLrL SE'ET 69¢"928 At 8LTET 6LT'64
LEL'LLYZY $66'LI0'E LT B0 Y ZLo'eal'y B 6L0'EL L58°p 1T (0B0'ERE'L) DiT§56'0 TBE'SBL L
AL 188702 BLF'¥T Z5L'vE 612591 TR TpEes1 IL9'er LOE°LE
LEL'RES ErL'vSl 625'20Z 68652 9E1'99 8Zg're ovoL £05'ES LG
96T'ETE s2L1L LT L - - - 0zg {ozed [N
LZTEE0'Y LOB'PLE L Z19'e6L LETORD SEE'EEL'L 2625 {982'8) alv'ede [ iny
652'Z50'CE § MU0 S 99E'LSZ'T §  09T'ES0'v § LZEWOLLL § /ZSBIO §  {9BTTCAT §  SIM'SSHL § £OCL8'S S

[CELIE) E-TTN F=T2E] ELCTI E-ETY abelia A0ZNA QLo TECIA,

ugysImID JUALDAIDY LRRSHYD eSS WRISIND uBASPYD UERSPUD LEESHYD UL
UOLRIYSTAA uRpsULD Jot5e0H JBUSWAN sMOpeaN gad AionalH sudaeH Jjeg
usequAL swa) Jeseald

(NOILYIWHOAN! AMVLINIWZ1JINS ONY DNILYAIMOSNOD NO LEOJTH .SHOLIanyY LNSANI43IAN] 33%)
LLOZ "0S ANNC
dNOXUD QALYIITE0 — 133HS IONYIVE ONINIZWOD
SILVITIH4Y ANY "ONI ‘SANOH NVILSINHD vaa
*ONI ‘SIDVTIIA NVILSIHHD LSIMAIN

$138%y [BIC)

S19SFY JOYID 1oL
RIETY S LA ITURINSUL
81 JC SNJEA JBPUBLING ySED
2984|339y SOION
FHaunsIAU|
o) Bupueuy pauapd
£1385Y WARLO

{1200 aniepoIda] 1e)
aLdinbg pue Apsdoud 1630
USHETDRIdSG ERHEUMRY (559
ol
€501 Uj LeIMSLDD
rRwdinha
swrwascidw)| put Sulping
KUBWARIAW] PUET puUB PUET
(koD 0]
ANIWLSINOS ANV ALEIdOHA

(oraary LMoug
UGN WaHND 10 JaN) 2511
Dl S€ AU ROSSY 1B,
TADY UMOUS LoD WAL 15597
ey,
Spurd pIeH 391U
Spund Wapsay
23N QL SY QILNN SLIASSY

H36%y JuaLe] (el
55 & €8 POIRT
51935 30 O Wanng
SISEEY JUDLNTD Q)
SapqeArae Austwodsiu|
1N AGEAEIAN SUNDOYY
SUMEANDS EED B UETD
SLISSY LNIHEND

51355

ATTACHMENT-3%

000162




(NOLLYIWSOANI ANVLINIAT1ddNS ANY ONILYAITOSNOD NO LHOJIH SHOLIANY LINIANI43aGN] 338)
L40Z ‘o€ IANNF

SHNEMIA KIIDT FRMPIN

@v)

OCLTEO6G0) § {SOFELZL®Y §  IIVPCLLLPEZ §  SIOLILES B GUOGriBT §  LLRS0C® S vIEVESYE §  GSIPOPRL S QOZ'ZIWPL S LLOGBLLIL S
RPreLEE (000 6TLR) 2P EZ5 Y ZISLEIZ 925216 - 116'652 PLSERT 2LLTEE I3LELLEL
180'BLE - 130°B1LE 9ELALE - - - - - €862
660'58T'E - E60'SETE - - - - - - B50°562'E
T POV (oo0'seL's) T£5'C09'6 £aLSYT0E - - 6v9 0L 511 £GP EL Z05'0L'9E
PLLOOC'E . 7L1'60L'E HOO'BLY'L TS (L6 - IT'6BL E9E'2IT 6TY'E9T 51008
aTC'aBF' 8L - STT'BET'ELY BLE'LLS'Y S9'8LEvE S9'T6T vE6 *EV'OL LZTYEE0'TE 08T'BISL £10'16E'8P
SOLLEQ RS - BOLIEOVL oA TI0Z 8LZTVY T6L BLE HTT 4250 ELGT Ty¥'EBE L SLE095'50
ZEO'815'T64 - TE0BIS'EEL 729'9289 TG 1904 099'149 QEC'ZZY 1T S19°289°CT ZZL1I0T'SY 157 158'v8
TEEO0ZE - PREE00Z1 9IZ LD 1 LST'681 - . oFd'F 005 LZVSLLOL
EQR'TYTIT . OFTVTLE % 9BSVRZ' T £00'SSY 166'vab' L 08T e z52'698 996° VLY 0L
vE8'160"EvE - +a8°180'8Y) BLE'850'L 689°L8L°CE I59'94Z 0T L6461 ST VISR LS0PLE'EL €80'655'29
H0'08LLL - HLO'OBL'LE 413008 0OD'0CR'R - st1'sTr BL¥'50T £06'L6T LBE LT
131'851°FY - 194 B PL CLE'868'S BPLISS'Y - BELBTL L5p'€29 SHFERO'L 90 CLT L
6L0°TE¥'2) = (GLOZEFE] [E=3Rva) “QogTecy - TorosT) (Le0'sey) Ura'eid Z15'2rS)
OFy L8501 - oFTLET 9L 50L'7T6'S 5L0'P26'P - gc0°'es8 ZL5'8SL 2r5'0LE'L 8O9°51E°L
BR'FIZ 9 - eETIT Il GOL'TLE'S {58458 - 0BETTe BIEOTL THOPSZ'L 99p°189'L
287028 - TLE9IC - f#59'99 - BSFO0L pIZ'8C oOS'ES TrL'EPL
LELERS 0 (5e0'0vs'o) 'L L2 159'070°92 {pLLLsE e E55'Z1E'5 WL HOFE £or'6LY L £58'GLLS LZLbVEY
SOTEVT - BL0'TEXT 0L 0L 19620 - oro'sEh 180°STH LT 15T
258 18 - 61676801 Hor'0s 6218 £59'8ES v ov6'Z8 L9LE (CL'EBS
REErL {5ze'0n2"0F) ySPOLE 0P 285'86T°0F (w5 - - - - 96£'C2ZL
SL9'LOL'OL BELBL) 1S 18601 - 8067624 HT'BLL §LL102 [T 98T680°L 0rT'660'9
SWISISE § - §  G1oeBa'sl 5 (LIBZTZOSV S GrTEeES) §  SO09ES'Y § TELOSR'T § IOPMT 5§ £SRTWLT 5§ BETESONE §

el SUOREWIT R0iGNG Coaug SERICA, EEETY oBEINA EEY ebelin (0195

PRIIGWOD oty VRRSHYD Aoeuumyy uensagd wensegD wersMg
Apmabppg Qo Jaas uos ugsy pueiodmg ANy Buudg

{Q3ANNILNOD) dNOYD A3 LYDITE0 — LIIHS JONVIVE SNINISWOD

SALVII4LY ANV "ONI ‘STWOH NYILSIMHO vad

*ONI ‘STOVTTIA NVILSIHD 1S3MAIN

fasry 1@0L

TR N0 [RI6L
SOCTY JANO PUT FFURIAGY]
817 jO 8NICA LIpUALINS YSBY
SITRARODY SHION
SWEUREAALL
B0 Bureuly pOLSE0
S13S5% ¥aHLO

(500 parwpdag o)
BRUANDT pue Aadosd 16301
uepemudaq pAIRIMLMSY 5507
=113
stoubosg v VORMUELGD
Juswdpbg
fuawancudi] pue Buipung
SIRLRAGUCL PUIE pUE PUBT]
(1500 3e)
ARIWHINDI CHY ALHIA0HA

{Sn0qy Umoys
USIOL (Bl JO 13N} 950
Q1 §8 POjURT) 125TY 0L
DAY UmDYS LGOI TUSLND 6537
mRieL
2punz ploH aBsm),
spung wapisoy
IS QL SV JRLIWN SL3SSY

EI0SEY WRUND JR0L
A5 OF 54 PRI
SUFESY JO UDLO RN
RAETY WILNG RGO
SAIQEAII0Y ALdwod R
13N "SIQBAIRIBY SWAIIIY
SUSIRAINYT YSOD Pub WSTD
SL3ISSY LNHND

SL3SSY

ATTACHMENT-39

000163




LIO'ERL'LEL §

{gv)

SI6'P0EE % CLEQErS § LB0'6L9S S LEE'9NRIT § N BSS¥EP'EY $ ELI'PEEELS ETT'E09'SE §
01£'299'29 YA . LYTHLS L 0Z9°8v6's P55 S0E'SS 990 e E29'E00 SLLGRG IL 429’ PEE 6
ocL'esl - - - - - - - o2LegL
rEEZSL vy g52'L | ¥1 8 £6¢°IC 2e'v SISy BL¥'L GLE'OF
5T LT £89'vFZ'C 288°109'L B LPE'S 19L'9.LT8) orLees’r EOF'BSE SET' S 1L LTS'S9L'E
28287169 aLl'erie STLUSIE'L L5308 =702 g i SR IBL Rl 081 cHe909's
ELL'EVE'S SBE 02 Zhe' Ly [k T TLE b 860t [T a4 H8L'8ZZ PLLUBEY' L
o2L'eLZ FITNT [F=¥2A) BIS'LL 929'8 96501 - o't EPO0L
egl'oti'? BZECH BT L B9'Ly BLLSYS - STL 09 65ZT0 £’ brL
SBL'YEY'E QeE'ee - Sivrs 185°L6S - 119°108° TPl ze'irs
¥eE'RLP'SE 15TIELS £19'£8 SEe'adl 7622080t STl rrlpi'vL 1IN LS'LEL'E
q04'v28'2 ZET reR 0O0'0RL 85 P05 6as 288') 159648 SE§'LZE'L o0y'ezs LE5'9L6
Qoa'ceL 008's COT'ER Qee) [P - WTLeT aorgl 0O0'6E
ase'svl 020'EL vI9'EZ bile, N LSE'ET BoY'RZ cza't 2Z'CT - BLT'BL
IS1BEO'C ereive STV LT BLL'BSE 11 S9L'sEY 12€'95T P10'L2E S06'Ltr
aTLEL 081 [§% 715, hoy TiE's S5L's £08 oFsl 18E'E
LOTTES'L H68'E5T 0TS 00’z $EE'ZL¥ TP 05’ Lly oIl'esL 155" 2T
0TSt fLg'evl vee'9rZ VT LTL §9529¢ trR'est Lo5gy ar'5L2 Lot'oaL
ofv'als b QoB'sl H Yl ] - H +65'991 3 TELL 5 BY5'ERT £ [ 754 s 6L6'LE ¥

Bogns EE:ITIY FET=I) aBEYLA, STy abe(LA B Do abeja,
URRSIAY nRwRY usfisI) LERSLYY L vBESIUN UEING WBRSUGD YL
LI AL -FYY URRSUND J31E00H JRUSLaN TMOPIIN Tuiad AJoKom SURARH 2184
USEGCIA sp0T Wezdld

BIESY 1aN PUR SRR |70,

SISTY 1IN [0L

peDInEIY Aoucusey

popwsIy Aucsodwal
poRMSNN
S1355Y LAN

sophgen KoL

SMIKELT 12Ul (Mo L
SOMEARIT 24O
S04 SXRNUT WDY IWIATY PRLERT
$294 IMUEOUT SQEPURISY
SALUEYT HAHLO

(anoqy umoys SIRUMIRK
WBURD 0 13N} 1830 WH-DNGY

SONIRARL) WD FIOL

5394 FIEBNUD LIEPUTRN 1O WORDG URUND
DIQEARG BUN A 10AIL ILODISTY
DRG] PHUIOY SN0
Sojgeie 4 Augduoaat)

venargsuon

apL
ioiqednd Bunexay
39010 Wb 1-8uT & SINLSK IUSUND

SILUETN ANSYEND

S13$5y L3N QNY S3LLNIEVET

(NOILYWHOLNI A¥YLINIWNI1ddNS ONY ONILYQITOSNGD NO LYO43H SHOUANY LINSANIdIANI 33s)

(Q3INNILNOS} dNOHD AZLYDINE0 — L133HS IDNVYIVE ONINIENOD

1102 ‘o€ ANNC

SILVYIIE4Y ANV "ONI ‘S3INOH NYILSIEHD vaa
"ANL‘STOVITIA NVILSIRIHD LSIMAIN

ATTACHMENT-39

000164




(vt
|
)
|
SeITooEer © Gou6LZiv) 8 IZVELTIVE §  SWOLILBS § GIUBFLGL § LZHSOIB §  GIEVEGTL & eSUMOPOL 8 OOZTIrRL S LGRS SISty 19N Bl S20Mnqe(] TR0
voL'OES 6E - 01 0EE 68 EOR 254 L [N £5E'D2'6 (£70°'BAT 6 (£12' 52 zL) (815002 QLEZFI 2 $1955% 1IN BI04
oTLET - ozi'gie 00G'SZ - - - - - ozrBet pepty Apuseundg
GEE'EIL - D5E'COL . 286 - 816'¢ 5B0'9 - HE'ZS) paDtaY Alpedoduts )
vL0'C5H'SE - LO'ESE'OE EDA'ZEL'L {£28'586'9) £5E'088°5 {8Z0'0LT B! (50E05T L {15002 95T LOE'ZS PRRIEIN
S1955Y LaN -
TI5E0e'0aL (£99'622'LK) LETERD'BAT ZLTEHS LS HO5 FELTE RIP'SZE HLEOEL YT TLE'H59'ST IBELLY B LOLovL'EY SAMUIGE 18
06.L'5Ly'0Z - 05L640'0Z 810'98E 9SUEDL’S - 0259zt SOB 9Tz LEEE CLIEvR'S SORTART RO 10
B15°064" L - BLS'DBL L LY 12021 - RZS'E 8ZCEL [F-53 [T SANIERN LU
918" 12'TL . P16 LLTZL T5'89 SEZ°H6579 - CORELE'L arise SrEE0e 8AL064'2 §90 FIUDAUF Wk ONLGATY PAUHEQ
S5ETI0'L - 2eeeLo'L 85¥'E0L [ wad - ZELOLL 090'857' Y 15208 SELTERFE s0ag HOURAYT RIGRPUNREY
SELMIETTI HaHLO
Y L2900l (e0s"25a'e7? C05'ETY'LrE ALTISE PIS LB PE - SLY LEN'6L LGB T BEL'EBYEL PSE'BLY'ST lanDay umolS IR
) weLmy o 1aN) L8230 WYAL“ONOT
284 '9L9'6L (zoL'12e) yi8'CrE'6E £0ROLL'PE LT PYS'T Bav'sze E'ITL'L _S60'L6vL 9LY'SYE'L D04'$20'L SANNGRT) WBLAT (B10L
oov'tar L " [ cavey - - 00E'edL 005292 [N 00'06L 294 UIRAUT AGEPLNIY JO WO WILIND
ave'asl . meeLT - £59'99 - 8580} etz :FLan SSESYL PlaeAR Puni ISl USRS
STO0LE'LE - SZO'CLT'LL 659'015°F eET LY TS LEL 1B0'B90"L BIYEEL Srr'ses isveat's SANGLN POTLITY JAYID
- (azy'er) a2'iy (orL't#) ere'es o'l LT 21T a9 9zl sajgedng Aueciuionseiu)
505200 - 505'800'2 5L0'C02 816 . §45'71 105721 7356 Loz'ZEe’L [PETELTE - ]
ZLFESE'T foelad Brl'6L9'C 55889 £r9°625 ogr'bel 875457 VLT 600°L5T [: oA F 4 apo)
191quARy SURCITY
oOO6LTLIE § - § COUEIZZ § OSOTLSCEL T 025 L S  QOUSIZ S 0OUSSE $ 0 O0O'SIE § OfFBLS § 1530 wuP 1 -0u0T] JO SARUNEH WAL
SALINMSYT ANIBAND
S15$5V L3N GNV SaWNEYR
KoL suapaJrsIlg foiqng E==1"a] 3 ooB|ItA, OIS SOR|IA vmmcs WBIUA, RS
pouiqwoy] OHP_on._OU HERYD hu_uﬂ._.ﬁr_n_ uRRENYD CRLSUYD uensuud
Agmodprg TN UG uog uIsIy RIgREENYD seap Bupds
COLRETUIR J9NBG ISR

(NOILVINHO AN AHYANIWI TddNS ONY SNILYANOSNOD NG .._.xon_mx SHoLIANY LNIONIJIANE 338)
1102 ‘ot aNNr
(Q3NNILNOD} dNOYD A3 LVOITIS0 — L33HS IONVIVE ONINIRWOD
S3LYII43V ANV "2NI ‘S2WOR NYLLSIHHD fvaa
*ON] ‘S3OVTHA NYLLSIHHD 1S3amaiin

ATTACHMENT-3%

000165




{sv)

BSE'CLEL §  SSULLE'L §  BLP'IEd 8§ BIPEED 0§ OSI6EET §  FLEBF 0S8 (BLWPGL) 0§ GvL98ST 5 ACG60B
ZSEELEL PRE'LL6'L - 74 %1 BZF'ELD OSL'6EL'T PEZ'SY (gLr'von 9pL'885"TL BL6'608
+i2°928'Z £6L157 BLLRST LOTSL CL5'E58 ST1SRZ BL6'E1) 91L'L52 020'6vS
Zeree) (T43] BLES) Teem) Tge's) 3 Tere oDy Tee D
QLz'L0L 1741 t'L IXT 50Z'vE vrl's - {zr's PIS'L
L7B'996 (24747 F §96'vZ} 08L' Ly BrE'vL BL5'06 S6E YAV LE BEC'ZLE
L26°20L 80T 908’5y 11240 SrLleg SI§'9L 96T 100°LOL QIZ'vaL
SHETEY ) BET9BL P07 161 857 L60'58E FLYR ] {517'EL) BEO'LLL LT L
BEL'E5'Y £90'025'3 DICEZE 12T Vs LLF0PE (s16'902) (oos'051} OEv'SEE'L 816087
9.25'86220 SDOBFP'L 10p'£69'2 95T 0565 052996 L1 S1565'9 08L'985' L ST 192 DL PZETILL
OT'C80'E b0'LST I RLE [ TN \PO'ESL ¥95TST SLT' Ly 83501y LyH'SET
TBOTSL: gLL'ete L5T'8r CEs’s [:7 934 gL 9Pl 098'LL 10g'ag
ERLETH ¢ VL0055 DES'L5L SL5'LLE ZE0'CrR BLE'S9Y B6E'E2L ri'esL Q00665
riF'es0T 085'SrE 26T SCE'BLE 02EEar 51'EEZ 95'p5 980°LyE 245892
SETBLE =44 ZTLSET L56'9 sLer 159'6E 165'SE 29572 908"
184 PST'ELL' OS°ETR LP0'BLE 9L LT BTLG65 S8L VY CLSLLISTE 51001
SIT'E0'E QML 1806V SELLLT L0 BYT [T 092'6T2 L9616 TOE'LE5
BLFEMOT oss'alz 117341+ 6SL°0LL 6LL'TTH 9SL'EET BIL'ss LIn'EBE 2L5'c0E
PSP L Fa: LT JEL'BOT eELLEZ B5T450 Les v ELr2t o5 LvE =121
CEL'9%5Y IEV'ZYS ISF RS 6LUPEE L L5 sPELLS 95CEFE 05Z'E5L {2z’
9EP'INL'E ¥OB'PEZ Lk LOD'0T9'} LWFLPE EZYEST T £26'026 ' CLY'158't Z0v'TES
0T PrEI0T PZLUCEr'T 9ITPLLT L0092 LBO'OST v QLLSOE'T rLETY ZR0'SLTE 9E0'L29'T
PLLGETLO g30'896'8 L0 910'6 LIS'r15'S LLELAE' YL yO9'2LE'D DEE'SEY'T . §98'989°L1 2YELIEL
ZEP'OLL 285 TLICY [ L80'8Y [EA] Jrog ERCE Be6Z
Eaf'Ley 502 2 o ) oaL'y 8LT'ILL - LELEYL 921742 9Le' Y
BLE'bL9'98 £ CEFEBS'® § vPABLE'® 5 STLROEE $ LOUBEVPLE  ORLISTE § GEYEE'Z 4 LAESYIEE LZSREEYL

oEns DTETHA D EEITTT 3B3MA EECTY ELTTN awan FLETTY

WS wowlRy uensyy valsID LS ] wegEg HRUSLD UEFWYD AL
volBujyseps uensED RSO0 ST ATETET] SMODEIN U AKX suaney st g
Yso0eps TP JUETEILY

S13SSY L3N GALOMELSTHNN
Ni (3SYIRO30) BSYIEINY

SRIRIYY UIDMIOE SJABVRIL AynkS
dumG B2y 1A JO UOREMNTA Us 0BusyDy

JSNALXRE WIA0 ANNIATY
40 Woad ss3m@

(asudra) owooul JOYI 10101
uagNbY pud Auadald jo jesodsid uo 5507
UOMHNSIY WAy PASERIN RISTY 1AM
SUORNGHIIRY
RUIULSIAU| UG SO poXICIUN
QUIIIU) JURLRE2AU|
{3SNIdXF) FAOINI MO

(£597) BHOIN] DNLTISA0

osuatay Bunesodn ol
UBHRZILOWNY fe Wi eidod
1£21a3)
$3aR ) AURdaug
fuiRg selodug
6B |lamag
Bunwey
PAIICORRIMIRY
FBUBWRN PUe suonmIadg e
SdaABg |BDOS pUR SATASNY
BuigaoHesnoy
Asaig
Ag|ierry
Bursiny
ISNILXT ONUVESA0

DAY Bugniad ot
2410
$394 UCHTIWDY [0 UILETNOWY
IS WAPIEAY
AANINTY ONLVHIAO

(NOLLYINYO NI ANV.LNIWI NS ANY ONLLYAMOSNOS NO 1043 SHOLIANY INFAONIJ3IaN) 33S)

LLOZ ‘02 NN AIANT HV3A
dNOYUD A3LVYVDITE0 — STALAILOVY QI LD LISTUNN 40 INIWILVLS SNINIGWOD
SALVITIAAVY ANV "ONI ‘SIWOH NVILSIYHD vaq

*ONI ‘SROVTHA NVILSIHHD 1S3IMAIN

ATTACHMENT-39

000166




{ar)
6Lg'alo'e g - 5 &180l0 5 (essourr §  (GpEEmsl s 859'9ZVE S 69L'S9EE 8 LwgnsZl §  DBIBAE 5 ZSCLREL % SLESSY LGN QALORULSTENN
NI{ZSvYINO30) ISYIRINI
o LPeE - Elvew ozLven - - - - - . SN UIDMIGE SIotEURL Ak
DBL'TY - [+ o dd 06L'ZY - - - - - demg iey rSaniU| 1O WORGRICA Wi 02umuD
S0L'EL0'R - s0L'EL0'8 {s86"20t'1) (s£8'ces) BSIRULHL 691'89C"L Lye'09z) ogL'aze eSECIR's ASNICHD HIAAD 2(INBARY
40 (LI0143C) $$39X3
E I ¥ TEiveerz) SET LED L SEL80LE 196 BT 9Z0°G [P TERTLL 205°6EL ¥12 928 € {DSUDDET) BUIODUL 21O 9L
1686°1L0Z) - (666710T) LSS Bean CogE [T ZaL's) (L9482} (z=0'6g) wswdink3 pue Aadald 10 (€©304510 Lo {5507) VD
96LSLT - SBL'SLT POPESL 443 . 55l ¥558 74 cL'LoL UDEMLZOY Wy POSTHOY GOTHY 19N
seLoiT '} Loz} SLE'FERL 180'TLT iv'ie - $50'19 e £19'e6 178'908 SUORAQLLID
151863 . LSL'BEE l9g'ca SIS - 195°s S99’y 802'ST 120 FLDUASIAL UD WBS POTIZENIN |
650070 (E80"res'2) TLL'enE'y HLETITE 5o6°E6L 87" Tegor 959°CE TN+ el S| WBAASIAL
{35N34X T} SWOINIHEHLO
A TN E €LY 86L°T PLC'EYD'L £oLgLLs) (ZoR'eL2's) TESLALL SHE'RLE'L (501ZED) £29°052 BEL'LBE'Y {SS0 IHODINI ONULYEIL0
CBV'IEL'EEL {Qo0'sTE L) GBLTIS PPL e e el G5 IPETE BT Z09'D LID'SLY'iL 957" LLL'EL BSR'wL8' LY 045"6EZ T8 e Buntsad WL
85.BLEL - B5L'9LEL 0V OES §21°029'L rLL'ED [ATE1Y] Z05' P08 gLE'say SEEDGA'E uoReTILaUNY pue LofErRdidog
6LEZHE'Y {Eeo'ves') Z0'9RT'E CHTEETE 18PZESL - B2E 151 L ALSISE'L PYEQLE ZRO'ISHE . ISR
_ SITBLE - SITIT - 1t 2-TH - - - - - s Asadald
| L' {Tireoe'y) ozo'srTe ez e5E'LH6 SLYpL) 151'769 ELLDSL 88C°0L7 sTL'629'Y nyeusg eadojdury
“ PEQEVLE - HA'CrL'e - 8t'985 SEEpL \LOSTE oSE'e8E, rSE' e vLp'S50'2 se0), fefeg
m Leehd . 5o - LEL'00s 967 8E'% CBI'SS ZLUs BET'6LZ Sunapaiy
10L'ais"6T BZL'eZ0H L29'995'08 SITRLE's 50'ZE8'C SLLHOT LES'TLLL 8 =008 4 :TA v g SEE'SLT'S SATRARIMIDY
0T'ese'9 - azz'ase's - S09'0HR'L $EL6T PIEPLY FIT'598 [18=3: 5 SIL'E50C SARUAIEY pue SusaRIadd Juele
120'L9P'G . LID LAY - TES'BLY - 1$9'657 12 L5e B9E'PET VIECHOT BOASG BPOS AUR $6RIATY
5L1'v.5'T . SLUPIS'E - WLoLs 72 EES'¥SE YOO HET |:FE8:0 SIrSKE'L Bujdaanasnon
80PILE'S - Y LIE'S - il v - DPO'vER L5e° 56 S59°SEG [R94: 1 4 Lmaa
[ g1 g4 {5L6'86£C) LS 1'98TYE - SPTEEYE BLECEEL TrEBEG L ¢B5'6C5 L IGFLELL 98v'9EL'E Aoy
FITN AV - LSLTIT L - £Yyet's 09:'508 SHL680°E PrEISEEE STPOStE QET ¥r50L Bursiny
ASNISNE DNULYHILO
LG LIDLEL Les'ors g) 65¥'o08'SpL 6/8'B2R'S LEG'TLE O E55'v L DL 0587 LOE'594'EL LES'5 LT vLL 98T L9 anusaty BunRISdD WAL
ESP'LITY [CEP¥AY3; 1ZL8eT's 2O L BLEOSE oo5'Ey »00°5L 1$E'8T 62E6'rL ZEVHEL Bltd]
VEVRLEL - TEL'PLE L TSCLL 787908 - rea'oLE 260'v31 ere'Le E58'E5 160 METILITY JO USRIZLIGWY
SBE'ICE'0CH & {6K6'BBE'S) § ¥OLLERVEL 8 - §  iBL9BY6L S GZOLELOL 5 SITMEBSEL & BEOEESEL §  vEHTECEL §  SLYRLY9E § AMNGS WAPKTY
INNIATH OSNWYHILO
1oL EVS R FoIgnG TR0 TOENIA, o0y ELTIY SOEIA ELCTiry GEE
pauguRy Mesdio uRREpLD forureud VRSSO VERSUMD LERSULD
AemoBpug 537 oIS Lo UBLrH puebmiyy Janly Suudg
CINSEY JOUDT 15PN

(NOLLYWNOANI AMYINSNI1ddNS ANY ONILYQITOSNOD NO LHO4TY SHOLIGNY LNIANIJIANI 23s)
L10Z “0€ INNr A3ANT MV3A
(QANNILNOD} dNOYD A3LVOITF0 — STILIAILOY AILDINLSTHUNN 40 LNJWILYLS ONINIGWOD
S3LVINIAAY ANV "ONI ‘STWOH NVILSIHHD vad
"ONI 'STDVTIIA NVILSIHHO 1S3MAlN

ATTACHMENT-39

000167




(4)

1 +0Z “OE DUNP - BRSEY LON
SUBRNGLAUCD
Haesy Loy U abunyd
OLOZ 0T N[ - [T iON
S13SSY L3N QILOMLS TN ATININTWEAL

S ZSL TLLb ) s wultl & I Mm..._. $  _giZoy 5 3 1402 '0F BUR - S35V 1IN
tevz 2ol [G=H Y TR (73] T re) vz S} - 3 UCIMIFTE WaY PISTIRY FIFSY 1IN
. . BT JOPUITURY DIGEILEYT IS SNIBA Uy SBUTYD
CIEAEEETEN
G1353Y JON ur obueyD
QL0 '0% BUNL - eV 1IN
SLTSSY LIN 0ILORLSIN ATRIVUOINIL

L0 EOLC ZE9 WLy 19v'1T L¥58 §IT'sy av'l age's

ECP'E5E ST LI E J L ST TN § S0t 5§ - § wr's £ leg'oE H

TnnT ST ol T et

Oviezhe € _govRs’r 5 _GGEYRSLIL § . L/2G59/6 S 1LOZ O AuA( - S1985Y LON
. - - - IR Woy 1SR L Aink3
derg 2}y 1820D1U] $9 VOREN[EA U1 DBUTYY)
SsudXy JBAD IUIARY |0 {iya]) sSang

53058y joN W eBupyD

0LOZ T 2uni' - S5SY 18N

TELELE'L 958'126°1 BLP'LEY 8Iv'6e0 051'6ETT LA (82r'p81) 39279851 BUE'608

vOB'L8P VS & LIETTY 5 plS'OTG'9 § 120°208'¢ § LIOZEOLLS  SOSS'T § 9EBIY $ 055°.65'6 £ 6E9SE6'E %

SLASSY LA QALORLLSTHNN
[GEET] otiga el abepA OR|ILA BLEAA, aboA WoH R
uERHMD wawanay ueLSRyD URESHYD vESPYD ueiswy) veRsHD LRASWYD YL
uoBunseay uefigpud sapeny LT topnay Wod AOHSIH  SuasRH Sed
yEmaEM e esedid

(NOILLYINHOLNI AMVINIWI1ddNS ONY DONLLYAMOSNOD NO LHOd3Y .SHOLIaNY INIAN3J3aNi 238)
110Z 0 NN GIAANT HV3A
dNOYD QALVOIT80 - SIISSV L3N NI SSONVHD JO LNIWILVLS ONINISWNOD
S3LVITIH4VY ANV "ONI ‘STWOH NVILSIMHD vad
"ONI ‘STOVTIA NVILSIHHD LSIMaln

ATTACHMENT-3%

600168




{ap)
oziele £ - $ _OEZ & _obOSZ % 5 - s = ] 5 S. _OZLEE: [
wrele § - t oUEiE § oS S - | s - [ 5 5 oprest  §
06E'E8L 5§ - 3 c9r & - s, _Z86 s _- 5 _BIEE % gEba FE S _wez§ ¢
I156.L'S.LZ} - L'SL [CEG T 5ot - {055°1) {ra5's) [C14) [CIEAGR]
¥ibg - viv'8 riL'g - - - - - -
LissaL - L4580} - 286 - BIET S0S'E Lo
PeP'IZC S $  HPIE S eerk § 239 $ - $ 0561 s Ll s o2 §  eoresk 8
[CIR3T] - qLLvan 0ZL't68 . - - - - -
06E'Tr - oeETy 0852y . - “ - - .
6aL'TL08 - B0L'CLD'E (396207'1)  (sew'tae) 245'9LL' 631°99E" Qreos?) 08L0LE Z5ETLR'L
ssTTveEEc § - $  S5TIPYET S L99'T0TL S (ese'sonel S SEYE0LY §  SEtausoN 8§ (19vEEsr) § (1STGLCT § vOBLBKYE S
TACL TsuepRmOs NG ) SSEIA T0pIss oEeILA EBETIA OGN [T
pAIqUED Qmodicd VENBELD faruueyd uegspyd veRsuyl) uGRSEN
Aemabpug RD 10w uog WM puejaBeapyy #any Bupds

CALTOLMY JO1UIT IEOMPIN

LLOT DT Sunt “HeCSY Jon
suchngenas
1%y 12N Ul #5UBYD
QLOZ 0L &Tf - R235E 10N
S13S8Y LAN Q210MH153H AULNINYING3d

LLOX "DE SUNP RATEY 12N
UOMUIERY W) PRCED|OY ARSTY RN
15U, JPpUEDIaN JIQREYD o onjEA b ahueyD
FUGIRQUUOY
ey Wy U] sbueyd
QLOT 'O 2unp - $1a59v 1ON
S1ISEV LIN QILIRL ST A TRIvEOSWAL

LEOZ "OF Sunp - KIS6Y 10N
TPy Wwog 1S sut) Qb
dems diey 1$2161L) jo vonsn|eA U aBubyD
YSUDEET FOAD aNUSADY JR (1P0Q]) S
QIFEY 3N Ul dbuas
GLOZ ‘00 N[ - SI3SSY 19N
S1355v L3N QALOMNASIHNN

(NOILYINEOZN] AMYINSINSTALNS ANV ONILYAMOSNOD NO LHO43H ,S¥O01IANY INJANIAIAN! 335}

L1L0Z ‘0¢ INAT AAANI ¥VIA

(Q3NNILNOD) dNOND 31 VvOI1a0 - S13SSY LAN NI STONVHD 40 INIWILVLS ONINIAWOD
$3LVIid-V ANV ‘ONI ‘SINOH NVILS[MHO vad
*ONI ‘S3DVTTIA NVILSIHHO 1S3MAIN

ATTACHMENT-39

000169




MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
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LarsenAllen

CPAs, Consultants & Advisors

www.larsonaflen.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.

dba: Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates
Lincoln, tilinocis

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Midwest Christian Villages, Inc,
dba: Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated
statements of unrestricied activities, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibilityis to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States
of America. Those slandards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial stalements. An audil also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial slatement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Midwest Christian Villages, Inc. dba: Christian Homes,
Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated resuits of their operations,
changes in their net assels and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepled in the Uniled States of America.

Larsen Allon 1P
LarsonAllen LLP

Si. Louis, Missouri
September 17, 2010

e 1
NEXIA ™
) XIA An independent member of Nexia Internalional

INTERNATIONAL
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Current Assets
Current Porlion of Assets Limited as to Use
Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Resident Funds and Other Deposits
Trustee Held Funds
Total
Less: Current Portion Shown Above
Total Assels Limited as to Use {Net of Current Porlion
Shown Above)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (at Cost)
Land and Land Improvements
Building and Improvements
Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment (at Depreciated Cost}

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred Financing Costs
Investments
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance and Other Assels
Totat Other Assets

Total Assels

See accompanying Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2)
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2010 2009
$ 22423669 $ 24555643
14,061,569 14,143,725
1,374,520 1,161,237
2,926,183 2,968,834
40,785,941 42,829,439
386,247 444,702
10,424,611 16,598,401
10,810,858 17,043,103
(2,926,183) (2,968,834)
7,884,675 14,074,269
11,492,516 11,492,516
167,199,676 161,355,642
21,486,861 20,493,707
2,579,958 981,691
202,759,011 194 323,556
77,737,729 71,958,288
125,021,282 122 365,268
2,944,861 3,085,513
26,758,968 18,142,170
443,911 417,816
30,147,740 27,645,499

$ 203,839,638

$ 200,914,475
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Resident Trust Fund Payable
Current Portion of Refundable Entrance Fees
Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT (Net of Current Maturities Shown Above)
Bonds and Notes Payable
Interest Rate Swap
Total Long-Term Debt (Net of Current Maturities Shown Above)

OTHER LIABILITIES
Refundable Entrance Fees
Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees
Other Liabilities
Total Other Liabilities
Tolal Liabilities
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted
Permanently Restricted

.Total Net Assets

Tolal Liabilities and Net Assets

(3)
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2010 2009
$ 14,347,216 $ 14,616,856
4,376,317 3,535,223
11,747,244 11,991,396
287,097 343,144
1,536,300 1,398,300
32,294,171 31,885,019
116,133,127 121,058,375
1,004,212 882,359
117,137,339 122,840,734
7,180,544 7,757,602
14,502,555 14,369,951
1,141,119 1,090,168
22,824,218 23,217,721
172,255,728 177,943,474
1,299,795 1,339,285
29,774,283 21,037,016
296,112 380,980
213,720 213,720
30,284,115 21,631,716

$ 203,839,638

$ 200,914,475
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF UNRESTRICTED ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009

See accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Staternents.

(4)
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Percent of Percent of
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue
OPERATING REVENUE
Residenl Service $ 141,769,888 96.5 % $ 137,649,264 97.9 %
Amorlization of Admission Fees 1,620,028 1.4 1,852,748 1.3
Other 3,585,872 2.4 1,041,353 0.8
Tolal Operating Revenue 146,975,788 100.0 140,543,365 100.0
OPERATING EXPENSE
Nursing 40,945,039 279 40,417 866 288
Anciliary' 22,239,231 15.4 20,524,956 14,6
Dietlary 10,513,162 7.2 10,677,377 7.6
Housekeeping 4,074,037 2.8 3,962,375 2.8
Aclivilies and Social Services 3,803,405 286 3,660,583 2.6
Plant Operations and Maintenance 7,828,309 53 7,941,088 57
Administralive 26,304,398 17.9 19,935,190 14.2
" Marketing 622,004 0.4 709,328 0.5
Pavyroll Taxes 2. 444 673 3.0 4,287 467 3
Employee Benelits 5,004,945 34 6,144,380 4.4
Property Taxes 244 509 0.2 482 685 0.3
Interest 8,065,339 5.5 8,736,946 6.2
Depreciation and Amcrtization 7,701,262 5.2 7,141,660 5.1
Total Gperaling Expense 141,790,313 96.5 134,632,811 95.9
" OPERATING INCOME 5,185,475 3.5 5,910,554 4.1
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE}
Investment Income 4,051,431 07 1,114,558 0.8
Unrealized Gain {Loss) on Invesimenls 601,451 0.4 {438,122} (0.3)
Conliibulions 937,708 0.6 2,312,990 1.6
Net Assets Released from Restriction 210,024 01 56,804 -
Insurance Proceeds - - 2.450,000 1.7
Proceeds from Mine Subsidence Fund 908,158 0.6 1,118,628 0.8
Impairment Loss on tong-Lived Assets - - {1,119,628) (0.8)
Loss on Disposal of Properly and Equipment {74,616) {0.1} (108,453} {0.1)
Change in Valuation of Interest Rate Swap - - {7,603} -
Total Cther Income {Expense) 3,634,154 23 5,380,174 3.7
EXCESS OF REVENUE OYER EXPENSE 8,819,629 58 % 11,280,728 78%
Change in Valuation of Inlerest Rate Swap £121,853) (249,121}
Equity Translers Between Affiliales - (503,569}
Return of Capital - {42,075)
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
BEFORE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST 8,697,776 10,495,963
Change in Noncantrolling Interest (39,491} {228,882)
INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 3 8,737,267 5 10,724,845

ATTACHMENT-39




MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
) DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Excess of Revenue over Expense
Contributions
Net Assets Released from Resinction
Change in Value of Charitable Remainder Trust
Change in Valuation of Interest Rate Swap
Equity Transfers Between Affiliates
Return of Capital

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

Change in Noncontrolling Inlerest
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2008

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Excess of Revenue over Expense
Contribulions
Net Assels Released from Restriction

- Change in Value of Charitable Remainder Trust
Change in Valuation of Inferest Rate Swap

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

Change in Noncontrolling Interest

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2010

Temporarily  Permanentiy
Unrestricled ~ Restricted Restricted Total
$10,312,171  § 337,896 $ 213,720 $10,863,787
11,290,728 - - 11,290,728
- 132,551 - 132,551
- (56,804) - (56,804)
- (32,663} - {32,663)
(249,121) - - {249,121)
(503,569) - - {503,569)
(42,075) - - {42,075)
10,495,963 43,084 - 10,539,047
(228,882) - - (228,882)
21,037,016 380,980 213,720 21,631,716
8,819,629 .- - 8,819,628
- 124,665 - 124,665
- (210,024) - (210,024)
- 491 - 491
(121,853) - - {121,853)
8,697,776 {84,868) - 8,612,908
{39,491) - - {39,491)
$20774,283 § 2961 1 2 5§ 213720 $30,284,115

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In Net Assets
Adjustments lo Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amorlization
Amorlization of Deferred Income
Unrealized {Gain) Loss on Investments
Loss on Disposal of Properly and Equipment
Decrease in Noncontroiling Interest
Proceeds from Mine Subsidence Fund
Impairment Loss on Long-Lived Assels
Change in Valuation of interest Rate Swap
(Increases) Decreases in Current Assels:
Accounts Receivable
Other Curreni Assets
increases (Decreases) in Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Net Cash Provided by Operating Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Investments
Purchase and Reinvested interest of Invesimenis
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Change in Other Assets
Nel Cash Used by Investing Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Entrance Fee Contracls
Refunds Paid on Entrance Fee Contracts
Change in Other Liabilities
Paymenis on Long-Term Debt
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid {or Interest

See accompanying Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements.

(8
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2010 2009
$ 8652399 § 10,767,929
7,701,262 7,141,660
(1,620,028) (1,852,748)
(601,451) 438,122
74,616 108,453
(39,491) (228,882)
- {1,119,628)
- 1,119,628
121,863 256,725
82,156 536,668
(213,283) (376,258)
841,095 350,113
(244,155) 1,099,303
14,754,973 18,241,085
16,539,100 17,132,308
(18,322,202) (19,537,669)
(10,291,240) (4,713,983)
(26,095) 45,028
{12,100,437) {7.074,316)
2,850,323 3,293,826
(1,536,749) (3.764,762)
(5,096) (1,370}
(6,094,988) (9,829,636)
(4,786,510) {10,301,942)
(2.131,974) 864,827
24,555,643 23,690,816
$ 22423669  § 24,555843
§ 7760054 § 8,478,854
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc. was incorporated on July 1, 2008 as the parent and
management company for Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates ("CHI” or "Organization™).
CHI entities are nonprofit organizations organized primarily to own, operate and support
senior living and health care communities. Housing and services for seniors are provided at
CHI communities through a continuum of care including various levels of independant
living, assisted living and skilled nursing. CHI operates in the states of lllinois, Indiana, lowa
_and Missouri. The Organization’s stated mission is that it exists to honor God by providing a
continuum of excellent care and support services, primarily for the aged.

CHI operales through a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries, Limited Liability Companies
(LLCs) and Limited Partnerships (LPs). Certain of these entities are also members of an
obligated group for credit purposes. Following is an organizational chart that illustrates the

slructure:
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Minlgaries, nc. ung«.-" Home, Inc. Village, Inc. Village, Inc. Villsge, Inc, Village, Inc. .
™ ™ ™ N
* EHCH dba: [—— .
Senlers Care Bridgeway Hickery The Wabash Washington Gorporme w
Pharmacy of Point Cheinkn chrialan """"""‘W““ Christian Oitees
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J Vilge ) J J v,
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Principles of Consolidaticn

The . accompanying consolidated financial statements include all accounts of Midwest
Christian Villages, Inc., Christian Homes Inc., Fair Havens Christian Home Inc., Lewis
Memorial Christian Village, Hoosier Christian Village Inc., Spring River Christian Village
Inc., Chicagoland Christian Village Inc., Risen Son Christian Village, Midwesl Senior
Ministries fnc., Wabash Chnistian Apartments Inc., Wabash Christian Apartments LP,
Wabash Estates LLC, Wabash Estates LP, Washington Village Estales LLC, and
Washington Village Estates LP. All significant intercompany transactions and balances
have been eliminated in the consolidation.

Tax Status

The Organizations, except for the limited parinerships, qualify as tax-exempl corporations
described in Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the
Organizations, except for the limited partnerships, are not subject to federal income taxes
under Section 501({a) of the Code. The Organizations are classified as publicly-supported
charnitable organizations under the Code and contributions to the Organizations qualify as a
charitable tax deduction for the contributor. '

The Organizations follow the income tax standard for uncerain tax positions. This standard
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an organization’s
financial statements. It also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement principles
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions laken or expected
1o be taken on a tax return that are not certain to be realized. This standard had no impact
on the Organization’s financial stalements. ’

The Organizations’ income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal,
state, and local authorities. The Organizations are not aware of any activities that would
jecpardize their tax-exempt status. The Organizations are not aware of any aclivilies that
are subject to tax on unrelated business income or excise or other laxes other than what is
already-being reported. The tax returns for the years 2007 to 2009 are open to examination
by federal, local, and state authorities.

Standards of Accounting and Financial Reporting

The Organization follows the accounting guidance in the audit and accounting guide, Heaith
Care Organizations, which is in conformity with the recommendations of the American
Institute of Cerlified Public Accountants.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at ihe date of the consolidated financial slatements. Estimates also affect the
reporled amounts of revenue and expense during the reporing period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

®
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation
Contributions received are recorded as an increase in unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified
and reported as follows:

Unrestricted — Those resources over which the board of directors has discretionary
control. Designated amounts represent those revenues that the board has set aside for a
particular purpose. :

Temporarily Restricled — Those resources subject to donor imposed restrictions that will
be satisfied by actions of the Crganization or passage of time.

Permanently Restricted — Those resources subjecl to a donor imposed restriction that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimaled fair market
value at the date each promise is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or
permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use
of the donated assets. When a donor restriclion is satisfied, net assels are released and
reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets. Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met within the same reporting period as received are recorded as
unrestricted conltribulions.

Permanently and temporarily restricted nel assets consist of amounts restricted for capital
expenditures, beneficial interest in trusts and miscellaneous operational purposes.

Resident Services Revenue

Resident services revenue includes room charges and ancillary services to residents and is
recorded at esiablished rates, net of contractual adjustments, resulling from agreements
with third-parly payors.

The Organization provides care lo residents covered by various third-party payors such as
Medicare, Medicaid and private insurance companies. Medicare and Medicaid agreemenis
provide for rate payments which are updated annually by the federal and applicable state
governments, respeclively. Many of the residents served by the Organization are elderly
and many have limiled resources to pay for care without assistance from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs.

Provisions for estimated third-party payor setilements are provided in the period the related
services are rendered. Differences between the amounts accrued and subsequent
settlements are recorded in revenue in the year of seltlement.

Third Party Reimbursement Agreements

Nursing facilities licensed for participation in the Medicare and Medicaid Assistance
programs are subject lo annual licensure renewal. If it is determined that a nursing facility is
nol in substantial compliance wilh the requirements of parlicipation, CMS may impose
sanctions and penalties during the period of noncompliance. Such a payment ban would
have a negalive impact on the revenues of the nursing facility.

©)]
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Third Party Reimbursement Agreements (Continued)

A licensed nursing facility thal participated in the Medicare program for the years ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009 was reimbursed based on a Prospective Payment System (PPS).
This program is administered by the United Slates Department of Health and Human
Services. The PPS is a per diem price based system. Annual cost reports are submitted to
the designated intermediary; however, they do not contain a cost settlement.

Occupancy Percentages
During the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, occupancy percentages and the
percentage of resident days covered under the Medicaid and Medicare program for all of
CHI skilled nursing facilities were as follows:

June 30, 2010
Licensed

Facility Location Beds Occupancy Medicaid Medicare
The Christian Village Lincoln, IL 112 93.20 % 42.21 % 13,23 % .
Falr Havens Decatur, IL 154 95.86 43,70 21.97 ‘
Pleaszani Meadows Chrisman, IL 169 83.14 60.66 13.17 ;
Lewis Memorial Springfield, IL 155 92.16 35.30 31.72 ‘
Hoosier Brownsiown, IN 97 92.92 70.72 10,23 :
Wabash Carmi, IL 158 81.57 53.34 17.24
Shawnee Herrin, IL 150 79.76 57.17 22,49
Washinglon Washington, IL 122 79.95 45.50 18.92
Spring River Joplin, MC 120 87.51 52.23 30.22
Chicagoland Crown Peint, IN 146 91.25 50.84 2311
Risen Son Council Bluf{s, {A 102 95,01 3523 2.8
Heartland Meoga, IL 71 90.22 36.49 17.23
Anchorage Benserwille, L 222 72.26 52.57 25.90

Total 1,727

June 30, 2009
Licensed

Facility Location Beds Occupancy Medicaid Medicare
The Christian Village Lincoln, 1L 112 9176 % 41.08 % 14.29 %
Fair Havens Decalur, IL 154 91.58 48.17 21,30
Pleasani Meadows " Chrisman, IL 109 88.10 61.29 11.10
l.ewis Memoriat Springﬁelq, IL 155 92,21 35.67 30.43
Hoosier Brownslown, IN 97 95.16 70.29 9.51
Wabash Carmi, I 158 86.17 53.22 14.71
Shawnee Herrin, iL 159 83.76 64.32 19.80
Washinglon Washington, IL 122 §1.97 46.28 16.71
Spring River Joplin, MO 120 86.69 55.56 27.74
Chicagoland Crown Point, IN 146 92.30 47 .50 24.84
Risen Son Council Blukfs, 1A 102 95.31 38.23 22.73
Hearland Neoga, IL 71 91.04 3545 16.79
Anchorage Bensenville, IL 222 73.04 53.33 23.56

Tolal 1,727

{10)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Occupancy Percentages {Continued}

For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, occupancy percentages for the senior living
units were as follows:

June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009
© Facility Location Unils Occupancy Units Occupancy
Assisted Living
Hickory Point Decatur, IL 48 85.45 % 48 97.17
Spring River Joplin, MO 73 89.54 73 97.83
Risen Son Councit Blufis, 1A 62 78.11 ) 62 78.16
Total 183 183 '
Independent Living
The Christian Village Lincotn, 1L 65 90.54 % 65 95.47 %
Falr Havens Decatur, IL T 10 B4.66 10 92.88
Hickory Point Decatur, IL 50 g2.22 50 92.88
Pieasani Meadows Chrisman, IL 15 88.06 15 82,78
Lewis Memorial ' Springhetd, 1L 46 64.95 46 70.22
Hoosier Brownstown, IN 13 91.68 13 84.09
Wabash Carmi, IL 1" 95.64 1 04.89
washinglon Washington, IL 30 B68.77 30 83.84
Spring River Joplin, MO 70 86.58 70 91.09
Chicagoland Crown Poinl, IN 74 83.41 74 86.19
Risen Son Coungil Blufls, 1A 95 a41.01 a5 93.70
Hearlland Neoga, IL B 88.36 8 75.58
Bridgeway Bensenvilte, IL 173 72.02 173 75.78
Total TTTTRe0 - T 66o

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all money market accounts and certificates of deposit with
maturity dates of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposit are
stated at cosl, which approximates markel value. -The Organization deposits its temporary
cash investments in financial institutions. At times, such investments may be in excess of
the FDIC insurance limit.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization provides an allowance for uncollectible accounts using management's
judgment. Residents are not required to provide coltateral for services rendered. Payment
for services is required upon receipt of invoice or as the claim is submitted for third-party
payors. Accounts past due more than 30 days are individually analyzed for collectibility. In
addition, an allowance is estimated for other accounts based on historical experience. At
June 30, 2010 and 2009, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately
$630,000 and $950,000, respectively.

(1)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC. ‘
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED})

. Investments
Investments in equily securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in
debt securities are measured at fair value on the balance sheet. Investment income of loss
(including realized gains and losses on invesiments, interest and dividends) is included in
net revenue over expense unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.

Assets Limited as to tse

Assets limited as 1o use include resident funds and deposits held in frust, assels held by
trustees under bond and morigage indenture agreements, and assets set aside by the
board of directors for future capital improvements and other purposes, over which the board
retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes. Assets
limited as to use thal are required for obligations classified as current liabilities are reporied
as current assels.

Assels limited as to use are primarily invested in cash and cash equivalents, government
bond obligations and guaranteed investment contracts, which are measured at fair value on
the balance sheet.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased assels or fair market value at
the date of receipt for donated assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the asset.

Impairment Loss on Long-Lived Assets

Impairment loss on long-lived assets includes repair and maintenance expense incurred or
to be incurred lo maintain the use of existing facilities and the nel book value and accrued
demolition cosis of the senior apariment building at Lewis Memorial Christian Village.
During the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, impairment losses of $0 and $1,119,628,
respeclively, were recognized due to mine subsidence issues (see note 12).

Construction in Progress

Construction in progress costs have been deferred until the projects have heen completed.
When the planned projects are completed, the construction in progress costs are
capitalized and deprecialed over the estimated life of the project including interest costs
from borrowed funds.

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are capitalized and
amorlized using the straight-ine method over the term of the related indebtedness.
Deferred financing costs are reported on the balance sheel, net of accumulated
amortization of $456,998 and $316,344 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $140,654 and
$143,227, respectively.
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NOTE 1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 36, 2010 AND 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)})

Charitable Gift Annuities Payable

The Organization has established a gifl annuity program whereby donors may contribute

assets to the Organization in exchange for the right to receive a fixed dollar annual return

during their lifetime. A portion of the transfer is considered to be a charitable contribution.

The difference between the amount provided for the gift annuity and the present value of

the liability for fulure payments is recognized as unrestricted contributions at the date of the

gift as specified by the donor on the contribution component. The Organization uses

published mortality rate tables adopted by the United States Internal Revenue Service. The

annuity liability is revalued annually based upon computed present values. Total charitable
gift annuities payable as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 were $720,854 and $697,844,

respeclively, and are included in other liabilities on the balance sheet.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations represent future obligations to dispose of assets that are
legally required to be removed at a future date. They are recorded at the net present value
using a risk-free interest rale and inflationary rate and are included in other liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Refundable Entrance Fees and Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees

Residents of the independent senior living apariments and garden homes have the option
1o enter into a rental coniract or an enfrance fee contract. Under the rental contract a
resident simply pays a fee each month to live in a unit. Prior to August 2009, under the
entrance fee residency agreement the resident generally had three options 1o choose from
for all facilities except for Bridgeway Christian Village. Residents of Bridgeway Christian
Village generally had four entrance fee coniracts to choose from. In August 2009 CHI
starled offering three coniract types, only, at all campuses. The old contracts will continue
to be honored for those residents who moved in prior to August 2009. The new contract
types are described below.

Prior to August 2009, for all facilities except Bridgeway Christian Village, the non-
refundable portion of the entrance fee is recorded as deferred revenue and amontized into
income using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining life expectancy of the
resident. Due to the nature of the contracts, the refundable portion, generalty one-third or a
minimum of 75% depending on the contract type, is nol amorlized and is recorded as a
liability and reported as refundable entrance fees. When the resident vacates lhe unit he or
she receives a refund, due immediately, equal to the refundable portion as outlined in the
entrance fee contract. The resident has the option, if transferring to a CHE nursing facility, to
transfer the remaining non-refundable balance and draw upon it until amortized to zero.
Residents also agree to pay a monthly fee that is subject to periodic adjustment to reflect
the cost of occupancy.

(13)
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NOTE1

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Refundable Entrance Fees and Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees (Continued)

The new entrance fee contracts, now used at all campuses including Bridgeway Christian
Village, are similar 10 those described above with the exception of the refundable portion
percentage. Under the current contracts the resident can choose from a refundable portion
of 80%, 50% or no refund. The refundable portion is not amortized and is recorded as a
iability and reported as refundable entrance fees. When the resident vacales the unit he or
she receives a refund, due immediately, equal to the refundable portion as outlined in the
entrance fee contract. The resident has the option, if transferring to a CHI nursing facility, to
transfer the remaining non-refundable balance and draw upon it until amortized to zero.
Residents also agree to pay a monthly fee that is subject to periodic adjustment to reflect
the cost of occupancy.

Management has estimated a current portion of the amount of the remaining refundable
balances as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 to be $1,536,300 and $1,398,300, respectively,
based on historical refund activity.

On the Bridgeway Christian Village campus prior to August 2009, residents were required
to pay an initial entrance fee and a recurring monthly service fee per the residency

-agreements. These fees entitle the resident to the use of the residential unit and various -

services and amenities including up to 730 days of health care in a semi-private room on
the campus or at another skilled nursing facility. The contracts entitle the resident or their
estate to a refund of a portion of the entrance fee, minimum of 70%, 50%, or 20% of the
contract amount depending on the contracl type, upon termination of the agreement due 1o
death or move-out. Refunds are payable only upon re-occupancy of the resident's unit. All
entrance fees under these contracts are recorded as deferred revenue. The portions of the
entrance fees paid by the residents that are not refundable upon re-occupancy are
amortized into income using the straight-line method over the eslimated remaining life
expectancy of the resident. Entrance fees refundable upon re-occupancy are amortized into
income over the estimated useful life of the building. :

Obligation 1o Provide Future Services

The Organization annually analyzes the present value of the net cost of future services and
use of facililies to be provided to current residents and compares that amount with the
batance of deferred revenue from life occupancy fees. If the present value of the net cost of
future services and use of facilities exceeds the deferred revenue from life occupancy fees,
a liability is recorded {obligation to provide future services and use of facilities) with a
corresponding charge lo income.

As described above, contracts that provide for free or discounted future care are generally
limited to Bridgeway Christian Village. No liability was required to be recorded at
June 30, 2010 and 2009, based on the overall operations of CHI.

(14)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Resident Deposits

Guaranty deposits of amounts ranging from $30 - $2,500 are required for each resident
entering an independent or assisted living facility within the Organization. The deposits in
the case of non-rental units are credited to the residents' accounts upon execution of the
occupancy agreement. In the case of rental units, the deposits are treated as security
deposils and refunded at the time the premises are vacated.

Other Operating Revenue

Other operating revenue consists primarily of non-resident rental income, change in value
of insurance policies, vending sales, activity income, and other miscellaneous revenue.

Contributed Services

The Organization receives a substantial amount of services donated by volunteers. No
amounts have been reflected in the consoclidated financial statements for these services.

Community Benefit

The Organization provides care to residents who meet the criteria to be covered under the
Medicaid program in the various states in which they operate.  Typically, the
reimbursement rates under this program are significantly less than the cost of providing the
care resulling in a significant reduction in revenue. Management has estimated the amount
of care provided in excess of reimbursement under these programs based upon average
Medicaid reimbursement rates and average daily cosls to provide care. The estimated cosl
of community benefits provided under this program for the years ended June 30, 2010 and
2009 was approximately $10,175,000 and $8,560,000, respectively.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Organization owns invesiments in a variety of investment holdings. In general,
investments are exposed 1o various risks, such as interesl rate, credit and overall market
volatility risk. Due 1o the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably
possible that changes in the values of the investments will occur in the near term and that
such changes could materially affect account balances reported on the balance sheet of
the Organization. '

Excess of Revaenue over Expense

Statements of unrestricted aclivities include a measurement of excess of revenue over
expense. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess of revenue
over expense, consistent with industry practice, include, change in valuation of effective
interest rate swaps, contributions for capital expenditures of long-lived assets, and retum of
capital.

Advertising
Advertising costs are charged 1o operations when incurred. Adverlising expense was
$622,004 and $709,328 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(15}
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Fair Value of Financial Instruments :
Eair value measurement applies to reporied balances that are required or permitted to be
measured at fair value under an existing accounting standard. The standard emphasizes
that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels of inpuls that may be used to
measure fair value as follows: '

Level 1 — Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in aclive
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument, Fair values for
these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoled prices of securities
with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs thal are unobservable inputs for the assel or liability, which are
typically based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related
‘market activity.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which

the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Additionally, from time to time, the Organization may be required lo record at fair value
other assels on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. These adjustments to fair value usually result from the application of the lower-
of-cost-or-market accounting or write down of individual assets. Nanfinancial assels
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis would include nonfinanical assets and
fiabilities measured at fair value in the second step of goodwill impairment test, other real
estate owned, and other inlangible assets measured at fair value for impairment
assessment,

The Organization has elected the fair value option for investments to simplify record
keeping. This election effectively moves the classification of investments from available for
sale lo trading which has no impact on the balance sheet presentation. The impact on the
statement of unrestricted activities to this election is that unrealized gains and losses on
investments are shown within the performance indicator.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Securities Available for Sale

Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value
measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available,
fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation
techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security's credit
rating, prepayment assumptions, and other factors such as credit loss assumptions.
Securities valued using Level 1 inputs include those traded on an active exchange, such as
the New York Stock Exchange, as well as U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government and
agency mortgage-backed securities that are traded by deaters or brokers in active over-the-
counter markets. Securilies valued using Level 2 inputs include private collateralized
morigage obligations, municipal bonds, mutual funds, and corporate debt securities. The
Organization does not have any securities that are valued using Level 3 inpuls.

Derivatives

Quoted market prices are available and used for exchange-traded derivatives, such as
certain inlerest rate futures and option contracts; such derivatives are classified as using
Level 1 inputs. The Organization’s swap agreement's fair value is determined using
internally developed models that use primarily market observable inputs, such as yield
curves and option volatilities, and, accordingly, are classified as using Level 2 and Level 3
inputs.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through September 17, 2010, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

The Organization is required to hold funds in various accounts based upon terms in the
indenture of trust of the various bond issuances. Assels limited as to use that are required
for obtigations classified as current liabilities are reported in current assels. The assets in
the trustee held funds consisl of cash and cash equivalents and fixed income bonds. The
Organization was required to maintain the following accounts:

2010 2008
Resident Funds 5 386,247 $ 444,702
Trustee Held Funds:
General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund 2,368,847 2,352,840
Debt Service Reserve Fund 6,555,437 6,555,095
Project Fund - 6,340,376
Building Fund 59,168 58,168
SLF and HUD Escrows . 1,441,159 1,290,922
Total Truslee Held Funds 10,424,611 16,598,401
Total $ 10,810,858 $ 17,043,103
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE (CONTINUED)

Resident Funds

Resident funds are agency funds held locally at the faciliies for individual residents’
personal use, resident security deposits, and other miscellaneous deposits.

General Obligation Bond Retirement Fund
The Bond Retirement Fund was established to deposit amounts necessary to pay interest
on the general obligation bonds of the Organization.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Debt Service Reserve Fund was established to provide a reserve for payment of
principal and interest on the bonds in the event the Organizaticn’'s principal and interest
payments are insufficient to meet debl service requirements.

Project Fund
The Project Fund consists of monies to be used for approved development projects at
various campus locations over approximately the next two to three years.

Buiiding Fund
The Building Fund has been established to temporarily hoid bond proceeds for capital
project expenditures.

SLF and HUD Escrows

These escrows have been established by the supportive living facilities and HUD financed
facilities to hold funds to be used for the repair or replacement of capital items and
operating purposes as needed. Approval is needed lo withdraw funds.

NOTE3 INVESTMENTS

The fair value of investments is estimated based upon quoted market prices for those or
similar investments. investment portfolios consisted of the following at June 30, 2010 and

2008:
2010 . 2009
Cosi Market Cost Market

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,740,231 $ 7.740,231 $ 12,497,986 $ 12,497,986
Fixed Income 13,867,443 14,021,665 1,120,974 1,178,358
Equity Securities 4,873,151 4,501,072 2,263,691 1,672,727
Mutual Funds - - 1,309,088 1,047,099
Certificate of Deposit 496,000 496,000 1,746.000 1,746,000

$ 26976825 § 267589068 § 18,937,739 § 18,142,170

The Organization had unrealized gains (losses) of $601,451 and ($438,122) at June 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively. Unrealized gains (losses) are excluded from operating
income.

{18)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 4 INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHI maintains control over Wabash Christian Apartments, Inc., Wabash Estates, LLC and
Washington Village Estates, LLC {collectively, the “General Partners”). Each of the General
Pariners is a wholly owned subsidiary of CHI and owns between .01% and 1% in the
respective limited partnerships.

As the General Partners maintain controlling interest in the partnerships, the partnership
tolals have been included in the consolidated financial statements. The equity attributable
to the limited pariners of each of the partnerships has been reflected on the consolidated
balance sheet as “noncontrolling inlerest.”

Under the parinership agreements, the General Partners shall have the option after the
completion of the “compliance audit termination date,” upon written notice to the limited
pariners, to purchase the limited pariner’s entire interest in the parlnership. The compliance
audit termination date is defined as the period specified under Section 42(i)(1) of the IRS
Code, which requires the limited parlnerships to operate as tax credit projects for 15 years.
Wabash Christian Apariments, LP began operations as a tax credit project in 1995 and
Wabash Eslates, LP and Washington Village Estates, LP began operations during the latter
half of 2007. The parinership agreements define the lerms of the purchase option. CHFs

_ management plans to exercise the purchase options of the General Partners in the future
and obtain full ownership of the projects.

(19)
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NOTE 5

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organization’s long-term debt at June 30, 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

Description
CHI General Obligation Bonds, various series outstanding

llinois Finance Authority, Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007A

lllinois Finance Authority, Taxable Variable Rate Demand Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 20078

Winois Finance Authority, Taxable Convertible Variable Rate
Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007C

City of Crown Point, Indiana, Revenue Refunding Bonds Series,
2007D

County of Poltawattamie, lowa, Revenue Refunding Bonds Series,
2007E

Industrial Development Authority of the City of Joplin, Missouri,
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007F

Soulheaslerf) Hincis Economic Development Authority Supportive
Living Facility Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A
and 2006B

City of Washington, lllinois, Supportive Living Facility Mulh—Fam:Iy
Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A and 20068

Various Morigages Payable

Two Seclion 232 HUD Insured Mortgage Notes Payable to Ziegler
Financing Corporation

7 Total Long-Term Deb!
Less: Currenl Maturities
Long-Term Portion

(N

2

2}

2}

(2)

(2)

2

(3

{4
(5}

(€)

2010 2009
§ 36704984 § 40,092,983
37,365,000 37,365,000
805,000 3,290,000
8,080,000 8,080,000
7,155,000 7,155,000
8,300,000 8,300,000
12,340,000 12,340,000
3,909,840 3,962,649
4,789,553 4,854,244
931,417 541,047
10,389,549 10,584,408
130,480,343 136,975,331
14,347,216 14,616,956

$ 116,133,127

$ 121,958,375

The Obligated Group for the Series 2007 Revenue Bonds consists of Christian Homes,
Inc., Risen Son Christian Village, Spring River Christian Village, inc., Hoosier Christian
Village, Inc., Chicagoland Christian Village, Inc., Fair Havens Christian Home, Inc., Lewis

Memorial Chnshan Village, and Midwest Senior Ministries, Inc.

Bonds Payable

(1) CHI General Obligation Bonds are issued onsite at the corporate office in Lincoln,
IMinois. Maturity dates range from July 2010 to October 2031. Interest is paid
quarterly with rates ranging from 4.00% to 6.75% and is funded through mandatory
monthly deposits to a sinking fund. General Obligalion Bonds are secured by the

revenue of the QOrganization.
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTES5 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable {Continued)
(2) On June 28, 2007, the CH! obligated group through the lllinois Finance Authority,
the County of Pottawattamie, lowa, and the Industrial Devefopment Authority of the
City of Joplin, Missouri issued $72,920,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2007 under a newly formed master trust indenture.

On July 16, 2007, the CHI obligated group issued the Series 20070 bonds at a total
value of $7,155,000 under the newly formed master trust indenture. The proceeds
from these bonds were used to refinance the Series 1993 bonds issued by the City
of Crown Poinl, Indiana, to fund the debt service reserve and the project fund, and
to pay the underwriter's discount.

The proceeds of the 2007A, 2007B and 2007C bonds were used to refund the
$4,775,000 Series 1989A bonds of Bensenville Home Society, refund the
$17,100,000 Series 1995A bonds of Lifelink Corporation Obligated Group, refund b
the $18,410,000 Series 1998 bonds of Lifelink Corporation Obligated Group, refund
the $1,920,000 Series 2002 bonds of Lewis Memorial Christian Village, and refund
the $6,800,000 Series 2004 bonds of Fair Havens Christian Home.

The proceeds of the 2007E bonds were used to refund the $9,250,000 Series 1992
bonds of Risen Son Christian Village.

The proceeds of the 2007F bonds were used to refund the $10,000,000 Senes
2002A bonds of Spring River Christian Village and refund the $1,695,000 Series
2002B bonds of Spring River Christian Village.

Other proceeds from the Series 2007 issuance were used for funding portions of the
debt service reserve funds for these bonds, related expenses of the refinancing and
refunding of prior bonds, and costs of capital projects at some of the Organization’s
facilities. .

The 2007A, 2007D, 2007E and 2007F bonds consist of term bonds with maturily
dates ranging from May 2011 to May 2031 and interest rates ranging from 5.00% to
5.75%.

The 2007B and 2007C bonds are variable rate demand bonds. By definition, a
variable rate demand bond is a long-term tax-exempt bond, the interest rate of
which is indexed to a current shorl-term markel rale. The interest rates at June 30,
2010 and 2009 were 0.40% (0.38% on 2007C) and 0.85%, respectively. A demand
feature allows the bonds to be remarketed upon 7 days notice at par value plus
accrued interest. The Organization holds irrevocable letters of credit with the bond
trustee for the face amount of the bonds. The letters of credit have an initial five-
year term, expiring in June 2012. in the evenl remarketing is not successful, the
letter of credit will be drawn upon to pay the bond trustee.

(21)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE5 LONG-TERM DEBT {(CONTINUED)

Bonds Payabie (Continued}
(2) (Continued)

The Organization has a liability to the bond trustee immediately upon a draw on the
letter of credit. Any draws on the letter of credit automatically convert 1o term loans if
outstanding longer than 30 days. Term loans will be repaid in equal quarterly
installments with the final payment due at expiration of the letter of credit. The
amount shown on the balance sheet as current maturities of long-term debt
represents the amount that would be payable in the first year if the bonds were
converted 1o term loans.

In relation to the 20078 and 2007C variable rate demand bonds, the Organization
entered into interest rale swap agreements with a financial institution on July 12,
2007. The swap agreements have the effect of limiting the variability of the interest
rate on the bonds. The swap agreements relating to the 2007B and 2007C bonds
expire on May 15, 2011 and May 15, 2017, respectively. Al June 30, 2010 and
2009, the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was $1,004,212 and
$882,359, respectively and recorded as a long-term liability on the balance sheel.
The change of $121,853 and $256,724 is reported as part of change in unrestricled
net assets for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Organization records all derivative instruments, currently consisting of interest
rale swap agreements, on the balance sheel at their respeclive fair values and all
changes in fair value in the consolidated statements of operations as gain {loss} on
derivative financial instruments.

The Series 2007 bonds are secured by the underlying morigages and gross
receipts of the obligated group.

(3) The Southeastern lllinois Ecenomic Development Authority Supportive Living
Facility Multi-Family Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A and 2006B were issued on
behalf of Wabash Estates, LP. The bonds bear interest ranging from 6.71%-7.25%
and are secured by the indenture and mortgage. The 2006A bonds mature in
December 2023, and the 20068 bonds matured in October 2008.

(4) The City of Washington, Iltinois Supportive Living Facility Multi-Family Revenue
Bonds, Series 2008A and 2006B were issued on behalf .of Washington Village
Estates, LP. The bonds bear interest ranging from 6.71%-7.25% and are secured
by the indenture and mortgage. The 2006A bonds mature in December 2023, and
the 20068 bonds matured in October 2008.
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NOTE 5

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

‘Mortgages Payable
(5) Morigages payable consist of mortgages held at Wabash Christian Apariments,
Limited Partnership. The first morigage bears interest at 7%, and the second
morigage bears no interest. Both morlgages are secured by property and
improvements and mature in December 2025.

HUD Mortgages

(6) On July 19, 2007, Shawnee Christian Nursing Center, LLC refinanced the existing
facility with a mortgage note payable to Ziegler Financing Corporation in the original
amount of $6,634,900. The mortgage is insured by the Department of Housing and
Urban Development under Section 232 of the National Housing Act and
collateralized by all assets, receipts, and profits of the Project. The morlgage bears
interest al 5.88% and matures in August 2032. Proceeds from the mortgage were
used 1o pay off the City of Herrin, llinois Healthcare Facilities First Mortgage
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993.

On July 19, 2007, Hearlland Christian Village, LLC refinanced the exisling facility
with a mortgage note payable to Ziegler Financing Corporation in the original
amount of $4,292,500. The morigage is insured by the Depariment of Housing and
Urban Development under Section 232 of the Natlional Housing Act and
collateralized by all assets, receipts, and profils of lhe Project. The morigage bears
inlerest at 5.88% and matures in August 2037. Proceeds from the morlgage were
used lo pay off the City of Neoga, lllinois First Morigage Revenue Bonds, Series
1991.

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $8,065,339 and
$8,736,946, respeclively. There was no interest capitalized during the years ended June
30, 2010 and 2008.

Aggregate future maturities of long-term debt include all bonds presumed redeemed at their
next option date, since individual bondholders have a right to demand repayment on those
option dates. Scheduled principal payments on long-term debl are as follows at
June 30, 2010:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2011 $ 14347216
2012 21,162,701
2013 4,832,549
2014 - 5.787,880
2015 9,231,691
Later Years 75,118,306
Total $ 130,480,343
(23)
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NOTE 5

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The following scheduled principal payments at June 30, 2010 are based upon the
assumption no bond is redeemed on any future option date and more closely reflects
management’s expeclations, based on historical experience.

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2011 3 5,478,225
2012 4,334,701
2013 4,481,549
2014 4,774,880
2015 5,028,601
Later Years 106,382,297
Total $ 130,480,343

Loan Payable

On June 28, 2007, the Organization entered into a revolving loan payable with a financial
institution for $18,100,000. The loan's purpose is to provide liquidity for redeeming general
obligation bonds as they are presenied at the end of interest periods and not refunded by
issuance of new debt. The loan bears interest at a floating rate as established by the
current prime rate and matures on June 28, 2011. Any portion of the revolving loan can be
converted 1o a LIBOR loan with proper given nolice. The loan is secured by the master
indenture and related mortgages. No amounts were drawn on the loan at June 30, 2010
and 20089.

Restrictive Covenants

The provisions of the debt agreements described above contain various restrictive
covenants that limit the occurrence of additional debt, require Organization to apply for a
credit raling from a rating agency periodically, and require certain measures of financial
perforrance be satisfied as long as the debt is outstanding.

Subsequent Event - Series 2010 Bonds

On July 20, 2010, the CHI Obligated Group, through the lllinois Finance Authority, issued
$25,000,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 under the exisling Master Trust Indenture as
amended and supplemented by the First Supplemental Master Indenture. The proceeds of
the bonds will be used for the fotlowing, (i) to fund construction and remodeling of certain
facilities of the Obligated Group, (i) refund all of the existing Series 2007C Bonds described
above, (iii) pay certain termination costs owed on the interest rale swap agreemenls
relating to the Series 2007C Bonds, (iv) fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Bonds,
and (v) to fund certain issuance costs. The Series 2010 Bonds consisl of term bonds with
maturities ranging from May 2012 to May 2027 and interest rates ranging from 3.40% to
6.125%. The scheduled principal payments disclosed above reflect the new matunty
requirements of the portion of the Series 2010 Bonds used to refund the Senes 2007C
Bonds. :
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NOTE 6

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2008

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy for the balances of the assets and
liabilities of the Organization measured at fair value on a recuming basis as of

June 30, 2010:

2010
Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Trading Securities:
Equity Securities § 450M072 % 4501072 % - 8 -
Fixed Income 14,021,665 - 14,021,665 -
Total $ 18522737 & 4501072 % 14,021,665 § -
Liabilities:
Interest Rate Swap
Agreements $ 1004212 & 1.004212 § - % -
Total $ 1,004,212 & 1,004,212 & - % -
2009
Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Leavel 3
Trading Securities: )
Equily Securilies $ 1,672,727 % 1672727 % - % -
Mutual Funds : 1,047,099 635,335 411,764 -
Fixed Income - 1,178,358 - 1,178,358 -
Total $ 3,898,184 § 2,308,062 § 1,500,122 % -
Liabilities:
Interest Rate Swap
Agreements $ 882359 § 699,274 & - 3 183,085
Total 3 882,359 & 699274 3 - % 183,085

The fcllowing table presents changes in liabilities measured al fair value using Level 3

inputs on a recurring basis for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Interest Rate

: _Swap Agreement
Balance at July 1, 2008 % -

Transfer into Level 3 183,085
Batance at June 30, 2009 183,085
Transter oul of Level 3

{183,085)
Balance at June 30, 2010 [ -

Fair values for Level 3 are based on expected cash flows discounted based on

counterparties credit risk as of June 30, 2010.
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {CONTINUED)

The following is a surnmary of financial instruments for which the Organization did not elect
the fair value option. The fair values of such instrumenis have been derived, in parl, by
management's assumptions, the estimated amount and timing of future cash flows, and
estimated discount rates. Different assumptions could significantly affect these estimated
fair values. Accordingly, the nel realizable value could be materially different from the
estimates presented below. In addition, the estimates are only indicative of the value of
individual financial instruments and should not be considered an indication of the fair value
of the Organization. The provisions of the disclosure do not require the disclosure of non
financial assets including intangible assets.

Cash and Cash Equivaients
The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those
instruments.

Accounts Receivahle
The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those
instruments.

Long-Term Deht

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated for each individual issue based upon current
reasonable interest rales taking type of debt and maturities into account.

All Other
The carrying value is a reasonable estimate of the fair value for all other financial
instruments due to the short-term nature of those financial instruments.

The following disclosures represent financial instruments in which the ending balances at
June 30, 2010 and 2009 are not carried at fair value in their entirety on lhe consolidated
balance sheet:

2010 2009
Camying Fair ‘ Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Long-Ferm Debt - Fixed $ 121,485,343 $ 116,224,782 $§ 125,195,331 $ 107,861,255

Long-Term Debt - Variable % 8005000 % 8,995,000 3 11,380,000 $ 11,380,000

BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUST

The Organization receives contributions of property in which the donor may relain a life
interest. The assets are invested and administered by an unrelated trustee and distributions
are made 1o the beneficiaries during the term of the agreement.

(26}
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NOTE 10

NOTE 11

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC.
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF EXPENSES

Functional classification of expenses for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Program $ 121332882 $ 116,125,451
Management and General Support . 20,457 431 18,507,360
Total Operating Expenses $ 141,780,313 $ 134,632,811

Fundraising expenses incurred during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were
immaterial and are included with management and general support. Salaries and related
expenses are allocated based on job descriptions and the best eslimates of management.
Expenses, other lhan salaries and related expenses, which are not directly identifiable by
program or supporting service are allocated based on the best estimates of management.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Workers' Compensation Insurance

The Organization is self-insured for workers' compensation insurance through the Christian
Homes Workers' Compensation Trust. The Trust was organized and operates under the
provisions of the lllinois Religious and Charitable Risk Pooling Trust Act (the Act). The
trustees of the Trust are appointed by CHI's Board of Directors. The Trust retains the first
$250,000 of the costs for any individual claim. CH! remains responsible for claims paid and
as such has estimaled a reserve for claims incurred but not reported of approximately
$1,612,000 and $1,487,000 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

CHI's provision for claims incurred but not reported, although supporied by actuarial
projections and other data, is ullimately based on management’'s expectations of future
events. It is possible thal these estimates could change as more detailed information
concerning the losses is received and the effect of such changes could be material to the
consolidated financial statements,

Self-lnsured Medical Benefits

The Organization had a self-insured VEBA health plan, providing health and death benefits.
The VEBA health plan was effectively terminated as of May 31, 2009. The Organization
continues to provide health and death benefits through a self insured heafth plan.
Administrative support of the plan is provided by employees of CHI. The Organization
insures for excessive and unexpected claims and is liable for claims with limits determined
through acluarial reports. Claims in excess of the insurance limit are funded by the
Organization. The Organization has stop-loss insurance to cover excessive claims over
$100,000 per individual. CHI is responsible for claims paid and as such has estimaled a
reserve for claims incurred but not reported of approximately $350,000 and $300,000 at
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respeciively.

(28)
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MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Self-Insured Medical Benefits {Continued)

~ CHU's provision for claims incurred but not reported, although supported by actuanal

projections and other data, is ulimately based on management's expectations of future
events, It is possible that these estimates could change as more detailed information
concerning the losses is received and the effecl of such changes could be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

Lewis Memorial Mine Contingency

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Organization discovered that damage was
occurnng to their senior apartment buitding on the Lewis Memonal Christian Village
campus in Springfield, lllinois, which included cracking and issues with windows and door
frames. Through a process of professional inspections, it was determined that the damage

was being caused by coal mine subsidence. During the year ended June 30, 2008, CHI -

decided that it was not prudent to continue repairs on this building, and it was vacated and
demolished during the year ended June 30, 2009. The operating impact of closing the
senior apartment building was nol deemed matenial to the overall campus. During the year
ended June 30, 2009 the Organization received $1,119,628 from the Mine Subsidence
Insurance Fund 1o cover repair and replacement expenses incurred or accrued at year end
for structures other than the senior apartment building affected by the mine
subsidence. During the year ended June 30, 2010 the Organization received $908,158
from the Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund, however, no repair or replacement costs have
been identified due o continued maovement.

To date, the Organization has taken aill recommended safety precautions and has not been
materially hindered in their operation of the remainder of the campus. Management is
currenily in the process of working with the Depariment of Natural Resources and other
consultants to determine the cost of correcting other problems. Certain of these costs will
be the responsibility of the Organization, while other costs may be covered by the Illinois
Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund. Presently an estimate of the total cost and related timing
of the work cannot be determined, therefore, no lability has been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Organization is subject to asserted and unasserted claims encountered in the normal
course of business. The Organization's management and legal counsel assess such
contingent liabilities and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In
assessing loss contingencies related 1o legal proceedings that are pending against the
Organization or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Organization’s
legal counse! evaluates the perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims
as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought
therein. in the opinion of management, disposition of these matters will not have a material
effect on the Organization's financial condilion or resulis of operations.
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NOTE 11

NOTE 12

MIDWEST CHRISTIAN VILLAGES, INC,
DBA: CHRISTIAN HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Health Care

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations by federal, state, and
local governments. These laws and regulations inciude, but are not necessarily limited to,
mallers such as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation
requirements, reimbursement for resident services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and
abuse. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and reguiations by
health care providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could resull in expulsion
from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed.

CCONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash and cash equivalents, investments, and assets limited
as lo use, at financial institutions which management believes has strong credit ratings and
that the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal. Accounts are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At times, deposits may exceed FDIC
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes lt is
not exposed 10 any significant credil risk.

The Qrganization grants credit without coltateral to its various facility residents or their
families, most of whom are local individuals and are insured under third-parly payor
agreememts. The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors was as follows at
June 30, 2010 and 2003:

2010 2009
_ Percent Percent
Medicaid ) 297 % 335%
Medicare 34.2 34.5
Private and Insurance 36.1 32.0
Total 100.0 % 100.0 %

(30)
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LarsonAller

CPAs, Consultants & Advisors
www.larsonallan.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
COMBINING AND CONSOLIDATING SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.

dba: Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates
Lincoln, lllinois

Our report on our audit of the basic consclidated financial statements of Midwest Christian Villages, Inc.
dba; Christian Homes, Inc. and Affiliates for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 appears on
page 1. That audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic conselidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on pages 32 through 47 is presented for
additional analysis of the basic consolidated financial statements and is not a required part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. The supplementary information has not. been subjected to the
auditing procedures .applied in lhe audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, therefore,
we express no opinicn on it.

Larsen Allon LLP

LarsonAllen LLP

St Louis, Missouri
September 17, 2010

NEXIA @y
AN m An independent member of Nexia Intemationa!

INTERNATION AL
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January 10,2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Hickory Point Christian Village Permit Application — Reasonableness of Financing
Arrangements

Dear Ms. Avery:
In compliance with Section 1120.140(a} of the Review Board Rules, we hereby certify that the
total estimated Project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents,

including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded
depreciation.

Sincerely,
Fair Havens Christian Village, Inc., d/b/a Hickory Point Christian Village

Cﬁw(ﬂku\

Susan McGhee
Chief Financial Officer

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this _1¢ day of January, 2012

Signgture of Notary Public

B R R

3 OFFICIAL SEAL 3

Seal % MARCELLA TESH ',‘.
i NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS *

% MY COMMISSION EXPIRES §-25-2014 =

....::::::':--'-:--a--:-sl-;':--:-“-.','f

Reasonablencss of Financing Arrangements (Hickory Poin(}.DOC .
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Hickory Point Skilled Nursing Facility
Income Statement

Year 1 Year 1 Year 2 Year 2
PPD PPD
Revenue
Resident Care Revenue 5,258.458 380.17 7,543,026 338.78
Other 13,200 0.90 13,200 0.59
5,271,658 300.89 7,556,226 339.38
Expense
Sataries and Wages 2,075,422 142.15 2,808,815 126.15
Employee Benefits 261,989 17.94 365,974 18.44
Medicare Contracted Costs 1,279,985 87.67 1,659,146 74.52
Food and Dining Supplies 112,774 7.72 170,651 7.66
Repairs and Maintenance 43,270 2.96 43,270 1.94
Utilities 145,697 9.88 145,697 6.54
Insurance 50,000 342 50,000 2.25
Other 56,084 3.84 75,448 3.39
Management Fee 316,299 21.66 453,374 20.36
Interest 420,000 28.77 420,000 18.86
Depreciation and Amortization 481,667 32.99 481,667 21.63
5,243,187 209.27 6,674,042 299.75
QOperating income(Loss) 28,471 1.63 882,184 39.62
Non Operating 10,000 0.57 10,000 0.45
Net Income {Loss) 38,471 2.20 862,184 40.07
Debt Service Coverage
Net Income 38,471 263 892,184 40.07
Depreciation and Amortization 481,667 32.99 481,667 21.63
Interest 420,000 28.77 420,000 18.86
Cash Available for Debt Service 940,138 64.39 1,793,851 80.57
Debt Service 496,300 33.99 496,300 2229
Debt Service Coverage 1.89 3.61
Cash Flow
Borrowed Working Capital - -
Net Income 38,471 892,184
Depreciation and Amortization 481,667 481,667
Principal Payments (76,300) {76,300}
Capital Expenditures - -
Cash Flow 443,838 1,297,551
Cummulative Cash Flow 443,838 1,741,389
Total capital cost per patient day: Year 1 Year 2
$61.76 $40.50

=Proforma is for the Skilled Nursing Facility only (current 47 bed unit plus additional 17 bed unit} and does not include AL.

000221
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HICKORY POINT CHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE

2009 2010 2011
Charity (# of patients) N/A N/A 0
Charity (cost in dollars) N/A N/A 30

MEDICAID

2009 2010 2011
Medicaid (# of patients) N/A N/A 0
Medicaid (revenue) N/A N/A $0

Christian Homes® mission is to honor God by providing a range of excellent care and

support services, primarily for the aged. Housing and services for seniors are provided in the
Christian Homes’ communities through various levels of independent living, assisted living and
skilled nursing. Residents may attend worship services and Bible study to enhance their spiritual

well-being. An on-site chaplain is available to consuit with and comfort residents.

Christian Homes is the largest faith-based provider of skilled nursing care to medically
indigent Illinois residents. Over 51% of Christian Homes’ residents are covered by Medicaid.
Christian Homes has a tong history of care for their communities and the care it provides to those

of Iimited mecans strengthens the safety net services of their communities.

Hickory Point opencd in the second half of 2011 and residency admissions are still in the
carly stages, therefore there is limited historical data. A portion of Hickory Point’s beds are

Medicaid certified and full year operational costs will reflect service to Medicaid recipients.

9930701_1.DOC
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HICKORY POINTCHRISTIAN VILLAGE
CON APPLICATION
CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

CHARITY CARE
2009 2010 2011%
Net Paticnt Revenue N/A N/A 50
Amount of Charity Care (charges)
Cost of Charity Care N/A N/A $0

*Hickory Point Christian Village opened in the second half of 2011 and began accepting
residents. The facility has applied for Medicaid certification and has received indication that it
will be approved, however, the facility is not yet certified to admit patients at this time. Hickory
Point Christian Village is awaiting formal certification.

9938964_1.D0C
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